The Chiefs of Clan Buchanan

and its Cadet Branches

from William Buchanan of Auchmar’s

“A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of Buchanan”

First printed: Glasgow, Scotland, 1723

This interpretation is by Bill Buchanan, 

RR 3 Site 304 Box 11, Onoway, Alberta, Canada   

May 2009 

Bill.Buchanan@Excite.com
The Chiefs of Clan Buchanan from William Buchanan of Auchmar’s, “A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of Buchanan”, 1723

First Generation

xe "O'KYAN OR O'CAHAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon-104"
1.
Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon O'KYAN OR O'CAHAN  was born estimated 986 in Ulster, Ireland. 
[All quotes are normally from William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon 
the Family and Surname of Buchanan", as contained in a book of about 104 pages, "The Family of 
Buchanan", reprinted by Scotpress, Morgantown, West Virginia in 1984. I purchased my copy from the 
Clan Buchanan Society International, 511 Pelican Cove, Windsor, Colorado, 80550, USA. 
The original of this book is said on page 4 to have been printed in 1732 and on the back cover is said to 
have been printed in 1723. 
I have created this computer file based on my understanding of the above book. The notes are excerpted 
from Miscellanea Scotica (see below). In case of questions, please refer to the book. 
- Bill Buchanan, Onoway, AB Canada T0E 1V0, May 2009.]
[The full text of the above book can also be read for free as part of a compilation called Miscellanea 
Scotica at:
http://books.google.ca/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA157&dq=%22miscellanea+scotica%22&
output=text]
[Original: BUCHANAN, WILLIAM. A Historical and Genealogical Essay upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, To which is added A Brief Enquiry into the Genealogy and present State of ancient Scotish 
Surnames, and more particularly of the Highland Clans. By William Buchanan of Auchmar. Glasgow, 
Printed by William Duncan. 1723. 4. With a folding frontispiece. Title, 1 leaf: Preface and list of 
Subscribers, 4 leaves : A li, in fours, including a leaf of Index.] 
[Another reprint: 
Buchanan, William,d. 1747.
An inquiry into the genealogy and present state of ancient Scottish surnames :with the origin and 
descent of the Highland clans, and family of Buchanan /by William Buchanan.
Bowie, MD :Heritage Books, Inc.,1994.
2 v. in 1 (344 p.) :coat of arms;21 cm.
Facsimile reprint. Originally published: An inquiry into the genealogy and present state of ancient Scottish 
surnames, and, A Historical and genealogical essay upon the family and surname of Buchanan, Glasgow: 
J. Wylie by R. Chapman, 1820.
Paged continuously.
Includes index.
The reprint of: A historical and genealogical essay upon the family and surname of Buchanan, was a 
reprint of 1st publication in 1723.
1.Names, Personal--Scottish.2.Names, Personal--Scotland.3.Clans--Scotland.1.Buchanan family.
Dynamic Details #31908986 929.4/2/09411]
Anselan Buey, or Fair, Okyan, son to Okyan [O Cahan], provincial king of the south part of Ulster, being 
one of the youths concerned in the above-mentioned massacre [of the Danish garrison in Limerick]. 
These Okyans, with some others of the most ancient and reputed Irish surnames, are asserted to be of 
the Milesian stem or lineage; as are also the M'Donalds, and some others of our Scottish clans. These 
Milesians are reputed the progeny of the sons of Milesius, Gathelian, king of Gallicia in Spain, under 
whose conduct the Gathelians, or Scots, were first brought to, and planted in Ireland: so that all 
surnames in Ireland, or Scotland, descended of these, term themselves in their native language, Clanna 
Miley, or the Milesian progeny.
The time of this Anselan Okyan his leaving Ireland is generally computed to be in the year 1016, and 
twelfth year of king Malcolm II. his reign. He having landed with some attendants upon the northern 
coast of Argyllshire, near the Lennox, was, by a nobleman who had a considerable interest in those parts, 
and in the king's favour, introduced to the king, who took him into his service against the Danes; in 
which service, upon several occasions, particularly those two last battles fought by that king against 
Camus and Canutus, Okyan so signalized himself, that he obtained, in recompence of his service, several 
lands in the north part of Scotland, of which the lands of Pitwhonidy and Strathyre may, upon good 
grounds, be presumed a part; which in due place shall be more particularly observed.
Not only the Okyans of the south part, but also the Oneils of the north part, with all the other provincial 
kings, who enjoyed that title in the kingdom of Ireland, upon the English conquest of that kingdom, were 
not only obliged to quit their title of kingship, but also a great part of the territories enjoyed by them 
formerly, and to content themselves with the title of noblemen. The Oneils, formerly kings of the north 
part of Ulster, were after that conquest entitled earls of Tyrone; as were the Okyans, provincial kings of 
the south part, entitled lords of Dunseverin: with which family the lord M'Donald of the Isles, the laird of 
Lamond, and other principal families of the Highland clans, have been allied. The circumstances of the 
Okyans in the kingdom of Ireland are at present somewhat low; however, upon all occasions wherein 
they have business or converse with any of the name of Buchanan in that kingdom, they adhere closely 
to them upon account of the ancient relation. This Anselan Okyan, and some of his ancestors called by 
that name, are in old charters termed Absalon; which difference is not material, in regard the writers of 
these charters (as it would seem,) were not acquainted with the orthography of ancient Irish names, and 
therefore expressed those which were better known, and could best be rendered in Latin. As is evident 
by a charter relating to the family of Macpharlan, wherein the progenitor of that surname is termed 
Bertholoneus ; whereas, by the manner that name both write, and, in an ordinary way of speaking, 
express themselves, their progenitor's proper name behoved to have been Fartholanus, or Partholan, a 
known ancient Irish name: as is also that of Anselan, ancestor of the M'Auslans, now Buchanan. So that 
the manner the clerks of these more ancient times expressed these names is not to be too much 
criticised nor relied upon.
There is a current tradition, or account, that this Anselan Okyan married one Denniestoun, heiress of a 
part, if not the whole, of the estate of Buchanan. But this account is not too generally adhered to, 
because that heiress of the name of Denniestoun, whom that Anselan married, is only reputed to have 
had some little part of the estate of Buchanan, with Drumquhuassils, and other lands on the water of 
Ainrick; and because the greater part of the estate of Buchanan was given to the same Anselan, by king 
Malcolm, with other lands, in reward of his service against the Danes. Though, indeed, the name of 
Denniestoun was a very ancient and honourable name in the Lennox, and continued to be so for divers 
ages; Hugh, lord of Denniestoun, being witness to a charter, granted by Malcolm, the first of that name 
earl of Lennox, to John, laird of Luss, in the reign of king Alexander III. As also Robert, lord Denniestoun, 
is recorded to be sheriff of Dunbartounshire in the reign of king Robert I. The male issue of this family 
failed in the reign of king Robert III. The lord Denniestoun his two daughters being then married, the 
eldest to Cunninghame of Kilmaurs, and the second to Maxwel of Calderwood. Denniestoun of Colgrain is 
now the representative of that ancient family.
Anselan Okyan not only was recompenced for this service by king Malcolm with lands of considerable 
value, but also with very splendid arms; as the same king is recorded to have done to the ancestor of the 
Keiths, upon his killing of Camus the Danish general, and to others upon the like accounts. The arms 
assigned by that king to this Anselan, upon account of his descent, and more especially upon account of 
his heroic achievements, are, in a field Or, a lion rampant sable, armed and langued gules, holding in his 
paw a sabre, or crooked sword, proper. Which arms that surname retained always without the least 
addition or variation, until that addition obtained, upon a very honourable occasion, at the battle of 
Bauge, as in due place shall be observed. Notwithstanding of the entire affection of that family for 
several ages to, and dependence upon, the family of Lennox, yet the family of Buchanan did never, by 
way of concession or patronage, assume any part of that honourable family their armorial bearing; albeit 
it is evident that most other ordinary names of this kingdom, at some time or occasion, assumed some 
one part or other of their patron or superior's armorial bearing in conjunction with their own. As, for 
instance, most surnames of Tiviotdale and Douglasdale assume a part of the Douglasses arms; and those 
of Murrayland the arms of the Murrays. So that few of an equal character with that of Buchanan reserved 
their arms so free of any addition or mixture as that surname did ; which is no small argument, not only 
of the honour of the family, but also of the cause and reason of the first granting of these arms.
This Anselan Okyan, agreeable to the most ordinary and received genealogy of that surname, is reputed 
the progenitor of that surname, and first laird of Buchanan. His son and successor was called John ...
Auchmar  p.16-17
[The time of this Anselan Okyan his leaving Ireland is generally computed to be 1016, and 12th year of 
King Malcolm II.]
[From this I am estimating his birth as 30 years previous, so 986. - Bill]
[March 25 1005 Malcolm II ascended the throne. 
November 25 1034 Malcolm II died at Glamis, succeeded by Duncan I. ]
The Buchanans are descended from this Anselan, described as "one Anselan O'Kyan (or O'Cahan), son of 
a petty king of Ulster" [pg. 283, Strathendrick and its Inhabitants... by John S. Guthrie, Glasgow 
University Press, 1896]. He acquired lands in Lennox either by marriage or as a reward from King 
Malcolm II of Scotland.
Strathendrick and its Inhabitants
The book Strathendrick and its Inhabitants from Early Times by J. Guthrie Smith (1896), gives a very 
detailed account of Buchanan relationships. In general it is the same as the family bible and old family 
tree, but gives much more detailed information and historical sources, from the 13th. century until about 
1730.
http://www.electricscotland.com/history/nz/buchanan_andrew.htm
[An alternative pedigree]
A genealogy more recently researched for William George Buchanan of the Drummikill cadet line (who purchased the island of Clairinch in Loch Lomond in 1934 and bequeathed it to the Buchanan Society) shows another version of the earliest ancestors, abbreviated slightly as follows. [It is unknown what sources were used. 
-
Hided 
|
Macbethad
|
Maldoun Macbeth
|
Muredach
|
Absalom Macbed - steward to the Earl of Lennox 1216-1250 - had a charter to the isle of Clairinch 
confirmed by King Alexander II in 1231
|
Gilbert - Clerk to the earl of Lennox 1217 - 1274
Malcolm - did homage 1296 - served as a witness to a charter 1305
|
Maurice - served on a jury 1320
|
Maurice - married a daughter of Sir Walter Menteith of Ruskie
|
Walter - married Margaret Cunningham daughter of Laird of Glengarnock 
|
John Buchanan - fourth son of Walter Buchanan - married Janet de Lany
(daughter and heiress of John de Lany )
http://www.electricscotland.com/history/nz/buchanan_andrew.htm
[Several different accounts of the Limerick massacre of the Danish garrison can be found, including]
DA Fitzgerald, Thomas W H 
916 Ireland and her people 
F57 
UNIVERSITY OF TORONTO LIBRARY 
John James McGregor - 1829 - Ireland - 354 pages
California 
REGIONAL LIBRARY FACILITY 
FRIENDSHIP'S OFFERING:
BOSTON: PUBLISHED BY LEWIS AND SAMPSON. 1845. 
Boston Public Library, 
Though Turgesius was a Norwegian, it is not unnatural that the Irish should address him as a Dane; for 
the Danes were the most formidable of their invaders, and the mixed army of Turgesius included 
many of that nation. 
http://www.archive.org/stream/friendshipsoffer1845anon/friendshipsoffer1845anon_djvu.txt
Turgesius
See Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia
Ireland and her people; a library of Irish biography, together with a popular history of ancient and 
modern Erin, to which is added an appendix of copious notes and useful tables; supplemented with a 
dictionary of proper names in Irish mythology, geography, genealogy, etc" 
Brian Boru's son, Donough, was routed by Diarmait mac Maíl na mBó in the year 1058 [So Brian Boru 
was a contemporary of Anselan.]
The War of the Irish with the Foreigners (Irish: Cogad Gaedel re Gallaib) is a two-part medieval Irish
 chronicle that claims to record the depredations of the Vikings in Ireland and the Irish king Brian Boru
Fragmentary Annals of Ireland 
The Fragmentary Annals of Ireland are a Middle Irish combination of chronicle from various Irish annals
 and narrative history. They were compiled in the kingdom of Osraige, probably in the lifetime of 
Donnchad mac Gilla Patráic (died 1039), king of Osraige and of king of Leinster.
A POPULAR HISTORY OF IRELAND: FROM THE EARLIEST PERIOD TO THE EMANCIPATION OF THE 
CATHOLICS By Thomas D'Arcy McGee 
http://wapedia.mobi/en/M%C3%A1el_Sechnaill_mac_M%C3%A1ele_Ruanaid?t=2.
 Late in 845 the Norse chieftain Thorgest or Turgesius, who had emulated Feidlimid mac Crimthainn by 
attacking Clonmacnoise and Clonfert, was captured by Máel Sechnaill, and drowned in Lough Owel.
[William Buchanan of Auchmar's account on p.16 speaks of 1000 Irish youths disguised as maidens "or 
2000 as others say", but all discriptions deal with the same event.]
[One of these fair youths disguised as maidens was Anselan Okyan, called Anselan Buey Okyan (Buey 
meaning The Fair) according to Auchmar.]
[On the other hand, if Turgesius died in 845 as Wikipedia says, it is impossible Anselan was involved in 
his death, as Anselan lived 200 years later. It is very possible that Anselan was involved in some other 
attack on the Danes and the two stories became blended together. Perhaps Auchmar was following one 
of the histories labeled above as myth, which preceded his book by 500 years or more. On the other 
hand, the Wikipedia artcle allows variations of the name. May there be more than one Turgesius?  There 
seems to have been a second massacre of the Danes in Limerick by Brian Boru, might Auchmar be 
confusing them? - Bill]
http://www.nalanda.nitc.ac.in/resources/english/etext-project/history/ireland/book-2chapter6.html
... None of the Northern Hy-Nial took part in the battle--they had submitted to Brian, but they never 
cordially supported him. [Anselan would probably be counted as one of the Northern Hy-Nial/O'Neills]
______________________________________________________________________________
LENNOX - -Since the Earls of Lennox were the feudal superiors to the Lairds of Buchanan, it may be 
important to have a brief history of them.]
LENNOX, a name given to a large district in Dumbartonshire and Stirlingshire, which was erected into an 
earldom in the latter half of the 12th century. It embraced the ancient sheriffdom of Dumbarton and 
nineteen parishes with the whole of the lands round Loch Lomond, formerly Loch Leven, and the river of 
that name which glides into the estuary of the Clyde at the ancient castle of Dumbarton. 
On this river Leven, at Balloch, was the seat of Alwin, first earl of Lennox. It is probable that he was of 
Celtic descent, but the records are silent as to his part in history; that he was earl at all is only proved 
from the charters of his son, another Alwin, and he died some time before 1217. The second Alwin was 
father of ten sons, one of whom founded the clan Macfarlane, famous in the annals of the district, while 
another was ancestor of Walter of Farlane, who married the heiress of the 6th earl of Lennox. Maldouen, 
the 3rd earl, eldest of the sons of Alwin the younger, is an historical personage; he was a witness to the 
treaty between Alexander II., king of Scotland, and his brotherin-law the English king Henry III., at 
Newcastle in 1237, concerning the much disputed northern counties of England. His grandson, Malcolm, 
successor to the title, swore fealty to Edward I. in 1296; it was apparently his son, another Malcolm, the 
5th earl, who was summoned by Edward to parliament and entrusted with the important post of guarding 
the fords of the river Forth. But the 5th earl soon after gave his services to the party of Bruce, the cause 
of that family having been embraced by his father as early as 1292. As a result the English king bestowed 
the earldom on Sir John Menteith, who was holding it in 1307 while the real earl was with King Robert 
Bruce in his wanderings in the Lennox country. For his services he was rewarded with a renewal of the 
earldom and the keeping of Dumbarton Castle; he fell fighting for his country at Halidon Hill in 1333. His 
son Donald, the 6th earl, an adherent of King David II., left a daughter, Margaret, countess of Lennox, 
who was married to her kinsman the above-mentioned Walter of Farlane, nearest heir male of the 
Lennox family. 
In 1392, on the marriage of their grand-daughter Isabella, eldest daughter of Duncan, 8th earl, with Sir 
Murdoch Stewart, afterwards duke of Albany, the earldom was resigned into the hands of the king, who 
re-granted it to Earl Duncan, with remainder to the heirs male of his body, with remainder to Murdoch 
and Isabella and the heirs of their bodies begotten between them, with eventual remainder to Earl 
Duncan's nearest and lawful heirs. In 1 4 24, when Murdoch, then duke of Albany, succeeded in 
ransoming the poet king James I. from his long English captivity, the aged Earl Duncan went with the 
Scottish party to Durham. The next year, however, he suffered the fate of Albany, being executed 
perhaps for no other reason than that he was his father-in-law. The earldom was not forfeited, and the 
widowed duchess of Albany, now also countess of Lennox, lived secure in her island castle of Inchmurrin 
on Loch Lomond until her death. Of her four sons, none of whom left legitimate issue, the eldest died in 
1421, the two next suffered their father's fate at Stirling, while the youngest had to flee for his life to 
Ireland. Her daughter Isobel appears to have been the wife of Sir Walter Buchanan of that ilk. 
It was from Elizabeth, sister of the countess, that the next holders of the title descended. She was 
married to Sir John Stewart of Darnley (distinguished in the military history of France as seigneur 
d'Aubigny), whose immediate ancestor was brother of James, 5th high steward of Scotland. Their 
grandson, another Sir John Stewart, created a lord of parliament as Lord Darnley, was served heir to his 
great-grandfather Duncan, earl of Lennox, in 1473, and was designated as earl of Lennox in a charter 
under the great seal in the same year. Thereafter followed disputes with John of Haldane, whose wife's 
great-grandmother had been another of the three daughters of Duncan, 8th earl of Lennox, and in her 
right he contested the succession. Lord Darnley, however, appears to have silenced all opposition and for 
the last seven years of his life maintained his right to the earldom undisputed. Three of his younger sons 
were greatly distinguished in the French service, one being captain of Scotsmenat-arms, another premier 
homme d'armes, and a third marechal de France. Their elder brother Matthew, 2nd earl of this line, fell 
on Flodden Field, leaving by his wife Elizabeth, daughter of James, earl of Arran, and niece of James III., 
a son and successor John, who became one of the guardians of James V. and was murdered in 1526. His 
son Matthew, the 4th earl, played a great part in the intrigues of his time, and by his marriage with 
Margaret Douglas allied himself to the royal house of England as well as strengthening the ties which 
bound his family to that of Scotland; because Margaret was the daughter and heir of the 6th earl of 
Angus by his wife, Margaret Tudor, sister of King Henry VIII. and widow of King James IV. Though his 
estates were forfeited in 1545, Earl Matthew in 1564 not only had them restored but had the satisfaction 
of getting his eldest son Henry married to Mary, queen of Scots. The murder of Lord Darnley, now 
created earl of Rosse, lord of Ardmanoch and duke of Albany, took place in February 1567, and in July 
his only son James, by Mary's abdication, became king of Scotland. The old earl of Lennox, now 
grandfather of his sovereign, obtained the regency in 1570, but in the next year was killed in the attack 
made on the parliament at Stirling, being the third earl in succession to meet with a violent death. 
The title was now merged in the crown in the person of James VI. the next heir, but was soon after 
granted to the king's uncle Charles, who died in 1576, leaving an only child, the unfortunate Lady 
Arabella Stewart. 
Two years later the title was granted to Robert Stewart, the king's grand-uncle, second son of John, the 
3rd earl, but he in 1580 exchanged it for that of earl of March. On the same day the earldom of Lennox 
was given to Esme Stewart, first cousin of the king and grandson of the 3rd earl, he being son of John 
Stewart (adopted heir of the marechal d'Aubigny) and his French wife, Anne de la Queulle. In the 
following year Esme was created duke of Lennox, earl of Darnley, Lord Aubigny, Tarboulton and Dalkeith, 
and other favours were heaped upon him, but the earl of Ruthven sent him back to France where he died 
soon after. His elder son, Ludovic, was thereupon summoned to Scotland by James, who invested him 
with all his father's honours and estates, and after his accession to the English throne created him Lord 
Settrington and earl of Richmond (1613), and earl of Newcastle-upon-Tyne and duke of Richmond (1623), all these titles being in the peerage of England. After holding many appointments the 2nd duke died without issue in 1624, being succeeded in his Scottish titles by his brother Esme, who had already been created earl of March and Lord Clifton of Leighton Bromswold in the peerage of England (1619) and was seigneur d'Aubigny in France. Of his sons, Henry succeeded to Aubigny and died young at Venice; 
Ludovic, seigneur d'Aubigny, entered the Roman Catholic Church and received a cardinal's hat just before 
his death; while the three other younger sons, George, seigneur d'Aubigny, John and Bernard, were all 
distinguished as royalists in the Civil War. Each met a soldier's death, George at Edgehill, John at 
Alresford and Bernard at Rowton Heath. James, the eldest son and 4th duke of Lennox, was created 
duke of Richmond in 1641, being like his brother a devoted adherent of Charles I. 
With the death of his little son Esme, the 5th duke, in 1660, the titles, including that of Richmond, passed 
to his first cousin Charles, who had already been created Lord Stuart of Newbury and earl of Lichfield, 
being likewise now seigneur d'Aubigny. Disliked by Charles II., principally because of his marriage with "
la belle Stuart" - "the noblest romance and example of a brave lady that ever I read in my life," writes 
Pepys - he was sent into exile as ambassador to Denmark, where he was drowned in 1672. His wife had 
had the Lennox estates granted to her for life, but his only sister Katharine, wife of Henry O'Brien, heir 
apparent of the 7th earl of Thomond, was served heir to him. Her only daughter, the countess of 
Clarendon, was mother of Theodosia Hyde, ancestress of the present earls of Darnley. 
The Lennox dukedom, being to heirs male, now devolved upon Charles II., who bestowed it with the 
titles of earl of Darnley and Lord Tarbolton upon one of his bastards, Charles Lennox, son of the 
celebrated duchess of Portsmouth, he having previously been created duke of Richmond, earl of March 
and Lord Settrington in the peerage of England. The ancient lands of the Lennox title were also granted 
to him, but these he sold to the duke of Montrose. 
His son Charles, who inherited his grandmother's French dukedom of Aubigny, was a soldier of distinction, as were the 3rd and 4th dukes. The wife of the last, Lady Charlotte Gordon, as heir of her brother brought the ancient estates of her family to the Lennoxes; the additional name of Gordon being taken by the 5th duke of Richmond and of Lennox on the death of his uncle, the 5th duke of Gordon. In the next generation further honours were granted to the family in the person of the 6th duke, who was rewarded for his great public services with the titles of duke of Gordon and earl of - Kinrara in the peerage of the United Kingdom (1876) . 
See Scots Peerage, vol. v., for excellent accounts of these peerages by the Rev. John Anderson, curator 
Historical Dept. H.M. Register House; A. Francis Steuart and Francis J. Grant, Rothesay Herald. See also 
by William Fraser.
[The links to the following branches of the family cannot be be identified by Auchmar:]
The ancestor of the sept of the Macandeoies, is also reputed a cadet of the family, being reported to be a 
man of prudence and sagacity, who went to Argyllshire, along with Walter laird of Buchanan's daughter, 
married in the reign of king James III., to Oampbel, laird of Ardkinglass; who, in regard there was no 
other of his surname in that country, was thence termed Deoir, or a sojourner, whence his posterity 
w«re termed M'Andeoirs. This sept reside mostly in a place called Arskeot- nish, near the village of 
Kilmichael in Glasrie, as also upon the side of Lochow, in M«Lachlan of Inchchonners lands. The principal 
person of these, is M'Andeoir of Kilchoan, near Kilmichael in Glasrie. These are dependants of the laird of 
Ardkinglass, seeing their ancestor went first there with his lady.
The Macchruiters were of along time reputed Buchanans, having for divers ages resided in these lands, in 
the upper parts of the parishes of Buchanan and Callender, pertaining to the lairds of Buchanan, but are 
now wholly decayed in those parts. The few of that name now extant, reside in Argyllshire, but 
maintain no correspondence with the name of Buchanan. They obtained their surname, from some one 
of their ancestors being a harper, and were thence termed MacChruiters, or Harpersons.
The Macgreusichs are so denominated, from one of their ancestors being a cordiner, termed in Irish, 
Greusich, whence his posterity were thereafter termed Macgreusichs, or Cordiner-sons. These are of the 
same origin with the Macandeoirs; that Buchanan, who went to Argyllshire with the laird of Ardkinglass's 
lady, being ancestor to both septs. These M'Greusichs, reside in Gaunnans, upon the west side of 
Lochlong, and betwixt that and Loch- goyle in Ardkinglass's lands, being, as their friends the M'Andeoirs, 
dependants on that gentleman. There is also a small number residing upon Loch- goyle-side, termed 
M'Nuyers of Evan Glass, or Gray Hugh's race, of the same origin with the M'Greusichs, and own 
themselves Buchanans. Those already mentioned, are all the cadets of other denominations, directly or 
immediately descended off the family of Buchanan.

-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, pp.94-95
[The Irish Surname Project refers to him as Annselan O’ Cahan, son of Dermond O' Cahan, but 
interestingly matches Auchmar's information. This is a huge project to produce a genealogy of old Irish 
families from all of the old records still in existence. - Bill] 
This is the Buchanan Society of Glasgow:
http://www.buchanansociety.com/
The Buchanan Society
A Scottish Clan Society Instituted 1725 in Glasgow, Scotland.      Registered charity No: Sco 13679
The Secretary, The Buchanan Society, 18 Iddesleigh Avenue, Glasgow G62 8NT Scotland.
Tel: 0141 956 1939          International : Tel: +44 141 956 1939 
E-mail: risk@iddesleigh18.fsnet.co.uk
Clan Buchanan Society Int'l Inc.
Stephene Buchanan, Membership Secretary
P.O. Box 630179
Simi Valley, CA 93063
[I can find no website or permanent address for this society, which has branches around the world and 
armorial bearings.
Anselan had the following children:
+
2
M
i.
John MCCAUSLAN 2nd Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1020. 
Second Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, John 2nd Laird  of Buchanan-103"
2.
John MCCAUSLAN 2nd Laird of Buchanan  (Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1020 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
His son and successor was called John, in whose favours (as I have been informed by gentlemen of very 
much integrity, who asserted, they had seen the same in custody of the late laird of Buchanan,) there 
was a charter, granted by Alcuin, (as it would seem,) first earl of Lennox, in the reign of king Malcolm III. 
of the Wester Mains of Buchanan. But the late laird of Buchanan, in the decline of his age and judgment, 
having conveyed his estate to strangers, by that means many of his ancient evidents, as not conductive 
to the purpose then in hand, are lost, and probably this charter among others. And, therefore, not having 
seen the same, I cannot positively determine thereanent; but will only place this John, agreeable to the 
traditional account delivered of him, as son and successor to the first Anselan, and consequently second 
laird of Buchanan. John, his son and successor, conform to the same manner of account, was called 
Anselan, the second of that name, and third laird of Buchanan received a charter from Alcuin, first Earl of 
Lennox to the Wester Mains of Buchanan in the reign of King Malcolm III. 
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[April 25 1058 Malcolm III (Canmore) crowned.
November 13 1093 King Malcolm III (Canmore), last of the Celtic kings was killed at the Battle of Alnwick. 
Succeeded by Donald III.]
[The middle of Malcolm III's reign would be 1074. If we assume that John was about 40 at the that time, 
John's birth may be about 1034 (+/- 20)- Bill]
ACCOUNT
OF THE
MACAUSELANS.
IN regard the M'auselans are the only sept, or cadet of the family of Buchanan, though of another 
denomination, that have yet retained the ancient surname by which the family of Buchanan was 
denominated, I shall therefore treat of these in the first place, as being the eldest cadets, and those of 
that name in Scotland, and Ireland, complexly taken, of the best account of any other cadets of that 
family, whence they derived their origin. And though all the evidents of any considerable antiquity, which 
belonged to the baron M'Auselan, are long ago lost, so that all that can be obtained for illustration of the 
descent of that family, is a traditional account of the ancestor of the present family of M'Auselans, being 
a second son of one of the Auselans, generally reputed to be the first of the three so named, and who 
first acquired the of Buchanan; yet this account, though the exact time of the M'Auselans descent cannot 
be so exactly known, is fully confirmed by the evidents of the family of Buchanan, by which it is clear to a 
demonstration, that their surname for divers ages was M'Auselan, before the assumption of that of 
Buchanan, and that the laird of Buchanan, as also the barons M'Auselan in all times thereafter, owned 
the descent of that sept of M'Auselans, to be as above related. There was indeed a groundless pretence 
sometime made of the baron M'Auselan's being the elder branch of the family, seeing he still retained the 
ancient surname, being of the same import with the like pretensions made by the families of M'Arture, 
now Campbel of Strachyr, and M'Pherson of Cluny; the first pretending to be descended off the family of 
Lochow, while Oduin, before the assumption of Campbel, the other from that of M'Cattan, before that 
family assumed the surname of M'Intosh, and so both the more ancient. But as these long ago upon just 
grounds ceded their pretensions, so also have the M'Auselans. Their estate, by any of their documents 
now extant, was never known to amount to more than the little interest of about twenty pounds sterling 
of yearly rent, possessed by the late baron M'Auselan, which seems to have been the patrimony given to 
the first of that family, upon his descent off M'Auselan, laird of Buchanan. Nor is the supposition less 
groundless, that Sir Alexander, designed M'Auselan, a knight of Lennox, who acquired the addition to the 
armorial bearing of Buchanan at the battle of Bauge, might probably have been baron M'Auselan, and 
not Buchanan; seeing the latter surname was assumed some considerable time before that achievement; 
but this supposition is still further frivolous upon divers accounts, it not being probable, that a person of 
so little interest, could be knighted at such early times, while a great many of the best quality with 
difficulty obtained that honour, and if any of that family had so done, it is improbable they would have 
allowed Buchanan to assume these arms, without the least opposition at any time thereafter. It is also 
evident that the lairds of Buchanan used, and were designed by the surname of M'Auselan upon divers 
occasions, for a long time after the assumption of Buchanan; as for instance, in a charter by the earl of 
Lennox to Finlay Campsy, of a part of the lands so named, to which Maurice, laird of Buchanan, is 
witness by designation of M'Auselan, though grandchild to Gilbert, who first assumed Buchanan. So that 
it is no matter of admiration, that the monks of Pluscarden, who relate the adventure of Sir Alexander, 
and living at such vast distance-from the place of his residence, might happen to design him by his 
ancient surname, and best known to them, rather than by one so lately assumed.
The first of these M'Auselans I could find upon record, is Malcolm M'Auselan, inserted witness in a 
charter, by Malcolm, earl of Lennox, of the lands of Luss, in favour of John, laird thereof, in the reign of 
king Alexander III. This Malcolm (though few or none in these old charters are fully designed) seems to 
have been baron M'Auselan, the lairds of Buchanan having generally disused that of M'Auselan, before 
the date of this charter. I find no more of these recorded, but a traditional account of one M'Beth, baron 
M'Auselan, a person of uncommon stature and strength, who lived in king Robert the third's time, and 
seems to have been contemporary with Sir Alexander M'Auselan, or Buchanan, which makes the 
supposition already mentioned the more improbable; Alexander, last baron M'Auselan, having only one 
daughter, who was married to a gentleman of the name of Campbel, after whose death, she sold her 
interest to Sir Humphrey Colchoun of Luss, her superior. The remainder of the Scotch M'Auselans, reside 
mostly in Lennox. But the greatest number and of best account of that name, reside in the counties of 
Tyrone, Derry, and Down, in the north of Ireland. The ancestors of the principal men of these last, were 
Andrew, and John M'Auselans, sons of the baron M'Auselan, who went out of the paroch of Luss to that 
kingdom, in the latter part of the reign of king James VI. This Andrew had a son called Alexander, upon 
whom he bestowed a good education, by which means, becoming a prudent, active gentleman, he 
obtained a commission in the army, in time of the civil wars, in the reign of king Charles I. At the end of 
those wars, partly by debenture, partly by purchase, he acquired the estates of Hesh and Ardstaw in the 
county of Tyrone. He had two sons, the eldest whereof, Oliver of Resh, was one of the most sufficient 
gentlemen in these parts of that kingdom. In the year 1698, he was high-sheriff of that county, and 
influenced most of his own name throughout the country, to settle in and near his own estate, which at 
first scarce amounting to five hundred pound sterling of yearly rent, he increased in such a manner, as to 
leave to his son a clear estate of fifteen hundred pound per annum. He was twice married, and left by 
both a numerous issue. His successor hath a lodging in a little town called Strabane, where he ordinarily 
resides, and for which place he serves as member of parliament, as his father did for many years. Oliver's 
brother is called Andrew, having an estate called Ardocheyl, who, and a great many others of good 
circumstances of the name of M'Auselan, reside in the counties already mentioned.
xe "OF DENNIESTOUN, Miss-105"
John married Miss OF DENNIESTOUN . 
Auchmar says that Anselan's marriage to heiress of Denniestoun "Biut this account is not too generally 
adhered to.", p. 18
John and Miss had the following children:
+
3
M
i.
Anselan MCCAUSLAN 3rd Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1045. 
Third Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, Anselan 3rd Laird  of Buchanan-102"
3.
Anselan MCCAUSLAN 3rd Laird of Buchanan  (John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1045 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
his [John's] son and successor, conform to the same manner of account, was called Anselan, the second 
of that name, and third laird of Buchanan ; whose son and successor is reported to be Walter, the first of 
that name, being fourth laird of Buchanan
-
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Anselan had the following children:
+
4
M
i.
Walter MCCAUSLAN 4th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1070. 
Fourth Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, Walter 4th Laird  of Buchanan-101"
4.
Walter MCCAUSLAN 4th Laird of Buchanan  (Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1070 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
his [John's] son and successor, conform to the same manner of account, was called Anselan, the second 
of that name, and third laird of Buchanan ; whose son and successor is reported to be Walter, the first of 
that name, being fourth laird of Buchanan
-
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Walter had the following children:
+
5
M
i.
Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN 5th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1095. 
Fifth Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard 5th Laird  of Buchanan-100"
5.
Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN 5th Laird of Buchanan  (Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1095 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Walter, the first of that name, being fourth laird of Buchanan. This Walter's son and successor is reported 
to be Girald, or, as others say, and that with most probability, Bernard, being fifth laird of Buchanan. I 
have been credibly informed, that these three last mentioned lairds are recorded as witnesses in a 
mortification, granted by Aluin, earl of Lennox, of the lands of Cochnach, and others, to the old church of 
Kilpatrick, before the foundation of the monastery of Pasly; and I have seen myself a charter, by which 
that church, and lands mortified thereto, by the same Aluin, or an earl of that name his successor, are 
disponed to that abbacy, some little time after the foundation thereof. But, not having seen this other 
charter, in which these three lairds of Buchanan are inserted, I leave what concerns the same 
undetermined. Bernard, the last-mentioned laird of Buchanan, his son and successor was called 
Macbeath, being sixth laird of Buchanan. 
-
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[I can't place this couple in this family: John, 4th laird [of Campbell of Ardkinglas], married a daughter of 
the 5th laird of Buchanan from the Drymen district and their second son Dougal was married to Janet 
Graham of Boquhapple, near Thornhill - between the Lake of Menteith and Doune, the A873].
Girald had the following children:
+
6
M
i.
Macbeath MCCAUSLAN 6th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1120. 
Sixth Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath 6th Laird  of Buchanan-99"
6.
Macbeath MCCAUSLAN 6th Laird of Buchanan  (Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1120 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Walter, the first of that name, being fourth laird of Buchanan. This Walter's son and successor is reported 
to be Girald, or, as others say, and that with most probability, Bernard, being fifth laird of Buchanan. I 
have been credibly informed, that these three last mentioned lairds are recorded as witnesses in a 
mortification, granted by Aluin, earl of Lennox, of the lands of Cochnach, and others, to the old church of 
Kilpatrick, before the foundation of the monastery of Pasly; and I have seen myself a charter, by which 
that church, and lands mortified thereto, by the same Aluin, or an earl of that name his successor, are 
disponed to that abbacy, some little time after the foundation thereof. But, not having seen this other 
charter, in which these three lairds of Buchanan are inserted, I leave what concerns the same 
undetermined. 
Bernard, the last-mentioned laird of Buchanan, his son and successor was called Macbeath, being sixth 
laird of Buchanan.  And this proper name was very ordinary to the Macauslans, before the assumption of 
the surname of Buchanan, as also to that sept of that surname, who, after assumption of Buchanan, 
have retained as yet the ancient denomination; as, for instance, one Macbeath Macauslan, proprietor of 
that little interest called the barony of Macauslan, in the Lennox, who lived in the reign of king Robert III. 
and of whose uncommon stature and strength some accounts are retained to this very time. 
Macbeath, laird of Buchanan's age is evidenced, by the record after-specified, in favours of his son and 
successor Anselan, the third of that name, and seventh laird of Buchanan ...
-
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Macbeath had the following children:
+
7
M
i.
Anselan MCCAUSLAN 7th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1145. 
Seventh Generation

xe "MCCAUSLAN, Anselan 7th Laird  of Buchanan-96"
7.
Anselan MCCAUSLAN 7th Laird of Buchanan  (Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1145 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Macbeath, laird of Buchanan's age is evidenced, by the record after-specified, in favours of his son and 
successor Anselan, the third of that name, and seventh laird of Buchanan.  And this proper name was 
very ordinary to the Macauslans, before the assumption of the surname of Buchanan, as also to that sept 
of that surname, who, after assumption of Buchanan, have retained as yet the ancient denomination; as, 
for instance, one Macbeath Macauslan, proprietor of that little interest called the barony of Macauslan, in 
the Lennox, who lived in the reign of king Robert III. and of whose uncommon stature and strength 
some accounts are retained to this very time. Macbeath, laird of Buchanan's age is evidenced, by the 
record after-specified, in favours of his son and successor Anselan, the third of that name, and seventh 
laird of Buchanan; who is ordinarily termed, in any record in which he is mentioned, Anselan, son of 
Macbeath, and sennescallus, or chamberlain, to the earl of Lennox," in written mortifications in the 
chartulary of the abbacy of Pasly. This Anselan the third, with Gilbert and Methlen his two sons, are 
inserted witnesses in a charter, granted by Malduin, earl of Lennox, to Gilmore, son of Maoldonich, of the 
lands of Luss, in the beginning of the reign of king Alexander II. and they are designed in that charter 
the earl's clients, or vassals. This Anselan the third, besides Gilbert his eldest son and successor, who first 
assumed the surname of Buchanan, and Methlen his second son, ancestor of the M'Millans, had a third 
son called Colman, ancestor of the MacColmans, as shall be elsewhere more fully illustrated.
Anselan, third of that name, and seventh laird of Buchanan, having succeeded his father Macbeath, as 
already said, obtained from Malduin, earl of Lennox, a charter of an Island in Lochlomond, called 
Clareinch, dated in the year 1225, witnesses, Dougal, Gilchrist, and Amelyn, the carl's brethren. The 
same Anselan is also mentioned as witness in a charter, granted by the earl of Lennox, of the lands of 
Dalmanoch in mortification to the old church of Kilpatrick, by the designation of Absalon de Buchanan ; 
Absalon being the same name with Anselan, as has been already observed. Though that of Clareinch is 
the most ancient can be found in this age, in relation to the family of Buchanan, nevertheless, it is very 
pre- sumeable, there were other charters of greater antiquity belonging to that family, the first of them 
found upon record being of that repute, and charters having become customary so long before that time 
as is partly instanced by the original charter of Luss, which was of an anterior date to this of Clareinch; 
yet the same Anselan, with two of his sons, Gilbert and Methlen, are designed the earl's clients, or 
vassals, therein. I have been also informed, by some of very good judgment, who went thorow the late 
Buchanan's evidences when entire, that they observed one little charter, being the original, of as great 
antiquity as any other in the kingdom, being reckoned to be granted in or about the reign of king David 
the I. which, with other of these evidences, having since gone through so many hands, may, upon very 
good grounds, be presumed to be neglected, or rather lost.
The isle of Clareinch was the slugorn, or call of war, proper to the family of Buchanan ; such like being 
usual in all other families in these times, and for some following ages. So soon as this call was raised 
upon any alarm, the word Clareinch was sounded aloud from one to another, in a very little time, 
throughout the whole country : upon hearing of which, all effective men belonging to the laird of 
Buchanan with the utmost diligence, repaired well armed to the ordinary place of rendezvous, which, 
when the lairds resided in that island, was upon aground upon the shore opposite thereto. That which in 
these more modern times came in place of the slugorn was the fire-cross, being a little stick with a cross 
on one end of it, the extremities of which were burnt, or made black by fire. This cross, being once set a-going, was carried through with such dispatch, as in a few hours would alarm the people of a vast 
extent of ground.
-
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[received the deed to Careinch in 1225 from Malduin, earl of Lennox.]
[Witness of a charter in the beginning of the reign of King Alexander II, I am estimating that as 1215. 
Since his sons were also witnesses,  I would estimate Anselan as being about age 60, so born about 1145. 
This requires adjustment to the estimated births of his father and grandfather. - Bill]
[December 6 1214 King Alexander II crowned at Scone. 
July 8 1249 King Alexander II died on Isle of Kerrara, Oban Bay.]
[Anselan received a charter to Clareinch from Malduin Earl of Lennox in 1225. If he was born about 1145 
he would have been 80 years old. I suspect that the other charter was granted closer to 1235, making 
Anselan closer to age 60 when he received the charter for Clarerinch.]
Anselan had the following children:
+
8
M
i.
Gilbert BUCHANAN 8th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1190. 
xe "MCCAUSLAND, Methlan-97"

9
M
ii.
Methlan MCCAUSLAND .
Ancestor of the M'Millan clan
AN
ACCOUNT
of The
MACMILLANS.
NEXT in antiquity to the MacAuselans is the sept of the Macmillans ; for, as the 
MacAuselans are generally reputed to be descended of An- selan, first of that name 
laird of Buchanan, so the MacMillans' progenitor is known to be second son to Anselan, 
the third of that name. And though the first be the more ancient, this in respect of 
number is by far the most considerable of any other cadet of whatever denomination. 
There is no document, in so far as I could discover, in the hands of any of this sept, to 
clear their descent off the family of Buchanan, but only an uncontro- verted tradition, 
which asserts their ancestor to be brother to the first who assumed the surname of 
Buchanan. Which is the more to be relied on, in regard I find the same to agree in all 
respects with a written document lately found, by which that descent is clearly 
illustrated, by a charter, by Malduin, earl of Lennox, to Gilmore, son of Muldonich, of 
the estate of Luss, in the reign of king Alexander II. in which, Anselan, laird of 
Buchanan, with Gilbert, his eldest son, who first assumed the surname of Buchanan, 
and Methlan, his second son, ancestor of the MacMillans, are inserted witnesses. So 
that, notwithstanding a fond opinion obtained for some time, of their obtaining that 
denomination from their ancestor's being bald, in Irish Maoilain, and thence 
MacMailans, or bald-man's sons, yet there is not the least show of reason for any such 
supposition, after such a clear evident for evincing the contrary, and a more probable 
reason of that denomination is found out. For it is clear, that Mac Methlan can be no 
otherwise pronounced in Irish than as the MacMillans pronounce their name.
This Methlan is not found to have left his native country, but having a great many sons, 
one or two of these went to Kintyre, upon account of a friendship then much cultivated 
betwixt the families of the great MacDonald and Buchanan; the first being some small 
time before allied with the principal person of the O'Kyans, of which family that of 
Buchanan was originally descended. By this means Methlan's sons, being Buchanan's 
grandchildren, met with a very kind reception from the lord MacDonald, who, for his 
service, allowed to one of them a considerable estate in Knapdale, in the south-west 
part of Kintyre, who for his heroic achievements was termed " the great MacMillan of 
Knap," as is asserted by an account of his family, conveyed to my hands by MacMillan 
of Dunmore in Knapdale, being the principal man of that name, or sept. 
Who further adds, that in all times bygone, as also at present, he, and his whole sept 
did, and do own themselves to be descended of the family of Buchanan; and that one 
of his ancestors caused build a very pretty chapel in Kilmorie of Knap, for devotion and 
burying-place, in which there is a fine cross, with divers other figures neatly cut in 
stone, and a great many characters engraven thereon scarcely legible, which intimate 
the founder's name to have been AEneas MacMillan, who, or some of his ancestors, 
built a large tower in addition to Castlesuin, or MacSuin's castle, the other part of that 
castle, according to tradition, being built by the progenitor of the Maxwells, upon his 
first coming from Ireland, and settling for some time in Knapdale, being descended of 
the great clan MacSuin in Ireland, and then naming the castle MacSuin's castle, or 
Castlesuin, as now termed. 
It seems very probable, that upon MacSuin's leaving that country, and settling in the 
southern parts, his neighbour MacMillan got possession of the castle, and upon that 
occasion built the additional tower thereto, which he termed "MacMillan's tower," as 
the first was denominated from MacSuin. There is a tradition, that a brother of 
MacMillan, who went first from this country with him in the time of the civil wars after 
the death of king Alexander III. went from Argyllshire to Galloway, and settled in that 
country, being the progenitor of the MacMillans of Galloway. The principal man of 
these is MacMillan of Brockloch. There are also divers other heritors, and a good 
number of the vulgar sort of the name in that country, who acknowledge their origin to 
be the same with the MacMillans of Argyllshire.
The cause of the MacMillans losing the greatest part of their estate in Knapdale, is 
reported to have been their joining the lord MacDonald their superior, in aiding James, 
earl of Douglas, in that rebellion against king James II. in the year 1455. Another of 
Methlan's sons, being brother to Mac- Millan first of Knap, went to Perthshire, and 
settled in Lawers. This MacMillan had ten sons, whom Chalmers, then laird of Lawers, 
offering by force to dispossess of these lands possessed by them, could not get the 
same effectuated till he obtained from king David II. letters of fire and sword against 
them, which orders, with the assistance of the sheriff of that shire, he with the utmost 
difficulty put in execution, obliging most of them to abandon that country, and go to 
their friends in Argyllshire ; whence some of these returning in process of time, 
obtained a part of their ancient possessions in Lawers, and were ancestors to the 
MacMillans (though much decayed) in Ardownaig, and other parts of Braidalbin. This 
account is asserted by a brieve (of which I had a transcript) obtained some years ago 
by one Serjeant MacMillan, descended from the MacMillans of GaHoway, in the gray 
dragoons, from one of the kings of arms in England. By this brieve it is further asserted, that it was Methlan himself that settled in Lawers, and that some of his sons went first and settled in Argyllshire, upon the said letters of fire and sword being put in execution against them by Chalmers, laird of Lawers.
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xe "MCCAUSLAND, Colman-98"
10
M
iii.
Colman MCCAUSLAND .
ACCOUNT
MACCOLMANS.
THE ancestor of the Maccolmans was Colman, third son to Anselan, third of that name, 
and seventh laird of Buchanan, being brother to Gilbert, who first assumed the 
surname of Buchanan, and to Methlan, ancestor of the MacMillans. Column was an 
ordinary Christian name of old in this kingdom; as, for instance, Colman, bishop of 
Lindisfarn in Northumberland, and afterwards abbot of Icolmkill, in the reign of king 
Ferquhard I. Also one of the Scottish nobility, who made an oration against concluding 
the league with France, in the reign of king Achaius.
The time and cause of this Colman's son's going to Argyllshire is not very evident, but 
it seems very probable to be in the reign of king Alexander III. within a short space of 
his cousin MacMillan's going into that country, whose good reception there might have 
been the principal motive of his cousin MacColman's following him. The only written 
document I find relating to the MacColmans is a charter, or life-rent-right, granted by 
Duncan MacPharlane, of a part of his lands, to Christian Campbell, daughter to Sir 
Colin Campbell of Lochow his lady, dated in the year 1395, and in the reign of king 
Robert III. The trustees employed by Sir Colin to see this right completed, were John 
Campbell, dean of Argyll, and John MacColman.
I had an account of the MacColmans transmitted to me by that judicious and learned 
gentleman, the reverend Mr. Alexander MacColman, minister of Lismore and Appin, 
which justly deserves the greater regard and credit, seeing it exactly agrees with that 
sent me by MacMillan of Dunmore, near the same time, in relation to his clan, as also 
with a written document, which came not to my hands several years after receipt of 
the said account. That delivered me by Mr. Alexander MacColman concerning the 
origin of that sept, asserts, that the ancestors of the MacMillans and MacColmans were 
brethren of him who first assumed the surname of Buchanan, though the same be not 
testified by any written document, but by a continued and inviolable tradition handed 
down from one generation to another, with which they are satisfied, always cheerfully 
acknowledging their original descent to be of the family of Buchanan, though they 
cannot so very distinctly tell the manner and circumstances of the same.
There is also a very great evidence of the MacColmans' blood-relation to the name of 
Buchanan, from this, that notwithstanding of the great distance betwixt the respective 
residences of these two names, and upon that account the seldomness of their mutual 
converse, or correspondence with one another, yet they have the same inviolable love 
and entire respect for the name of Buchanan, that they have for one another of their 
nearest relations, although no preceding acquaintance or good offices intervene.
Moreover, although the MacColmans have resided in Mucarn, and other adjacent 
places in Argyllshire, upwards of four hundred years, yet they never gave any bond of 
Manrie, or other acknowledgement, to, or had the least dependance upon, any person 
or clan in these parts, though there is no other sept in the same circumstances in all 
those countries, but what are obliged to give some such bond or acknowledgement. 
The principal places in which these reside are Mucarn, and Benedera loch in Upper 
Lorn, in the shire of Argyll. The men of best account of them are Mr. John MacColman, 
son to the said Mr. Alexander, who hath a little interest in Lismore; also another Mr. 
John, brother to the same Mr. Alexander, who hath ten sons, all men of good repute.
Besides these, there are sixty effective men of that name in these parts.
There is another sept of these MacColmans in Kintail, in the earl of Seaforth's land, 
descended of one Mr. Murdo, (or, as the Irish term it,) Murcho MacColman, who went 
from Argyllshire into that country, near two hundred years ago. These are termed in 
Irish MacAmhaisdirs, or Mastersons, but term themselves in English Mur- chisons, from 
Murcho, their ancestor's ancient name. The principal man of these is Murchison of 
Ouchtertyre, in the parish of Locheilg in Kintail. These term themselves Dowes when in 
the Lowlands, and assert the Dowes upon Forth and other places to be descended of 
them, which Dowe of Arnhall, the principal person of that name, in a great measure 
owned, there being upon that account great intimacy betwixt the late laird of 
Buchanan and him; but both their estates being gone to other families, through want 
of male issue, that correspondence betwixt the two names is ceased. 
Auchmar, pp.88-89
http://macinnes.org/septs/macmaster.html
So in Auchmar and the Reverend Murchison we appear to have found the answer to 
our mystery in Kintail.
The ‘Buchanan’ MacMasters or Mastersons of Kintail did not vanish – only the 
MacMaster name – which changed to became MacColman, Murchison, Dove, Dow, or 
some other derivative of these names.
Eighth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Gilbert 8th Laird  of Buchanan-95"
8.
Gilbert BUCHANAN 8th Laird of Buchanan  (Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1190 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Anselan, third of that name, and seventh laird of Buchanan, having succeeded his father Macbeath, as 
already said, obtained from Malduin, earl of Lennox, a charter of an Island in Lochlomond, called 
Clareinch, dated in the year 1225, witnesses, Dougal, Gilchrist, and Amelyn, the carl's brethren. The 
same Anselan is also mentioned as witness in a charter, granted by the earl of Lennox, of the lands of 
Dalmanoch in mortification to the old church of Kilpatrick, by the designation of Absalon de Buchanan ; 
Absalon being the same name with Anselan, as has been already observed. Though that of Clareinch is 
the most ancient can be found in this age, in relation to the family of Buchanan, nevertheless, it is very 
pre- sumeable, there were other charters of greater antiquity belonging to that family, the first of them 
found upon record being of that repute, and charters having become customary so long before that time ; as is partly instanced by the original charter of Luss, which was of an anterior date to this of Clareinch; 
yet the same Anselan, with two of his sons, Gilbert and Methlen, are designed the earl's clients, or 
vassals, therein. I have been also informed, by some of very good judgment, who went thorow the late 
Buchanan's evidences when entire, that they observed one little charter, being the original, of as great 
antiquity as any other in the kingdom, being reckoned to be granted in or about the reign of king David 
the I. which, with other of these evidences, having since gone through so many hands, may, upon very 
good grounds, be presumed to be neglected, or rather lost.
The isle of Clareinch was the slugorn, or call of war, proper to the family of Buchanan ; such like being 
usual in all other families in these times, and for some following ages. So soon as this call was raised 
upon any alarm, the word Clareinch was sounded aloud from one to another, in a very little time, 
throughout the whole country : upon hearing of which, all effective men belonging to the laird of 
Buchanan with the utmost diligence, repaired well armed to the ordinary place of rendezvous, which, 
when the lairds resided in that island, was upon aground upon the shore opposite thereto. That which in 
these more modern times came in place of the slugorn was the fire-cross, being a little stick with a cross 
on one end of it, the extremities of which were burnt, or made black by fire. This cross, being once set a-
going, was carried through with such despatch, as in a few hours would alarm the people of a vast 
extent of ground.
-
Gilbert his son, being first of that name, and eight laird, and who first, by any thing can be collected, 
assumed the surname of Buchanan, was senescal, or chamberlain, to the earl of Lennox, which office his 
father Anselan enjoyed for some tune. There is a charter of confirmation of that of Clareinch, and some 
other lands of Buchanan, granted in favour of this Gilbert, by king Alexander II. in the seventeenth year 
of his reign, and of our Lord 1231. The same Gilbert is also inserted witness in a charter, granted by 
Malcolm, earl of Lennox, discharging the abbot and monks of Pasly of all service and duties prestable by 
them to the earl, for any lands mortified by him or his ancestors to that abbacy; which charter is dated at 
Renfrew, in year 1274. To Gilbert succeeded his son
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, pp.20-21
[received charter for land from King Alexander II in 1231 and witnessed a charter in 1274 which would 
make him a very old man.]
Gilbert had the following children:
+
11
M
i.
Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN 9th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1220. 
+
12
M
ii.
Allan BUCHANAN 1st of Lenny  was born estimated 1225. 
+
13
M
iii.
John BUCHANAN of Stainifleet  was born estimated 1230. 
Ninth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice 9th Laird  of Buchanan-91"
11.
Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN 9th Laird of Buchanan  (Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1220 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
To Gilbert succeeded his son, Sir Maurice, first of that name, and ninth laird of Buchanan, as is evident 
by a charter of confirmation, by Malcolm, earl of Lennox, in favours of Malcolme M'Edolf, son to Gilmichal 
M'Edolf of West Cameron, of the lands of Gartachorrans, dated at Bellach, in the year 1274. Witnesses to 
the said charter, Patrick Graham, Maurice of Buchanan, and Duncan, son of Aulay, knights. 
Sir Maurice had three sons, Maurice his successor, 
Allan, who first married the heiress of Lenny, 
and John, always reputed ancestor of Buchanan of Auchneiven. 
He was succeeded by his son Sir Maurice, second of that name
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.21
ACCOUNT
OF THE
ORIGIN OF THE SPITTELS.
THERE is no written document to evince the circumstances of the descent of the name of Spit- Tel off 
the family of Buchanan; though an un-controverted tradition, and a continued pretension by the family of 
Buchanan to the name of Spittel, and the acquiescence of the generality of that name in the pretensions 
made to the same, in a great measure clear the origin of the name of Spittel to be, as is generally 
asserted.
The ancestor of that name was son to Sir Maurice Buchanan of that ilk, who flourished in the reign of 
king Alexander III. The reason given of his assuming the surname of Spittel being, that he was admitted 
into that order of knighthood called knight-templars, or cruch-backs, which order was instituted about 
the eleventh century of the Christian epocha, for defence of the Christian religion, more especially of the 
temple and cross of Jerusalem, which, as the Roman legend has it, was miraculously found by Helena, 
mother to Constantine the first Christian emperor, after much search made by her orders in and about 
the place of our Saviour's crucifixion. For preserving it, the empress caused a stately temple to be built at 
Jerusalem, and dedicated to the holy cross, whence in after ages a great many, if not innumerable, 
pieces were sent, by the popes of Rome, of that supposed cross, for good sums of money, to popish 
princes, and other potentates, insomuch that one of their own writers affirms, that if the thousand part 
of these pieces had been of the real cross, it would have soon broken the back of Simon of Cyrene in 
carrying it. However, the above order of knights was chiefly instituted for defence of that cross, and 
having the portraiture thereof betwixt their shoulders, upon their upper garments, they were thence 
termed cross-backs, or cruch-backs, and from the temple in which the cross was kept, templars. There 
were a vast deal of lands throughout Christendom mortified to this order, for keeping up hospitality, in 
entertaining such poor pilgrims, as in those days of superstition were going to the holy land, to perform 
their devotions; whence their order obtained the name of the hospitallers, and their lands Spittels, many 
of which yet retain that name. And though the templars and they seem to have been originally of one 
order, yet they afterwards were distinct, the templars being afterwards known by the name of knights of 
St. John, afterwards Rhodes, and now of Malta. However that be, the hospitallers became in process of 
time so scandalous for their wicked lives, that the pope, upon pretence thereof, or, as some say, 
instigated by Philip the Fair, king of France, who had formed a design of getting his sons invested in a 
great part of these knights' lands, in the year 1330, sent his positive orders, or bulls, to exterminate this 
whole order, and sequestrate their lands. These orders were for most part observed, most of these 
knights being, without mercy, put to the sword, except such as were preserved by some potent friends. 
The pope shortly repenting his orders in giving so many lands, devoted once for sacred, to be now 
bestowed on secular uses, recalled his promise of giving the same to the French king and others, and 
thereafter mortified these lands to the knights of St. John above-mentioned. Nevertheless, a great part of 
these lands, in despite of all the pope could do, were kept by those laicks who first seized the same, 
upon the extinction of the hospitallers.
Among others who kept their part, was this son of Buchanan, who, from these Spittel lands possessed by 
him, assumed the surname of Spittel, (his son being Adam Spittel of Ledlewans,) besides which, he had 
Easter Baleun, Blairwhoish, and other lands in the parishes of Strathblane and Killearn, being a 
considerable estate with the Spittel lands. All which, having made a purchase, as it would seem, of some 
other place, the said Adam Spittel disponed in favour of his cousin Walter, laird of Buchanan, by charter, 
dated in the year 1394, and fourth year of the reign of king Robert III.
This Adam was ancestor to Spittel of Leuchart in Fife, which family, since that of Buchanan was extinct, 
has kept no manner of correspondence with any of the name, so that neither by perusal of any of his 
evidences, nor by converse with the gentleman himself, could I have the opportunity of obtaining a 
distinct account of the time and manner of his acquiring his present estate, nor the reason of his omitting 
to marshall any part of Buchanan's armorial bearing with that he now bears. The most obvious reason to 
'me of his so doing is, that his predecessor being in orders, and by that means prohibited an armorial 
bearing, his successors, if they acquired their estate by marriage, assumed those of the family they 
matched into; if by purchase, arms most suitable to their own inclination. Spittel of Leuchart, being a 
gentleman of a good estate in the shire of Fife, is the principal person of that sept ; there being, besides 
those in Fife, divers of that name in the Straith of Monteath, and other places of this kingdom.
Auchmar, pp.90-92
Sir had the following children:
+
14
M
i.
Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN 10th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1260. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Allan-92"

15
M
ii.
Allan BUCHANAN .
xe "OF LENNY, Miss-94"Allan married Miss OF LENNY . 
heiress of Lenny
xe "BUCHANAN, John-93"

16
M
iii.
John BUCHANAN .
 Ancestor of Buchanan of Auchneiven
xe "BUCHANAN, Allan 1st of  Lenny-531"
12.
Allan BUCHANAN 1st of Lenny  (Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1225 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
The first son of the laird of Buchanan I find upon record, who married the heiress of Lenny, was Allan, 
second son to Gilbert, laird of Buchanan, in the reign of king Alexander III. There is no charter, or other 
document in Lenny's hands, that any manner does testify this first marriage ; any discovery I obtained 
thereof, being collected from an ancient manuscript register of the earl of Lennox's, and his vassal's 
charters, among the records of Dunbartonshire, in which I found a charter by Malcolm, earl of Lennox, 
upon resignation of Allan of Lenny, in the earl's hands of the lands of Drumquhassil, in favour of John, 
son to the said Allan, for payment of four pennies of blench-duty if demanded. This charter (as do divers 
other old ones) wants date, but by a subsequent charter is found to be in the reign of king Alexander III., 
as appears by a charter by Gilmichael M'Edolf of Wester Cameron, termed therein Cameron Tim- pane, to 
Malcolm M'Edolf, his son, of the lands of Gartachorrans, dated in the year 1247, in which charter Allan is 
one of the witnesses, by designation of Allan Buchanan de Lenny. Drumquhassil seems to have been the 
patrimonial estate got by this Allan, at the time he came off the family of Buchanan, or from his father, 
at the time of his marriage with the heiress of Lenny.
Auchmar, p. 66
The armorial bearing of Buchanan of Lenny, is Buchanan, being a lion rampant sable, armed, and
langued gules, within a double tressure, flowered and counterflowered, with flower-de-luces of the 
second, quartered with those of Lenny, being sable, a cheveron, betwixt two bear heads erazed in chief, 
and a boar head as the former in base, argent; muzzled gules; on the chief point of the cheveron, a 
cinque foil of the first; first and third, Buchanan; second and fourth, Lenny. Crest, a helmet suiting his 
quality. Motto, Nobilis est Ira Leonis*
* Chartulary of Dunbartonshire.
Auchmar, p.72
xe "LENNY, Miss-532"
Allan married Miss LENNY . 
They had the following children:
+
17
M
i.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Stainifleet-632"
13.
John BUCHANAN of Stainifleet  (Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1230 in Stirling, Scotland. 
FAMILY OF AUCHNEIVEN.
THE first of this family was John, third son to Gilbert, laird of Buchanan, who first assumed the surname 
of Buchanan, whose eldest son was Sir Maurice, his second Allan, first of Lenny, and the third John, first 
of Stainiflet, who is inserted witness in a charter, by Malcolm, earl of Lennox, to Patrick Lindsay, of the 
lands of Bonneil. He is also, with John Napier of Kilmahew, Allan of Faslane, father to Walter of Faslane, 
afterward lord of Lennox, and Maurice Galbraith, witness to a charter, by the same earl, to the said 
Patrick, of his being tosheagor, or principal forrester, of Lennox. * And though these charters want dates, 
yet, by comparing them with those having dates,
* Chartulary of Dunbartonshire.
granted to some of these witnesses themselves, and others in which they were witnesses, they are found 
to be in the latter part of the reign of king Alexander III. So that Gilbert, being the very first found by any 
manner of record to have assumed the name of Buchanan, and he having flourished in the latter part of 
the reign of king Alexander II. and a good part of the reign of king Alexander III in which last the above-
mentioned John is inserted witness by designation of Buchanan, he cannot, with any shadow of reason, 
be presumed any other than son to the said Gilbert, it being clear to a demonstration, there were no 
others designed by that surname at that time, but himself and his children; all others descended before, 
as the MacAuselans, MacMillans, and MacColmans, having either retained the ancient surname, or 
assumed others, in use at this present time. And as it is fully evident, the ancestor of this family was a 
son of the laird of Buchanan, by the continued acquiescence of the lairds of Buchanan, although there 
were no other evidence to that purpose ; so hence it appears, that the pretension of Auchneiven's being 
a cadet of Lenny, can by no means be admitted, in regard Allan, who first married the heiress of Lenny, 
and the above-mentioned John were cotemporaries, and both witnesses in the charter mentioned, and 
some others, by designations not in the least insinuating any thing as the latter's being either son or 
cadet of the former. Auchneiven's ancestor seems to have possessed a considerable interest in 
Dunbartonshire, being not only proprietor of Stainiflet, Auchinreoch, and some other moor lands near the 
town of Dumbarton, but also of a great deal of ground next adjacent to the town itself, known as yet by 
the name of Buchanan's Aikers; likewise a part of the ground upon which many of the houses of that 
town are built, there being paid ground-mail for the same by the builders and possessors. Those lands 
continued with this family till about the year 1590, when John Buchanan of Stainiflet sold them with all 
his other interest in and about Dunbarton, being mostly now in possession of Sir James Smollet, as are 
also the most ancient evidents that pertained to that family; all now in custody of the present Auchneiven, being only the evidents of Auchneiven and Lecher, of a more modern date than those of Stainiflet.
Auchmar, p.74
John had the following children:
+
18
M
i.
George BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1440. 
Tenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice 10th Laird  of Buchanan-90"
14.
Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN 10th Laird of Buchanan  (Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1260 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Sir Maurice, second of that name, being tenth laird of Buchanan, as is clear by a charter, by Donald, earl 
of Lennox, to Maurice of Buchanan, son and heir to Sir Maurice of Buchanan, of the lands of Sallochy, 
with confirmation of the upper part of the carrucate of Buchanan. This charter, as do many others 
granted in these times, wants a date, but, by the subsequent service, the time in which this Maurice lived 
is plainly made appear, he being one of the members of an inquest, by Malcolm, earl of Lennox, for 
serving of Mathild, Elizabeth, and Forveleth Lermonths, heirs- portioners to Thomas Lermonth of 
Cremennan, their father; the said inquest being at the kirk of Killearn, in the year 1320, and fourteenth 
year of the reign of king Robert I. J The other members
* Chartulary of Dunbartonshire. ( Charter among Dun- barton's old evidences. J Extract of the above 
service from the Chartulary of Dunbartonshire.
thereof, besides Buchanan, were Duncan M'Edolf, Eugen Mackessan of Garchell, Malcolm Macmurdac, 
Kessan Innes of Finicktenent, Gillespic Macsawel of Ledlewan, John M'Gilchrist, Malise Macalbaine of 
West Finnick, Gilchrist Mackessan, Gilbert Macpaddo, Gilchrist Macgilbert, and Pad- mund Maceggo. All 
which gentlemen may, upon good grounds, be supposed to have been of most considerable interest and 
repute of any others in that country and age; yet in this there is not the least memory of any of them 
extant, except of Buchanan, a very remarkable instance of that vast alteration and decay surnames and 
other affairs frequently meet with in an ordinary tract of time.
As his father Sir Maurice had, so did also this gentleman adhere to the cause and interest of his prince 
and country, with much resolution, constancy and valour, to the evident hazard of his life and fortune, in 
imitation of his brave patron, that eminent patriot, Malcolm, earl of Lennox: who, with the lairds of 
Buchanan and Luss, the first the greatest nobleman, the others the best gentlemen, and of best repute 
and circumstances of any others in these parts of this kingdom, could never, by any artifice used by the 
kings of England, be induced to do any action prejudicial to their own honour, or the interest of their 
native country ; as is demonstrable by their refusing to sign the ragman roll, which few others, or rather 
none, of any tolerable repute, or circumstances, either durst or did decline. There is a traditional account, 
that king Robert Bruce, after his defeat at Dalree, near Straithfillan, by Macdougal, lord of Lorn, and his 
adherents, came all alone, on foot, along the north side of Lochlomond, (being the most rugged way of 
any other of this kingdom,) the day after that battle, to the pastle of Buchanan ; where, being joyfully 
received, and for some days entertained, he was secretly conveyed, by the earl of Lennox and Buchanan, 
to a place of safety. This report is the more probable, in regard there is a cave near the shore of 
Lochlomond, in Buchanan parish, termed the King's Cave; it being reported, that king Robert lay over 
night in that cave, in his journey towards Buchanan.
This Maurice lived to a considerable age, having obtained a charter of the lands of Buchanan from king 
David Bruce, in the beginning of his reign. He is also witness, in the same reign, in a charter, by Donald, 
earl of Lennox, to Finlay Campsy, of a part of the lands of Campsy, being designed in that charter, 
Maurice Macausland, dominus, or laird of Buchanan: whence it is pretty plain, that though the surname 
of Buchanan was assumed by Gilbert, this Maurice his grandfather, yet he and some of his successors 
seem to have used their ancient surname as their humours or inclinations led them, Maurice the second 
his successor was Sir Walter, second also of that name, and eleventh laird. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.22
[served in an inquest in 1320]
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~corpusnobiliorum/lennox.html
VI. Donald, sixth Earl of Lennox, succeeded his father in 1333. Very little is recorded regarding him. He 
adhered to the cause if King David Bruce, and some of his lands in Lothian, including Easter Glencorse 
and others, were forfeited. His name, however, chiefly occurs in connection with charters granted by him, 
but these need not be specially enumerated, the rather as they are all without date. One charter may be 
noted, the granting to Maurice Buchanan the lands of Buchanan and Sallechy, giving him jurisdircion over 
life and limb on these lands, provided those condemned were put to death on the Earl's own gallows at 
the Cathir.
AN
ACC0UNT
of The
ORIGIN OF THE MACMAURICES,
THERE are two several septs of these MacMaurices, descended off the family of Buchanan at two 
different junctures of time. The ancestor of the first of these septs, for any thing can he found, was an 
illegitimate son of Maurice, second of that name, laird of Buchanan, in the latter part of the reign of king 
Robert I., and beginning of king David II. The first of these I find upon record, is Arthur M'Maurice, being 
witness in a charter by Eugen M'Kessan of Garchel, in favour of Celestin M'Lachlan, and Arthur M'Neil, of 
that part of the estate of Garchel, called Auchintroig, Gartclach, &c. in the reign of king Robert III. Those 
of this race reside mostly in the heads of Straithern, and Straithallan, and a few of them in. the parish of 
Callender. who retain their ancient name of M'Maurice, but very few in number.
Auchmar, pp.93-94
xe "MENTEITH, Margaret of Rusky-108"
Sir married (1) Margaret MENTEITH of Rusky . 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time  
(quoting Auchmar)
p. 397
Margaret Menteith according to some FamilySearch records.
Sir and Margaret had the following children:
+
19
M
i.
Sir Walter BUCHANAN 11th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1300. 
xe ", unknown-665"
Sir married (2) unknown . 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Lenny-533"
17.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Lenny  (Allan BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Allan's successor, as is evident by the above charter, was called John, whose successor was named 
Walter, as seems to appear by letters of compromise, or pacification betwixt Maurice and John 
Drummond, and Alexander Monteath and others of that name, for the slaughter of William, John and 
James Monteaths, brethren to the said Alexander by these Drummonds. Among others whom the 
Monteaths include of their friends, in the said letters, is mentioned Walter Buchanan, their uncle, who 
behoved to be either laird of Buchanan or Lenny, in regard there were not any other families of note, of 
the families of Buchanan extant in that age, except those of Buchanan and Lenny. But the traditional 
account most generally asserted, is, that the said John's son was called also John, who had a son, his 
successor of the same name; which last John, having no male issue, Janet, his daughter and heiress, 
was married to John, the second of that name, laird of Buchanan, as testifies a charter in the public 
archives by king Robert III.,
Auchmar, p.66
John had the following children:
+
20
M
i.
John or Walter BUCHANAN 3rd of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-633"
18.
George BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1440 in Stirling, Scotland. 
Not a son, but a descendant of John.
The first of those of Lecher I find upon record, is a resignation, by Neil Macllroy, heritor thereof, of the 
lands of Lecher and pertinents, to George Buchanan of Stainiflet, dated in the year 1482. The said right, 
with that of the lands of Ibert, for good service done, and to be done, was confirmed to the said George 
by William, lord Graham, in the year 1489.
George's successor was Patrick, whose successor was called Thomas, as appears by charter of the two 
parts of Lecher, by William, earl of Montrose, to Thomas Buchanan, son and heir to the deceased Patrick 
Buchanan of Stainiflet, and Elizabeth Edmonstone, daughter to the laird of Duntreath, his spouse, in life-
rent, and their heirs, in fee: dated in the year 1558.
George had the following children:
+
21
M
i.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Stainiflet .
Eleventh Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Sir Walter 11th Laird  of Buchanan-89"
19.
Sir Walter BUCHANAN 11th Laird of Buchanan  (Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1300 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Maurice the second his successor was Sir Walter, second also of that name, and eleventh laird. He seems 
to have been a very active gentleman, and made a very bright figure in his time, having made a very 
considerable addition to his old estate by the purchase of a great many other lands. There is a charter of 
confirmation of some of his lands of Buchanan, granted in his favours by king Robert II, in which he is 
designed the king's consanguineus, or cousin, upon resignation of William Boyd of Auchmar, in the hands 
of Walter of Faslane, lord of Lennox, of the lands of Cameron, Drumfad, and divers other lands. Sir 
Walter lived to a great age, having only one son, John, who married the heiress of Lenny, and died 
before his father, and was never entered to the estate of Buchanan. However, seeing this John had issue, 
which continued or carried on the line of the family, I shall mention him in order as his father Walter's 
successor. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.23
Sir Walter Buchanan, 11th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1373 charter from King Robert II
http://buchananspot.com/BuchananNews/PDFs/BNewsV1N2.pdf
After his succession to Earl Donald the Lord of Lennox took part in public affairs, and was present in the 
Parliament of Scone when King Robert II. was crowned on 16 March 1370-71, and he swore fealty on 
the following day. In August of 1373 he granted at his castle of Balloch a charter of the lands of 
Auchmarr to Walter, Laird of Buchanan. 
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~corpusnobiliorum/lennox.html
Sir Robert de Colquhoun ... He is also witness in a charter of the lands of Auchmar by Walter of Faslane, 
lord of Lennox, to Walter de Buchanan in 1373. 
History of the Commoners of Great Britain and Ireland, p.655 gives the charter date as 1363 to his son 
John and John's wife Janet de Leny.
http://buchananspot.com/BuchananNews/PDFs/BNewsV1N2.pdf
Ancient Buchanan Pedigree - discrepancies
I have compared a number of reference sources for ancient Buchanan genealogy and have found a few 
places where the historians have disagreed. Unfortunately, the original sources of information for 
genealogy this far back are scarce or missing. The best references are documents about land charters. 
The four sources I compared are:
1. "The Family of Buchanan" by William of Auchmar, published 1723.
2. "Strathendrick and its inhabitants from early times" by John Guthrie Smith, published 1896.
3. The Buchanan Book, compiled by George Wenzel Buchanan, unpublished.
4. Records downloaded from the Ancestral File of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints.
A chart of the four references is found in the web version of this issue.
All four of these agree on the following (the numbers correspond to the generation numbering by George 
Wenzel Buchanan):
108. Anselan MacCausland, 7th Laird of Buchanan, about 1205
109. Gilbert Buchanan, 8th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1231 and 1274
110. Sir Maurice Buchanan, 9th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1274 and 1290
111. Sir Maurice Buchanan, 10th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1320
112. Sir Walter Buchanan, 11th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1373 charted from King Robert II
From here, John Guthrie Smith believes that Walter's son is 114. Sir Walter Buchanan who married Lady 
Isobel Stuart. The other three references show Walter's son as 113. John Buchanan. Smith also 
questions whether Sir Walter married Lady Isobel after he already had his other children, including our 
ancestor. These are undesputed (other than Thomas's mother):
114. Sir Walter Buchanan, who married Isobel Stuart (royal Scottish line) and was mentioned in charters 
in 1398 or 1443, depending on the source.
115. Thomas Buchanan, given Carbeth Lands in 1461 by his brother, Patrick
John Guthrie Smith shows Thomas' son as being Thomas Buchanan who received lands from his father in 
1482. He shows this Thomas's son as being John Buchanan. The other sources show John Buchanan as 
the son and not grandson of 115. Thomas Buchanan 
116. John Buchanan.
Both John Guthrie Smith and Auchmar record that John's Brother, Thomas Buchanan was the first son 
and was heir, but that he had no children. Both the Buchanan Book and PAF show an extra Thomas 
Buchanan in the line here, but I believe that that Thomas was really the Thomas who had no children, 
based on John Guthrie Smith and Auchmar's research. That would then bring us to:
118. Thomas Buchanan, mentioned in a charted in 1555.
There is no disagreement in lineage past this point.
Basically, since the Church does not allow temple work in general for people who lived prior to the 1500's, there is no need to worry about these changes except just to try to lay out a pedigree chart. I believe that the records are difficult to interpret so any of these options could be true, though I consider John Guthrie Smith's record to be quite well researched and probably the most credible. That would make it:
Anselan MacCausland, 7th Laird of Buchanan, about 1205
Gilbert Buchanan, 8th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1231 and 1274
Sir Maurice Buchanan, 9th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1274 and 1290
Sir Maurice Buchanan, 10th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1320
Sir Walter Buchanan, 11th Laird of Buchanan, mentioned in 1373 charted from King Robert II
Sir Walter Buchanan, who married Isobel Stuart and was mentioned in 1398 or 1443.
Thomas Buchanan, given Carbeth Lands in 1461 by his brother, Patrick
Thomas Buchanan who received lands from his father in 1482
John Buchanan (abt 1475)
Thomas Buchanan (abt 1525), mentioned in a charter in 1555.
John Buchanan (abt 1545), mentioned in 1591
George Buchanan (abt 1580), who acquired Blairlusk estate
John Buchanan (abt 1622)
George Buchanan, who moved to Ireland in 1674.
Sir Walter had the following children:
+
22
M
i.
John BUCHANAN 12th Laird of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny  was born estimated 1330. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John or Walter 3rd of  Lenny-535"
20.
John or Walter BUCHANAN 3rd of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, Allan BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John or Walter 3rd of  Lenny-535"Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
23
M
i.
John BUCHANAN 4th of Lenny .
+
24
M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick of Stainiflet-634"
21.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Stainiflet  (George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
25
M
i.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Stainiflet  was born estimated 1520. 
Twelfth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, John 12th Laird  of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny-85"
22.
John BUCHANAN 12th Laird of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny  (Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1330 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Sir Walter lived to a great age, having only one son, John, who married the heiress of Lenny, and died 
before his father, and was never entered to the estate of Buchanan. However, seeing this John had issue, 
which continued or carried on the line of the family, I shall mention him in order as his father Walter's 
successor. The clearest document can be found in relation to him is a charter, granted by king Robert III. 
in favours of John Buchanan and Janet Lenny his spouse, in life-rent, and to their heirs, in fee, of the 
baronry of Pitwhonydy, in the year 1363. Whether the baronry of Pitwhonydy belonged formerly to the 
family of Lenny, or was part of that which belonged to the family of Buchanan, and was at this juncture 
given off by this John to that of Lenny, cannot be clearly determined, this being the most ancient charter 
relating to that, or any other lands in hands of the present Lenny. Nor is there so much as a tradition, 
that the family of Lenny had any lands before this marriage, except those possest by Keir and Lenny, and, as is thought, some part of these lands so designed in Mid-Lothian.
· Charter among Buchanan's old evidences. f Ch. penes Buchanan de Lenny.

This John, twelfth laird of Buchanan, is the first mentioned in the genealogical tree of Buchanan, there 
being a part of that tree cut away, the actor as well as design of that action being unknown. John, laird 
of Buchanan and Lenny, had three sons, who came to age; the eldest, Sir Alexander, who killed the duke 
of Clarence at the battle of Bauge, was also himself afterwards killed at the battle of Vernoil, anno 1424, 
being never married. The second was Sir Walter, who succeeded to the estate of Buchanan; and the 
third, John, during his father's lifetime designed of Ballachondachy, and who did, after his father's death 
succeed to the estate of Lenny, as the tree of Buchanan and some other evidents among those of 
Buchanan testify, as shall be in due place observed. I will elsewhere briefly recount some of the heroic 
achievements of that gallant gentleman, Sir Alexander, eldest son to John, laird of Buchanan, who 
acquired an addition to the armorial bearing, and a much greater to the honour of his family ; and will 
endeavour to remove some little mistake our historians are in concerning his surname; and, meanwhile, 
proceed to the account of Sir Walter, third of that name, and thirteenth laird of Buchanan, who, upon the 
death of Sir Alexander, succeeded to his father John, laird of Buchanan and Lenny. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.23-24
History of the Commoners of Great Britain and Ireland, p.655 gives the charter date as 1363 to John de 
Buchanan and John's wife Janet de Leny.
May 2009
Bill,
I did have a chance to go through my research on this a bit.  I had researched this Stewart line before, 
and Auchmar was just wrong.  There are many errors in his account.
Specifically to the Buchanan Cheifs, he claims John Buchanan of Leny was in the line of chiefs and I 
disagree with him.  If I recall correctly, it was John of Ballenchondochie who was the chief, and John of 
Leny was a different person.  
In any event, I will send you what I have for the chiefship line soon.
Patty
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet of Lenny-88"
John married Janet BUCHANAN of Lenny  daughter of John BUCHANAN 4th of Lenny. Janet was born estimated 1350. 
But the traditional account most generally asserted, is, that the said John's son was called also John, who 
had a son, his successor of the same name; which last John, having no male issue, Janet, his daughter 
and heiress, was married to John, the second of that name, laird of Buchanan, as testifies a charter in 
the public archives by king Robert III., in favour of John de Buchanan, and Janet de Lenny, his spouse, 
of the barony of Pitwhonidy, dated in the year 1393. These lands of Pilwhonidy, seem to have been a 
part of Buchanan's old estate, in regard there is no evident relating thereto, extant before this one 
granted in favour of Buchanan, nor is there is so much as any traditional account, of any lands belonging 
to the old family of Lenny, except those of that name in Perthshire, and a part of those so designed in Mid-Lothian. 
I was for some time surprised at Lenny's retaining the name of Buchanan, and not rather having 
assumed the surname and arms of Lenny; but observe the reason to be very plain, that the laird of 
Buchanan, having married the second heiress of Lenny, would not upon that account, change his 
surname ; and John, his third son, who succeeded to that estate, being always termed Buchanan during 
his father's lifetime, neglected to assume that of Lenny, as did his successors in all time thereafter, partly 
moved thereto as is reported, by some disobligation put upon them by the survivors of the name of 
Lenny. 
By the death of John, laird of Buchanan's eldest son at the battle of Vernoil, and in consequence thereof, 
by Walter, the second son's succeeding to the estate of Buchanan, the estate of Lenny was conveyed in 
favour of John, the third son, ordinarily designed John of Ballacondachy, being a farm room in the barony 
of Buchanan, given by his father to him for patrimony, before the estate of Lenny was conveyed in his 
favour. Though this John of Ballacondachy continued the line of present lairds and family of Lenny, and 
as such is mentioned in the genealogical tree of the family of Buchanan, yet neither by this, nor any 
other evident in Lenny's hands, can there be an account obtained of this John's marriage, nor whether at 
Allan Buchanan, his first son's marriage with the heiress of Lenny, or at Buchanan's marriage with the 
second heiress of the same, Keir married the coheiress, and with her obtained the half of the estate; that 
marriage of Keir by the traditional account, and with much more probability, seeming to have been at the 
first of these two junctures. Neither is it evident by any document I could find in Lenny's hands, by what 
means Keir obtained the superiority of Lenny's half of that estate, in regard of his being married (as is 
generally reported) to the younger of the sisters, or coheiresses. All that is offered for clearing of this 
point, being a traditional narration, that Walter, laird of Lenny, in the beginning of the reign of king 
James IV., had committed some frivolous crime, which was construed in these times to be a kind of 
sacrilege, for which being cited before the next ecclesiastical judge, he disobeyed all citations given upon 
that account, till in the end, being excommunicated for his contumacy, he was thereafter delated to the 
civil magistrate; but giving as little obedience to the one, as to the other, he was prosecuted with the 
utmost rigour, being not only denounced rebel,but, as is reported, also forfeited, the gift of which, or 
more probably, of Lenny's life-rent escheat, was purchased by Keir, who reaped no advantage thereby, 
Lenny retaining possession of his estate by force, till in the end, one Shaw of Camsmore, an intimate 
comrade of Lenny's, was influenced (as the story goes) by Keir either to apprehend, or kill Lenny. Shaw, 
judging the first somewhat impracticable, resolved upon the last method, which he performed while at 
the huntingwith Lenny, by stabbing him behind his back and killing him. After which Keir obtained 
possession of Lenny's estate, which he did not enjoy long. For Shaw, meeting Lenny's lady and children 
upon a time, in a very mean condition, and the lady upbraiding him with her husband's murder, he was 
possessed with such horror of the fact, and detestation of Keir, his influencer, as put him upon the 
resolution of expiating Lenny's murder by that of Keir, which he accordingly performed by killing of Keir, 
as he met him occasionally near Stirling. After which Kcir's and Lenny's successors adjusted the matter so, that upon Lenny's holding his estate of Keir, he should pass from any other demand he had upon the 
same, which being then agreed to, continues so to this day.
Auchmar, p.67
John and Janet had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Sir Alexander-86"

26
M
i.
Sir Alexander BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1380 in Scotland. He died in 1424 in Verneuil, France. 
I will elsewhere briefly recount some of the heroic achievements of that gallant 
gentleman, Sir Alexander, eldest son to John, laird of Buchanan, who acquired an 
addition to the armorial bearing, and a much greater to the honour of his family ; and 
will endeavour to remove some little mistake our historians are in concerning his 
surname; and, meanwhile, proceed to the account of Sir Walter, third of that name, 
and thirteenth laird of Buchanan, who, upon the death of Sir Alexander, succeeded to 
his father John, laird of Buchanan and Lenny. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan, p.23-24
[unmarried
He killed the enemy (English) commander, the Duke of Clarence, in combat at the 
battle of Bauge.
The ducal cap on the coat of arms is said to come from that event.
Slain in the battle of Vernoil [Verneuil], in France in 1424.]
+
27
M
ii.
Sir Walter BUCHANAN 13th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1384. He died in 1464. 
+
28
M
iii.
John BUCHANAN of Ballachondachy and 5th of Lenny  was born estimated 1370. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 4th of  Lenny-536"
23.
John BUCHANAN 4th of Lenny  (John or Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Allan BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Allan's successor, as is evident by the above charter, was called John, whose successor was named 
Walter ... But the traditional account most generally asserted, is, that the said John's son was called also 
John, who had a son, his successor of the same name; which last John, having no male issue, Janet, his 
daughter and heiress, was married to John, the second of that name, laird of Buchanan, as testifies a 
charter in the public archives by king Robert III.,
John had the following children:
+
29
F
i.
Janet BUCHANAN of Lenny  was born estimated 1350. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-630"
24.
Walter BUCHANAN  (John or Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Allan BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Walter had the following children:
xe "MCWATTIE, John-631"

30
M
i.
John MCWATTIE .
The first, and most considerable of this last sort, are theMacwatties. The ancestor of 
these was Walter, son to John, second of that name, laird: of Lenny. This Walter, was 
ordinarily termed Wattie in Callintuy, being the name of the place of his residence. He 
had a son called John, who came to the Lennox, and resided in the parish of Luss. 
John, according to the ordinary custom of those, and even of the present times among 
the Highlanders, had his surname changed into a patronimical one, derived from his 
father's proper name, being thence termed John Macwattie. He having nine sons, who 
all had issue, was the cause of that new name's becoming in a small process of time 
pretty numerous. Some families of these Macwatties after the conflict of Glenfroon, 
having left the parish of Luss, settled in the parishes of Killearn and Strablain ; these, 
quitting that of Macwattie, reassumed their right surname of Buchanan, and those of 
Lenny's family in both the above parishes, with some few in the parish of Campsy 
descended off these Macwatties, so many of them at least, as continued in the parish 
of Luss, and other Highland places, retain the surname of Macwattie yet, the principal 
person of these, being Alexander Macwattie in Glenmacoirn, in Luss parish. There are 
some of these Macwatties in the shire of Argyll, and in the county of Tyrone in Ireland.
The second cadet of this last sort descended of the family of Lenny, are the 
Macaldonichs, deriving that surname from a certain person of Lenny's family named 
Muldonich, being an ancient Scottish Christian name, and in some parts of the 
Highlands in use yet, from whose name his progeny obtained the surname of 
Macmaldonichs, or contracted as above, and most ordinarily expressed. At what time 
the ancestor of these came off the family of Lenny, cannot be well determined; 
however, they always own themselves to be of the said family, and the more to 
remove any scruple thereanent, have mostly now, as did some of their friends the 
Macwatties, as already observed, assumed the surname of Buchanan. So that the old 
surname of Macaldonich will in a short time, turn into desuetude.
The last cadet of those of other denominations, descended off the family of Lenny, was 
the ancestor of those termed Macrobs, so denominated, from one of that family called 
Robert, by contraction Rob, whence his progeny obtained this surname. The number 
and character of these are very inconsiderable, they residing mostly in the parishes of 
Calender and Kilmadock, as do the Macaldonichs, mostly in the lower parts of 
Straithern, and Straith- allan, and some other places of Perthshire. And these are all 
the cadets of other denominations I could discover to be descended off the family of 
Lenny.
Auchmar, p.72
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Stainiflet-635"
25.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Stainiflet  (Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1520. 
xe "EDMONSTONE, Elizabeth of Duntreath-636"
Thomas married Elizabeth EDMONSTONE of Duntreath . Elizabeth was born estimated 1520. 
Thomas and Elizabeth had the following children:
+
31
M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Stainiflet .
Thirteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Sir Walter 13th Laird  of Buchanan-78"
27.
Sir Walter BUCHANAN 13th Laird of Buchanan  (John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1384 in Glasgow, Scotland. He died in 1464. 
I will elsewhere briefly recount some of the heroic achievements of that gallant gentleman, Sir Alexander, 
eldest son to John, laird of Buchanan, who acquired an addition to the armorial bearing, and a much 
greater to the honour of his family ; and will endeavour to remove some little mistake our historians are 
in concerning his surname; and, meanwhile, proceed to the account of 
Sir Walter, third of that name, and thirteenth laird of Buchanan, who, upon the death of Sir Alexander, 
succeeded to his father John, laird of Buchanan and Lenny. There is a charter, granted by Duncan, earl 
of Lennox, to Walter, laird of Buchanan, of the lands of Ledlewan; and he is witness to a charter, by the 
same earl, to John Hamilton, son and heir to John Hamilton of Bardowie, of the lands of Bathernock; 
most of his evidents in relation to the estate of Buchanan being by some contingency or other lost. 
However, he is mentioned by the genealogical tree of the family, and is thereby asserted to be married to 
Isobel Stewart, daughter to Murdoch Stewart, duke of Albany, and governor of Scotland, and to Isobel, 
heiress of Lennox, his lady. This marriage is further made appear by a charter, in the hands of Buchanan 
of Drumikill, granted by Isobel, duchess of Albany and countess of Lennox, to one Donald Patrick, of a 
tenement of houses and land next adjacent to the north side of the churchyard of Drymen, dated in the 
year 1443. Witnesses being Andrew and Murdochi the duchess's nephews, and Walter, laird of Buchanan, 
her son-in-law, knight, with divers others. Sir Walter had three sons, Patrick his successor, and Maurice, 
who was treasurer to lady Margaret, daughter to king James I. and dauphiness of France; having gone to 
that kingdom with her, there is no further account of him. His third son was Thomas, Carbeth's ancestor. 
Sir Walter had a daughter married to Gray of Foulis, the lord Gray his ancestor. To Sir Walter succeeded 
his son Patrick, first of that name, and fourteenth laird of Buchanan.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.24
Sir Walter BUCHANAN II5,128 was born about 1384 in Glasgow, Scotland.5,128 He died about 1464.5,
128 He is reference number 1891. Parents: John Jr. MCCLAUSLAND.
Spouse: Lady Isabella STUART. Sir Walter BUCHANAN II and Lady Isabella STUART were married. 
Reference Number:2126 Children were: Thomas Buchanan 1St Laird CARBETH.
from http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~lzrslong/b826.htm
xe "STEWART, Isobel-83"
Sir Walter married Isobel STEWART  daughter of Murdoch STEWART the Duke of Albany and Regent of Scotland and Isabella OF LENNOX OR LEVENAX. Isobel was born estimated 1400. 
Isabella Stewart1
F, #107964
Isabella Stewart||p10797.htm#i107964|Murdoch Stewart, 2nd Duke of Albany|b. 1362\nd. 24 May 
1425|p10213.htm#i102128|Isabel of Lennox, Countess of Lennox|b. c 1370\nd. c 1458|p10796.
htm#i107951|Robert Stewart, 1st Duke of Albany|b. c 1340\nd. 3 Sep 1420|p10211.
htm#i102101|Margaret Graham, Countess of Menteith|b. b 1334\nd. bt 20 Jul 1372 - 4 May 
1380|p10795.htm#i107947|Duncan, 8th Earl of Lennox|b. c 1345\nd. 1425|p10796.htm#i107952|Helen 
Campbell||p10796.htm#i107953|
Last Edited=5 May 2008
Consanguinity Index=0.02%
     Isabella Stewart is the daughter of Murdoch Stewart, 2nd Duke of Albany and Isabel of Lennox, 
Countess of Lennox.1 She married Sir Walter Buchanan.1
Citations
[S11] Alison Weir, Britain's Royal Family: A Complete Genealogy (London, U.K.: The Bodley Head, 1999), 
page 218. Hereinafter cited as Britain's Royal Family. 
Sir Walter Buchanan1 
M, #107965
Last Edited=1 Sep 2008
     Sir Walter Buchanan married Isabella Stewart, daughter of Murdoch Stewart, 2nd Duke of Albany and 
Isabel of Lennox, Countess of Lennox.1
Citations
[S11] Alison Weir, Britain's Royal Family: A Complete Genealogy (London, U.K.: The Bodley Head, 1999), 
page 218. Hereinafter cited as Britain's Royal Family.
http://archiver.rootsweb.ancestry.com/th/read/KINCAID/2005-02/1109437819
Isabella Stewart, Countess Of Lennox, b. 1402
married Sir Walter Dhu Buchanan (who had three sons, one of whom was
Thomas founder of the Buchanans of Carbeth); daughter Stewart, married
Archibald Campbell, of Argyllshire, Scotland; Sir Walter Dhu Buchanan,
b. 1390 in Stirlingshire, m. Isabella Stewart, Countess Of Lennox; and
finally . . .
Sir and Isobel had the following children:
+
32
M
i.
Patrick BUCHANAN 14th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1415. 
+
33
M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN 1st of Carbeth and Gartincaber  was born estimated 1420. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Maurice-79"

34
M
iii.
Maurice BUCHANAN .
 Sir Walter had three sons, Patrick his successor, and Maurice, who was treasurer to 
lady Margaret, daughter to king James I, and dauphiness of France; having gone to 
that kingdom with her, there is no further account of him. His third son was Thomas, 
Carbeth's ancestor.
Auchmar, p. 24
A BRIEF ACCOUNT
BUCHANAN OF MILTOUN;
ALSO OF
BUCHANAN OF CASHILL, ARDUILL, AND SALLOCHIE.
ALTHOUGH the descent of the ancestors of those I am to treat of in this place be more 
late off the family of Buchanan than that of some others already mentioned, 
nevertheless, having obtained no manner of written document tending to the 
illustration of their descent, but only a traditional account of the same, by which means 
there cannot be very much advanced concerning them; I have chosen for that reason, 
not only to treat of them jointly, but also to place the account of them after that of 
others, whose descent can be cleared by written, and therefore more convincing, 
documents, or authorities.
As for the family of Miltoun, neither I nor any other of the name of Buchanan I had 
ever occasion of conversing with, had the least knowledge of, or correspondence with, 
any such family ; all found upon record concerning the same, being a description or 
blazon of the armorial bearing of Mr. Patrick Buchanan, son to Buchanan of Miltoun, a 
cadet of Buchanan of that ilk, mentioned in Mr. Nisbet's Treatise of Heraldry, lately 
published, in which is given no manner of account of that family's genealogy, but only 
what relates to the above-mentioned gentleman's bearing, as a cadet thereof. So that 
all I can offer concerning this family is founded upon a traditional account I had from a 
certain gentleman, who was an officer in the laird of Buchanan's regiment in the year 
1645, at which time that regiment being in garrison in Inverness, one Colin Buchanan 
of Miltoun of Peatty, a gentleman of good repute, and whose interest lay within a few 
miles of the town of Inverness, kept very much correspondence with Buchanan and his 
officers, while in garrison in that town. He was descended, by any thing can be 
collected from any account given then out, of Maurice Buchanan's son, who was 
treasurer to the dauphiness of France, in the reign of king James I. 
And though there can be no account had of any of that family's having correspondence 
with any other of their name in these more southern parts, in which the same is most 
numerous these many years bygone, nevertheless, it is very presumeable this family is 
still in being; at least it seems, by their arms, to have been so not long ago, it being 
evident the late laird of Buchanan changed his motto from Audaces juvo, into Clarior 
hinc Honos, in the latter part of his time, to which last that of Mr. Buchanan, Miltoun's 
son, plainly alludes, his bearing being Buchanan, within a double border, gules, 
charged with eight crescents, argent, with a rose in crest, sliped, gules; motto Ducitur 
hinc Honos. The Buchanans of the isle of Sky seem to be descended of Miltoun.
Auchmar, pp.77-78
xe "BUCHANAN, Elizabeth-81"

35
F
iv.
Elizabeth BUCHANAN .
Burkes peerage gives her given name, Auchmar does not.
Elizabeth Buchanan is the daughter of Sir Walter Buchanan of that Ilk.1 She married 
Sir Andrew Gray of Broxmouth, son of Sir Patrick Gray of Broxmouth.1
     Her married name became Gray.1
Citations
[S37] Charles Mosley, editor, Burke's Peerage, Baronetage & Knightage, 107th edition, 
3 volumes (Wilmington, Delaware, U.S.A.: Burke's Peerage (Genealogical Books) Ltd, 
2003), volume 2, page 1642. Hereinafter cited as Burke's Peerage and Baronetage, 
107th edition.
xe "GRAY, Sir Andrew-82"Elizabeth married Sir Andrew GRAY . 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Ballachondachy  and 5th of Lenny-87"
28.
John BUCHANAN of Ballachondachy and 5th of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Ballachondachy  and 5th of Lenny-87"Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1370 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
By the death of John, laird of Buchanan's eldest son at the battle of Vernoil, and in consequence thereof, 
by Walter, the second son's succeeding to the estate of Buchanan, the estate of Lenny was conveyed in 
favour of John, the third son, ordinarily designed John of Ballacondachy, being a farm room in the barony 
of Buchanan, given by his father to him for patrimony, before the estate of Lenny was conveyed in his 
favour. Though this John of Ballacondachy continued the line of present lairds and family of Lenny, and 
as such is mentioned in the genealogical tree of the family of Buchanan, yet neither by this, nor any 
other evident in Lenny's hands, can there be an account obtained of this John's marriage, nor whether at 
Allan Buchanan, his first son's marriage with the heiress of Lenny, or at Buchanan's marriage with the 
second heiress of the same, Keir married the coheiress, and with her obtained the half of the estate; that 
marriage of Keir by the traditional account, and with much more probability, seeming to have been at the 
first of these two junctures. Neither is it evident by any document I could find in Lenny's hands, by what 
means Keir obtained the superiority of Lenny's half of that estate, in regard of his being married (as is 
generally reported) to the younger of the sisters, or coheiresses. 
All that is offered for clearing of this point, being a traditional narration, that Walter, laird of Lenny, in the 
beginning of the reign of king James IV., had committed some frivolous crime, which was construed in 
these times to be a kind of sacrilege, for which being cited before the next ecclesiastical judge, he 
disobeyed all citations given upon that account, till in the end, being excommunicated for his contumacy, 
he was thereafter delated to the civil magistrate; but giving as little obedience to the one, as to the other, he was prosecuted with the utmost rigour, being not only denounced rebel, but, as is reported, also forfeited, the gift of which, or more probably, of Lenny's life-rent escheat, was purchased by Keir, who reaped no advantage thereby, Lenny retaining possession of his estate by force, till in the end, one Shaw of Camsmore, an intimate comrade of Lenny's, was influenced (as the story goes) by Keir either to 
apprehend, or kill Lenny. Shaw, judging the first somewhat impracticable, resolved upon the last method, 
which he performed while at the huntingwith Lenny, by stabbing him behind his back and killing him. 
After which Keir obtained possession of Lenny's estate, which he did not enjoy long. For Shaw, meeting 
Lenny's lady and children upon a time, in a very mean condition, and the lady upbraiding him with her 
husband's murder, he was possessed with such horror of the fact, and detestation of Keir, his influencer, 
as put him upon the resolution of expiating Lenny's murder by that of Keir, which he accordingly 
performed by killing of Keir, as he met him occasionally near Stirling. After which Keir's and Lenny's 
successors adjusted the matter so, that upon Lenny's holding his estate of Keir, he should pass from any 
other demand he had upon the same, which being then agreed to, continues so to this day.
Auchmar, p.67
John had the following children:
+
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i.
Andrew BUCHANAN 6th of Lenny  was born estimated 1410. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet of Lenny-88"
29.
Janet BUCHANAN of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, John or Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Allan BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1350. 
But the traditional account most generally asserted, is, that the said John's son was called also John, who 
had a son, his successor of the same name; which last John, having no male issue, Janet, his daughter 
and heiress, was married to John, the second of that name, laird of Buchanan, as testifies a charter in 
the public archives by king Robert III., in favour of John de Buchanan, and Janet de Lenny, his spouse, 
of the barony of Pitwhonidy, dated in the year 1393. These lands of Pilwhonidy, seem to have been a 
part of Buchanan's old estate, in regard there is no evident relating thereto, extant before this one 
granted in favour of Buchanan, nor is there is so much as any traditional account, of any lands belonging 
to the old family of Lenny, except those of that name in Perthshire, and a part of those so designed in Mid-Lothian. 
I was for some time surprised at Lenny's retaining the name of Buchanan, and not rather having 
assumed the surname and arms of Lenny; but observe the reason to be very plain, that the laird of 
Buchanan, having married the second heiress of Lenny, would not upon that account, change his 
surname ; and John, his third son, who succeeded to that estate, being always termed Buchanan during 
his father's lifetime, neglected to assume that of Lenny, as did his successors in all time thereafter, partly 
moved thereto as is reported, by some disobligation put upon them by the survivors of the name of 
Lenny. 
By the death of John, laird of Buchanan's eldest son at the battle of Vernoil, and in consequence thereof, 
by Walter, the second son's succeeding to the estate of Buchanan, the estate of Lenny was conveyed in 
favour of John, the third son, ordinarily designed John of Ballacondachy, being a farm room in the barony 
of Buchanan, given by his father to him for patrimony, before the estate of Lenny was conveyed in his 
favour. Though this John of Ballacondachy continued the line of present lairds and family of Lenny, and 
as such is mentioned in the genealogical tree of the family of Buchanan, yet neither by this, nor any 
other evident in Lenny's hands, can there be an account obtained of this John's marriage, nor whether at 
Allan Buchanan, his first son's marriage with the heiress of Lenny, or at Buchanan's marriage with the 
second heiress of the same, Keir married the coheiress, and with her obtained the half of the estate; that 
marriage of Keir by the traditional account, and with much more probability, seeming to have been at the 
first of these two junctures. Neither is it evident by any document I could find in Lenny's hands, by what 
means Keir obtained the superiority of Lenny's half of that estate, in regard of his being married (as is 
generally reported) to the younger of the sisters, or coheiresses. All that is offered for clearing of this 
point, being a traditional narration, that Walter, laird of Lenny, in the beginning of the reign of king 
James IV., had committed some frivolous crime, which was construed in these times to be a kind of 
sacrilege, for which being cited before the next ecclesiastical judge, he disobeyed all citations given upon 
that account, till in the end, being excommunicated for his contumacy, he was thereafter delated to the 
civil magistrate; but giving as little obedience to the one, as to the other, he was prosecuted with the 
utmost rigour, being not only denounced rebel,but, as is reported, also forfeited, the gift of which, or 
more probably, of Lenny's life-rent escheat, was purchased by Keir, who reaped no advantage thereby, 
Lenny retaining possession of his estate by force, till in the end, one Shaw of Camsmore, an intimate 
comrade of Lenny's, was influenced (as the story goes) by Keir either to apprehend, or kill Lenny. Shaw, 
judging the first somewhat impracticable, resolved upon the last method, which he performed while at 
the huntingwith Lenny, by stabbing him behind his back and killing him. After which Keir obtained 
possession of Lenny's estate, which he did not enjoy long. For Shaw, meeting Lenny's lady and children 
upon a time, in a very mean condition, and the lady upbraiding him with her husband's murder, he was 
possessed with such horror of the fact, and detestation of Keir, his influencer, as put him upon the 
resolution of expiating Lenny's murder by that of Keir, which he accordingly performed by killing of Keir, 
as he met him occasionally near Stirling. After which Kcir's and Lenny's successors adjusted the matter so, that upon Lenny's holding his estate of Keir, he should pass from any other demand he had upon the 
same, which being then agreed to, continues so to this day.
Auchmar, p.67
xe "BUCHANAN, John 12th Laird  of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny-85"
Janet married John BUCHANAN 12th Laird of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny  son of Sir Walter BUCHANAN 11th Laird of Buchanan. John was born estimated 1330 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Sir Walter lived to a great age, having only one son, John, who married the heiress of Lenny, and died 
before his father, and was never entered to the estate of Buchanan. However, seeing this John had issue, 
which continued or carried on the line of the family, I shall mention him in order as his father Walter's 
successor. The clearest document can be found in relation to him is a charter, granted by king Robert III. 
in favours of John Buchanan and Janet Lenny his spouse, in life-rent, and to their heirs, in fee, of the 
baronry of Pitwhonydy, in the year 1363. Whether the baronry of Pitwhonydy belonged formerly to the 
family of Lenny, or was part of that which belonged to the family of Buchanan, and was at this juncture 
given off by this John to that of Lenny, cannot be clearly determined, this being the most ancient charter 
relating to that, or any other lands in hands of the present Lenny. Nor is there so much as a tradition, 
that the family of Lenny had any lands before this marriage, except those possest by Keir and Lenny, and, as is thought, some part of these lands so designed in Mid-Lothian.
* Charter among Buchanan's old evidences. f Ch. penes Buchanan de Lenny.
This John, twelfth laird of Buchanan, is the first mentioned in the genealogical tree of Buchanan, there 
being a part of that tree cut away, the actor as well as design of that action being unknown. John, laird 
of Buchanan and Lenny, had three sons, who came to age; the eldest, Sir Alexander, who killed the duke 
of Clarence at the battle of Bauge, was also himself afterwards killed at the battle of Vernoil, anno 1424, 
being never married. The second was Sir Walter, who succeeded to the estate of Buchanan; and the 
third, John, during his father's lifetime designed of Ballachondachy, and who did, after his father's death 
succeed to the estate of Lenny, as the tree of Buchanan and some other evidents among those of 
Buchanan testify, as shall be in due place observed. I will elsewhere briefly recount some of the heroic 
achievements of that gallant gentleman, Sir Alexander, eldest son to John, laird of Buchanan, who 
acquired an addition to the armorial bearing, and a much greater to the honour of his family ; and will 
endeavour to remove some little mistake our historians are in concerning his surname; and, meanwhile, 
proceed to the account of Sir Walter, third of that name, and thirteenth laird of Buchanan, who, upon the 
death of Sir Alexander, succeeded to his father John, laird of Buchanan and Lenny. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.23-24
History of the Commoners of Great Britain and Ireland, p.655 gives the charter date as 1363 to John de 
Buchanan and John's wife Janet de Leny.
May 2009
Bill,
I did have a chance to go through my research on this a bit.  I had researched this Stewart line before, 
and Auchmar was just wrong.  There are many errors in his account.
Specifically to the Buchanan Chiefs, he claims John Buchanan of Leny was in the line of chiefs and I 
disagree with him.  If I recall correctly, it was John of Ballenchondochie who was the chief, and John of 
Leny was a different person.  
In any event, I will send you what I have for the cheifship line soon.
Patty
John and Janet had the following children:
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i.
Sir Alexander BUCHANAN is printed as #26 on page 35.
+
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ii.
Sir Walter BUCHANAN 13th Laird OB is printed as #27 on page 38.
+
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M
iii.
John BUCHANAN of Ballachondachy A5OL is printed as #28 on page 40.
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Stainiflet-637"
31.
John BUCHANAN of Stainiflet  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Stainiflet-637"BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Thomas's successor was John, who sold Stainiflet., as appears by precept of Clare Constat, in his favour, 
as heir to Thomas his father, by John, earl of Montrose, of the lands of Lecher, dated in the year 1581. 
This John had two sons, Walter his successor, and Dugal, who went to Ireland, some of whose posterity 
having returned, reside at Linlithgow and Queensferry; and others remained in Ireland. Of this Dugal is 
descended William Buchanan, gardener in Glasgow.
John had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN of Auchneiven .
xe "BUCHANAN, Dugal-639"
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ii.
Dugal BUCHANAN  was buried in Ireland. 
Fourteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 14th Laird  of Buchanan-72"
32.
Patrick BUCHANAN 14th Laird of Buchanan  (Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1415 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
[received a charter in 1455, another dated 1460,]
To Sir Walter succeeded his son Patrick, first of that name, and fourteenth laird of Buchanan. He 
acquired a part of Strathyre from David Oquhuanan, heritor thereof, in the year 1455, being the date of 
the charter thereof, confirmed by charter under the great seal in the year 1458, as is also a charter in his 
favour under the great seal, of his estate of Buchanan, dated in the year 1460. He purchased the lands 
of Easter Balleun; and, in the year 1414 [this year seems to be an error (maybe 1474?)], resigned the 
lands of Drumfad and Kirkmicheal, in favour of Walter Buchanan his son and heir, which this Walter sold 
to the laird of Ardkindlass in the year 1513. Patrick, laird of Buchanan, and Andrew, laird of Lenny, made, 
in the year 1455, mutual tailzies of their estates in favour of one another, and the heirs of their own 
bodies, and past some of their brethren of either side ; by which it is pretty clear, they have been no 
further removed in kindred than cousin-germans: so that the genealogy of both families, as already 
asserted, will hold good. He was married to one Galbraith, heiress of Killearn, Bamoir and Auchinreoch, 
and had with her two sons, Walter his successor, and Thomas, ancestor of Drumikill, and a daughter, 
Anabella, married to her cousin, James Stewart of Baldorrans, grandchild to Murdoch, duke of Albany. He 
had also an illegitimate son, Patrick, of whose issue there is no account.
The last-mentioned laird of Buchanan being married to an heiress of the name of Galbraith, and the 
circumstances of that name being now parallel to that of Buchanan, mutual sympathy, in a manner, 
obliges me to digress a little, in giving a brief account of that name. ...
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.25
xe "GALBRAITH, Miss of Killearn,  Bamoir and Auchinreoch-73"
Patrick married (1) Miss GALBRAITH of Killearn, Bamoir and Auchinreoch  daughter of James GALBRAITH and Miss KINCAID. Miss was born estimated 1430 in Gartconnel, Stirlingshire, Scotland. 
http://archiver.rootsweb.ancestry.com/th/read/KINCAID/2005-02/1109437819
James Galbraith, Of Gartconnel, b. 1380 in Gartconnel, Stirlingshire,
Scotland;.son of William Galbraith, Lord Of Gartconnel. He married
daughter Of Kincade. Daughter Of Kincade, b. 1390, d. unknown. Child of
James Galbraith and Daughter Kincade is Galbraith, b. 1420 in Killearn,
Stirlingshire, and married Sir Patrick Buchanan, 14th Lord Of Buchanan.
Patrick and Miss had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN 15th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1450. 
+
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ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Gartincaber and Drumikill  was born estimated 1455. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Annabella,-75"
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iii.
Annabella, BUCHANAN .
xe "STEWART, James of Baldorrans-76"Annabella, married James STEWART of Baldorrans . 
her cousin, grandchild to Murdoch, duke of Albany
Sir William married firstly before I May 1484 to Janet BUCHANAN, daughter of 
Archibald Buchanan of
Lettir (in Strathyre). Maccregor notes a charter by Archibalde Buchannan for the lands 
of Lettir on 1 May, 1484. Buchanan of Auchamar History states the following": James' 
successor was Walter Stewart of Baldorrans, as is clear by charter, in his favour, by 
Janet Boquhuanan, of a wadset-right the said Janet had upon a part of the lands of 
Straithyre, of date in the year 1528."
This referenceis problematic as it is clear that Auchmar is partially in error, but how 
much in error. James was succeeded by William, not Walter and Janet Buchanan is 
believed to have died before Walter was born and long before 1528. lt is suggested 
that Auchmar may be citing the same reference as Maccregor, but with the wrong date 
and substituting Walter in place of William.The l ands in Strathyre are believed to have 
also included Creaggan
http://www.chuckspeed.com/balquhidder/Belfry/Belfry_Summer2008.pdf
Patrick had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-77"
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iv.
Patrick BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1460 in Stirling, Scotland. 
illegitmate
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 1st of  Carbeth and Gartincaber-80"
33.
Thomas BUCHANAN 1st of Carbeth and Gartincaber  (Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1420 in of Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
http://www.geo.ed.ac.uk/scotgaz/features/featurefirst11924.html
Carbeth House 
A mansion and an estate in Killearn Parish, Stirling Council Area, Carbeth lies to the south of the Endrick 
Water, 2 miles (3 km) southwest of Balfron. Carbeth House, dating from the 17th Century, was 
transformed into a castellated mansion in the 19th century. It was converted into flats in the 1980s.
This property should not be confused with Carbeth Guthrie House located 5½ miles (9 km) to the south.
...
Carbeth, an estate, with a mansion, in Killearn parish, Stirlingshire. The mansion stands near the left 
bank of Endrick Water, 2 miles WSW of Balfron, and is a castellated structure of 1840.
Buchanan of "Carbeth's ancestor", Auchmar, p. 25
ACCOUNT
of The
FAMILY OF CARBETH.
THERE has been a long continued pretension made by the lairds of Drumikill, that the ancestor of this 
family of Carbeth was a cadet of the family of Drumikill. At what time this pretension was formed, how 
long continued, or how far acquiesced in, in more ancient times, I cannot positively determine; but am 
very confident, the late Carbeth, a man pretty well skilled in the genealogy of his own, and other families 
of his name, did not in the least own any such matter. Though I must own it would be a matter of the 
utmost difficulty to distinguish these two families, were it not the two charters, after-mentioned, being 
the most ancient pertaining to this family, are so very clear of themselves; which, notwithstanding, does 
not fully satisfy some of the more nice and critical. For satisfaction of such, I shall here observe some few 
things, besides what I offered in the account of the family of Drumikill. That which admits of the greatest 
difficulty in being resolved, and is mostly objected, is a service of William, sixth laird of Drumikill, which I 
perused among others of the late Buchanan's evidents, by which the said William is served heir to 
Thomas Buchanan, of Gartincaber, great grandfather to the said William. So that the first charter of 
Thomas of Carbeth's ancestor being that of Gartincaber, it is presumed, he was ancestor of both the 
families. For resolution of this, it is very evident, that all appenage, or tanistry lands, though always 
disponed by charter to the second sons of families, did never descend or accresce to their heirs, but did 
always, upon decease of him to whom these were first disponed, return again to the principal family, and 
were by that after the same manner reserved for, and disponed to, the next second son of the same. 
This is so very demonstrable, by so many instances, as to need no further confirmation. So that Thomas 
of Carbeth, being second son to Sir Walter, laird of Buchanan, obtained from his eldest brother, Patrick, 
the lands of Gartincaber during life, after whose death Patrick gave these lands to another Thomas, his 
second son ; or, more probably, Walter, Patrick's successor, disponed these lands to the same Thomas 
his brother, being ancestor of the family of Drumikill, as the tree of Buchanan plainly asserts; and by this 
means the service in favour of William of Drumikill is very right, whereas if he had been served to 
Carbeth's ancestor by designation of Gartincaber, he would be a degree further removed than Walter of 
Drumikill his great grandfather. Yea, the cadets of the family of Drumikill, from the death of Thomas of 
Carbeth, possest these lands of Gartincaber till the time of this service, immediately after which, Carbeth 
obtained the beneficial tack of the same, or rather before this time, as is reported, having then obliged 
Drumikill to serve heir to his ancestor, in order to make his right thereof to Carbeth the more valid. For 
further illustration of this matter, it is plain, Thomas of Carbeth's ancestor obtained the lands of Carbeth 
in heritage some years before any charter can be produced in favour of Thomas first of Drumikill. So that 
if these had been one and the same, it cannot be in reason supposed, but that he had been designed by 
Carbeth, in some one or other of these evidents of Drumikill and Moss, in which he is always mentioned 
by other designations. Lastly, in that resignation, by Thomas Buchanan of Carbeth, of his half of Drumikill, to Robert Buchanan, second Drumikill, anno 1505, he is there designed by Carbeth, without the least intimation of any relation betwixt him and the said Robert; whereas if the above.mentioned allegation were true, this Thomas the disponer behoved to be Robert's father, which could not miss to be so specified upon this occasion; whereas Robert's father in his disposition to him of the other half of 
Drumikill, in the year 1495, is there designed Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill, ten years before the date of 
this other write. So that it is very clear, Thomas first of Carbeth, and Thomas of Drumikill were two 
different persons, the first being uncle to the latter; and that Thomas, who dis poned his part to Robert, 
was cousin-german to the first Thomas of Drumikill.
The first charter I find relating to the same is, a charter by Patrick, first of that name laird of Buchanan, 
to his beloved brother, Thomas Buchanan, of the lands of Gartincaber, dated in the year 1461, by which 
it is clear that the said Thomas was second or third son to Sir Walter, third of that name laird of 
Buchanan, his mother being daughter of Murdoc, duke of Albany. This Thomas was the first who 
acquired Carbeth, as appears by a charter granted by John Halden of Glenegeis to an honourable person, 
Thomas Buchanan of Gartincaber, of Meikle Carbeth, dated in the year 1476. There is no record to testify 
into what family this Thomas married; but it is pretty clear he had two sons, Thomas and John, to whom 
he gave for portion the beneficial tack of Easter Ballat, which with Balwill and Kepdourie, (the two last 
being confirmed by charter of Carbeth,) seem to have been a part of the Arral's lands, though no 
evidents concerning the same, if any such were, are now extant.
Auchmar, p. 60
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~mysouthernfamily/myff/d0044/g0000083.html
THOMAS BUCHANAN 1st of Drummikill
ID Number: I86711
OCCUPATION: of Gartincaber, Drummikill and Carbeth (a 1495)
RESIDENCE: Scotland
RESOURCES: See: [S3172] 
Father: WALTER BUCHANAN 12th of Buchanan
Mother: ISOBEL STEWART 
Notes
((c)) Thomas Buchanan of Gartincaber, Drummikill and Carbeth (a 1495) 
We follow 'Strathendrick' in identifying this Thomas as ancestor not only of the Buchanans of Carbeth (as 
agreed by BLG1952) but also as ancestor of the Buchanans of Drummikill. BLG1952 shows Thomas, son 
of Patrick of Buchanan, as the first of the Buchanans of Drummikill. 
[S3172]
[Auchmar refers to William as the first son of Thomas of Carbeth's second marriage. Who is the first son? 
Perhaps the Patrick who is not mentioned by Auchmar, but by others.]
Thomas had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 2nd of  Carbeth-431"
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN 2nd of Carbeth  was born estimated 1450 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Sold Easter Ballat to his brother John's son Walter. But the dates seem off by 100 
years:
The second cadet of the family of Carbeth is Buchanan of Easter Ballat, his ancestor 
being John, second son to Thomas first of Carbeth. And although Thomas, eldest son 
to this John, fell into the interest of Carbeth, and left his brother William in possession 
of Ballat, yet it seems he did not quit the benefit of the tack of Ballat to his brother, till 
the same was sold oft'by Thomas, successor to the above Thomas, to Walter Buchanan, 
son to the said William. I find this William, who may be accounted ancestor of the 
present family of Ballat, mentioned in a discharge for five hundred merks Scots, by 
Semple of Craigbat to Buchanan of Arnpryor, for which it seems this William was 
cautioner, the date of which discharge was in the year 1576. That which clears the 
conveyance of the tack of Ballat by Carbeth, is a submission betwixt Thomas Buchanan 
of Carbeth and Walter Buchanan in Easter Ballat, who refer any difference betwixt 
them in relation to Ballat to the determination of John Buchanan in Ballacondachy, 
John MacLauchlan of Auchintroig, and Duncan Buchanan of Brachern, upon Carbeth's 
part; and William Buchanan in Baturrich, and John Buchanan, burgess in Dunbarton, 
his brother, with Andrew Galbraith in Tomdar- roch, upon Walter in Ballet's part; with 
Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill, oversman. These judges decerned the said Walter to 
pay four hundred merks Scots to Carbeth for his pretension to Ballat, and decerned 
Carbeth to maintain Walter's possession of these lands, and warrant him at the hands 
of his brethren, and all others. This submission is dated in the year 1594, and decree! 
was past thereon in January, 1595, there being a great many other persons of repute 
present, besides parties, who all were obliged to sign by a notar.
+
47
M
ii.
John BUCHANAN in Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1450. 
xe ", unknown-522"
Thomas married (2) unknown . 
Thomas and unknown had the following children:
+
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iii.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Carbeth  was born estimated 1455. 
+
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iv.
Walter BUCHANAN of Ballerdeorn .
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Blairnabord-524"
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v.
William BUCHANAN of Blairnabord .
his grandson Archbald is described as "living in good circumstances in Virginia"
+
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vi.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-528"
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vii.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew 6th of  Lenny-534"
36.
Andrew BUCHANAN 6th of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1410. 
John, first laird of Lenny, of the second line, and ancestor to the present Lenny, was succeeded by 
Andrew, his son, as appears by * charter by James II., in the year 1458, in favour of the said Andrew 
Buchanan of Lenny, of the barony of Pitwhonidy, with the lands of Culenchard and Leduhchard in life-
rent, and to John Buchanan, his son in fee, and to their heirs-male ; which failing, to Walter Patrick 
Buchanan of that ilk, his other son, and his heirs-male; which failing, to Archibald, Walter, George and 
Gilbert, Lenny's other sons, and their heirs-male; which failing, to Lenny's other heirs whatsoever: a very 
strange kind of a tailzie; Buchanan, and two of his sons, though he and Lenny were but cousin-germans, 
being preferred in that charier of tailzie to four of Lenny's sons, and his brother, if these last mentioned 
were legitimate. 
* Charta penes Buchanan de Lenny.
...
Andrew, second laird of Lenny, was married to a daughter of Lockhart of Barr, by whom he had John, his 
successor. -He had also other four sons, Archibald, Walter, George and Gilbert.
Auchmar, pp. 68-69
xe "LOCKHART, Miss of Barr-542"
Andrew married Miss LOCKHART of Barr . 
They had the following children:
+
53
M
i.
John BUCHANAN 7th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-541"

54
M
ii.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
+
55
M
iii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-539"

56
M
iv.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Gilbert-540"

57
M
v.
Gilbert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Auchneiven-638"
40.
Walter BUCHANAN of Auchneiven  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To John succeeded Walter, who was married to Edmonstone of Balleun's daughter, as appears by a 
seasin in her favour, in life-rent, of the lands of Lecher, by John Buchanan, father to this Walter, dated in 
the year 1628, by whom he had John his successor, as is clear by charter in his favour, by James, earl of 
Montrose, afterward marquis, of an annuity of three chalder of victual, payable, irredeemably, out of the 
lands of Auchneiven, dated in the year 1630; as also a precept of Clare Constat, by James, marquis of 
Montrose, with seasin thereon, to the above-mentioned John, of the lands of Auchneiven, dated anno 
1668. 
Walter of Auchneiven's second son was Walter, late deacon of the bakers in Glasgow, who had four sons, 
John Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, Walter, maltman there, George, baker there, and Thomas 
Buchanan, master of a ship belonging to the said town. He had also two daughters, Marion, married to 
Robert Graham, merchant in Glasgow, and Janet, married to George Currie, merchant in that city. John 
of Auchneiven was married to Elizabeth Crawfurd, daughter to John Crawfurd, portioner of Partick. He 
had by her John his successor, and Walter Buchanan, writer in Glasgow, who acquired the lands of 
Teucher- hill in the parish of Meikle Govari.
xe "EDMONSTONE, Miss of Balleun-640"
Walter married Miss EDMONSTONE of Balleun . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-641"

58
M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven .
+
59
M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
Fifteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 15th Laird  of Buchanan-64"
42.
Walter BUCHANAN 15th Laird of Buchanan  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1450 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
To Patrick, laird of Buchanan, succeeded his son Walter, fourth of that name, and fifteenth laird of 
Buchanan, as is clear by the charter of resignation, in his favour, by Patrick his father, in the year 1474. 
He married the lord Graham's daughter, whose mother was the earl of Angus's daughter. Of this 
marriage he had Patrick his successor, who, as is confidently asserted, was, with a great many of his 
name, killed at the battle of Flowdon, in the year 1513; and John of Auchmar, afterwards Arnpryor and 
Gartartan, and two daughters, one of them married to the laird of Lamond, the other to the laird of 
Ardkinglass. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.26
xe "GRAHAM, Isabelle-65"
Walter married (1) Isabelle GRAHAM  daughter of William GRAHAM 2nd Lord Graham and Helen DOUGLAS. 
http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=DESC&db=john_d_newport&id=I34439
[Apparentl;y her name is Isabelle Garaham]
3 Isabelle Graham b: ABT 1448
          + Walter Buchanan 15th Laird Of Buchanan b: ABT 1470 d: 1526
            4 Elizabeth Buchanan
              + William Stirling 11th of Cadder 2nd of Lettyr d: 1517
            4 Margaret Buchanan b: ABT 1455 d: 1536
              + Alexander Graham 2nd Earl Menteith b: ABT 1455 d: BEF 16 MAY 1537
                5 William Graham 3rd Earl Of Menteith b: ABT 1478 d: 23 JAN 1544
                  + Margaret Moubray Countess Of Montrose b: 10 DEC 1472 d: AFT JUL 1548
                    6 Margaret Graham Countess Of Argyll b: ABT 1515 d: BEF 1546
                      + Robert Erskine Master Of Erskine b: ABT 1522 d: 10 SEP 1547
                    6 Gilbert Graham b: ABT 1521 d: 24 APR 1573
                      + Helen Kincaid b: ABT 1520
                    6 John Graham b: 07 APR 1523 d: JAN 1565
                      + Marion Seton b: 1528 d: 23 JUN 1567
                    6 Robert Graham Of Gartmore b: 27 MAY 1585 d: NOV 1614
                      + Margaret Erskine b: ABT 1570

4 Patrick Buchanan 16th Laird Of Buchanan b: ABT 1488 d: 09 SEP 1513
              + WifeofPatrickBuchanan Campbell Lady of Argyle
                5 George Buchanan 17th Laird Of Buchanan b: ABT 1506 d: 1582
                  + Margaret Edmonston of Duntreath b: ABT 1490 d: ABT 1532
                    6 John Buchanan 18th Laird Of Buchanan b: ABT 1524
                      + Helen Chrisholme b: ABT 1524
                      + Jean Levingstone
                    6 Janet Buchanan b: ABT 1525 d: ABT 1595
                  + Janet Cunninghame of Craigends
                    6 William Buchanan b: ABT 1534
                    6 Margaret Buchanan b: ABT 1535
                5 Robert Buchanan b: ABT 1506
                5  Buchanan b: ABT 1508
                5  Buchanan b: ABT 1509
                5 Walter Buchanan Ancestor of Spittle b: ABT 1511
            4 John Buchanan b: ABT 1493 d: 10 SEP 1547
            4 Arthur Buchanan Sir b: ABT 1494
            4 Walter Buchanan of Easter Catter 1st of Spittal
Walter and Isabelle had the following children:
+
60
M
i.
Patrick BUCHANAN 16th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1483. He died on 9 Sep 1513. 
+
61
M
ii.
John BUCHANAN of Arnpryor, Auchmar, and Gartartan .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-68"

62
F
iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "OF LAMOND, The Laird-70"Miss married The Laird OF LAMOND . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-69"

63
F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "OF ARDKINGLASS, The Laird-71"Miss married The Laird OF ARDKINGLASS . 
xe ", unknown-666"
Walter married (2) unknown . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Maurice-667"

64
M
v.
Maurice BUCHANAN .
The other sept of these M'Maurices, is descended of one stooping Maurice, illegitimate 
son to Walter, fourth of that name, laird of Buchanan, in the reign of king James III. 
This Maurice is reported to have been of a very huge stature, but withall so very coarse 
and unhandsome, as gave occasion for his being little regarded; so that in the time of 
king James IV., the laird of Buchanan, with most of his name, having gone to the 
battle of Flowdon, left Maurice, with some other invalids to oversee affairs at home; 
there being at that time, some feud or variance betwixt M'Kenzie, laird of Kintail and 
Buchanan. Kintail thought this a fit time to carry on the same, and sending for that 
effect, one Kenneth M'Kenzie, a brother, or some other near relation of his own, with 
eighty men to harass Buchanan's lands, these came to a hill betwixt Drymen and 
Buchanan, in sight of the latter, and being fatigued, lay down among the heather to 
take some little repose. Meanwhile, Maurice, getting some notice of the advance of his 
party, went to get surer intelligence, and passing accidentally near the hill in which the 
party lay, Kenneth, the captain, observing him, went alone to him, to get information 
of the state of the country. Maurice seeming to take little notice of him, went still on, 
giving no satisfactory answer to any of his demands; which at length so exasperated 
M'Kenzie, that he gave Maurice a stroke with his sword, not being at the trouble of 
drawing the same; which was no sooner done, than Maurice gave him such a stroke 
with his battle-ax, as clave his head to the teeth, whereupon he returned instantly to 
Buchanan, and alarmed the country.
The party in a little time awakening, aud finding their captain in that bad posture, 
returned with all speed back without doing the least violence. The place where this 
action was done, yet retains the name of Kenneth's plain. A grandchild of this Maurice, 
having killed a servant of my lord Glencairn, who resided in Kilmaronock, was obliged 
to leave his native country of Buchanan, and go to the village of Scoon, north of Tay. 
His posterity in these parts, are termed Morreises, or Morisons. Some of these came 
thence, and settled upon Forth, betwixt Stirling and Culross, of whom are descended 
most of the Morisons in those parts. There are also some of this last sept in the parish 
of Buchanan, who retain their ancient name of M'Maurice, but very few in number.
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan, pp.93-94
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Gartincaber  and Drumikill-74"
43.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Gartincaber and Drumikill  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1455. 
http://www.archive.org/stream/georgebuchananhu00browiala/georgebuchananhu00browiala_djvu.txt
GEORGE BUCHANAN 
...
It is, however, to the Buchanans of Drumikill, a younger branch of the family, that [George] Buchanan 
belongs. As Buchanan's family and clan connections had a very direct bearing on his life and opinions, it 
is necessary that these should be clearly understood. The first of the family of Drumikill was Thomas 
Buchanan, the grandson of Sir Walter Buchanan and Isobel, daughter of Murdach, Duke of Albany, and 
Isobel, heiress of Lennox. 2 To Thomas, first of Drumikill, succeeded Robert, the grandfather of George 
Buchanan. Thomas Buchanan, the father of George, was son and apparent heir to this Robert. 3 On his 
father's side, therefore, we see Buchanan's connection with the family and clan of Lennox a fact that 
claims to be specially noted in speaking of a time when, as Mr. Froude has said, " social duty in Scotland 
was overridden by the more sacred obligation of affinity 
or private bond". ...
Miscellanea Scotica  By Henry Maule pp.207 - 211
FAMILY OF DRUMIKILL.
THE estate of Drumikill, with a great many other lands in the east parts of the parish of Drymen, (as far 
as a traditional account may be relied on,) did of old belong to the name of Arral, which name, in the 
minority of king David Bruce, having associated with the enemies of their prince and country, they, upon 
the reduction of their adherents, not only continued obstinate in their rebellion, but in further 
aggravation of their guilt, committed divers other insolencies, which in the end gave just cause for their 
whole lands being forfeited, and letters of fire and sword being directed against them. The execution of 
these letters being committed to the laird of Buchanan, he did, with no small difficulty and bloodshed, 
bring the surviving remainder of these Arrals to justice. Among the number of these was Thomas Arral of 
Druinikill, commonly termed Taus na Dunnach, or Thomas the mischievous. The king is said to have 
offered this gentleman a pardon at the place of execution, which he refused, disdaining to live after so 
many of his name, who had lost their lives through his influence, and in his quarrel. After the subversion 
of these Arrals, Buchanan, in reward of his service against them, obtained Drumikill, Easter and Wester 
Ballats, and some other parts of their lands, lying most contiguous to his own estate, which the lairds of 
Buchanan retained in their own hands, till the one half of Drumikill, with Easter Ballat, was given to 
Carbeth's ancestor, as the other half, with Wester Ballat, was given to Drumikills, at the times the 
ancestors of these two families came off that of Buchanan.
There is a current tradition, that the laird of Buchanan gave the half of the estate of Drumikill, with 
Wester Ballat, and some other lands, formerly belonging to the Arrals, to one of his sons long before the 
ancestor of the present family of Drumikill came off Buchanan's family, and that Thomas, the first of this 
present race, for his first lady married the heiress of the principal person of the old family. And that 
which favours somewhat this account is, that the ancestors of the Buchanans of Drumhead and Wester 
Ballat, though always reputed cadets of Drumikill, can produce some evidents of their lands of a date not 
long posterior to the most ancient now in custody of Drumikill. But having found no document either 
among the late Buchanan's or Drumikill's evidences that can in any measure clear this allegation. I must 
leave it undetermined, though it be no way improbable, if there had been any such evidences, the same 
might by some contingency or other be lost, as are a great many of these of Buchanan, and the whole of 
baron MacAuslan's most ancient writes. However this be the first of the present family of Drumikill, that 
is recorded by the genealogical tree of Buchanan, and evidences of Drumikill, is Thomas Buchanan, son 
to Patrick, first of that name laird of Buchanan, and of Galbraith, heiress of Killearn, Bamoir, and 
Auchinreoch, his lady. The first documents relating to this Thomas, is a disposition to him, by Finnoyse 
MacAulay, heiress of a little tenement in Drymen, called Croftewer; in which disposition he is designed, 
An honourable person, Thomas Buchanan, brother-german to Walter Buchanan of that ilk; the said 
disposition being dated in the year 1482. There is a resignation by John Blair of Adamtoun, in the hands 
of William, lord Graham, of the lands of Middle Ledlewan, now Moss, for new infeftment to be given of 
these lands to Thomas Buchanan of Balleun, brother-german to Walter Buchanan of that ilk, dated in the 
year 1484. Procurators to the resignation are Walter Buchanan of that ilk, Patrick Colchoun of Glyn, and 
John Nenbolg of that ilk. There is a charter also of Balleun, by Walter, laird of Buchanan, in favour of this 
Thomas, some little time before this of Moss, in the same year. There is also charter by Matthew, earl of 
Lennox, in favour of this Thomas, designed of Balleun, of that part of the half-lands of Drumikill
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~mysouthernfamily/myff/d0044/g0000083.html
THOMAS BUCHANAN 1st of Drummikill
ID Number: I86711
OCCUPATION: of Gartincaber, Drummikill and Carbeth (a 1495)
RESIDENCE: Scotland
RESOURCES: See: [S3172] 
Father: WALTER BUCHANAN 12th of Buchanan
Mother: ISOBEL STEWART 
Notes
((c)) Thomas Buchanan of Gartincaber, Drummikill and Carbeth (a 1495) 
We follow 'Strathendrick' in identifying this Thomas as ancestor not only of the Buchanans of Carbeth (as 
agreed by BLG1952) but also as ancestor of the Buchanans of Drummikill. BLG1952 shows Thomas, son 
of Patrick of Buchanan, as the first of the Buchanans of Drummikill. 
[S3172]
Thomas had the following children:
+
65
M
i.
Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Drumikill and Gartincaber .
+
66
M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Moss .
+
67
M
iii.
William BUCHANAN of Baturrich and 1st of Blairhanachan .
+
68
M
iv.
John BUCHANAN of of Drumdash .
xe "BUCHANAN, John in Easter  Ballat-432"
47.
John BUCHANAN in Easter Ballat  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John 
xe "BUCHANAN, John in Easter  Ballat-432"BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1450 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
The second cadet of the family of Carbeth is Buchanan of Easter Ballat, his ancestor being John, second 
son to Thomas first of Carbeth. And although Thomas, eldest son to this John, fell into the interest of 
Carbeth, and left his brother William in possession of Ballat, yet it seems he did not quit the benefit of the 
tack of Ballat to his brother, till the same was sold oft'by Thomas, successor to the above Thomas, to 
Walter Buchanan, son to the said William. I find this William, who may be accounted ancestor of the 
present family of Ballat, mentioned in a discharge for five hundred merks Scots, by Semple of Craig- bat 
to Buchanan of Arnpryor, for which it seems this William was cautioner, the date of which discharge was 
in the year 1576. That which clears the conveyance of the tack of Ballat by Carbeth, is a submission 
betwixt Thomas Buchanan of Carbeth and Walter Buchanan in Easter Ballat, who refer any difference 
betwixt them in relation to Ballat to the determination of John Buchanan in Ballacondachy, John 
MacLauchlan of Auchin- troig, and Duncan Buchanan of Brachern, upon Carbeth's part; and William 
Buchanan in Batur- rich, "and John Buchanan, burgess in Dunbarton, his brother, with Andrew Galbraith 
in Tomdar- roch, upon Walter in Ballet's part; with Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill, oversman. These 
judges decerned the said Walter to pay four hundred merks Scots to Carbeth for his pretension to Ballat, 
and decerned Carbeth to maintain Walter's possession of these lands, and warrant him at the hands of 
his brethren, and all others. This submission is dated in the year 1594, and decree! was past thereon in 
January, 1595, there being a great many other persons of repute present, besides parties, who all were 
obliged to sign by a notar. For any thing I can find, this Walter had two sons, William, who succeeded in 
Ballat, and Duncan, 'who acquired the Duchless. William also had two sons, William his successor, and 
John, merchant in Stirling. William, third of that name of Ballat, had three sons, John, Walter, and 
Alexander. John of Ballat had four sons, William his successor, Walter, now in Ballat, John and Patrick, 
merchants in Glasgow. William late of Ballat's successor is John, present Ballat.
John had the following children:
+
69
M
i.
Thomas BUCHANAN 3rd of Carbeth  was born estimated 1485. 
+
70
M
ii.
William BUCHANAN 1st of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1530. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick of Carbeth-109"
48.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Carbeth  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1455 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Not listed by Auchmar
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time 
p 398
Possibly his descendants? Auchmar doesn't give his name.
The first cadet of the family of Carbeth is Buchanan in Gartfarrand in Drymen parish, whose ancestor 
seems to have been son to Thomas first of Carbeth, having obtained a beneficial tack from the lord 
Drummond, then proprietor of Gartfarrands, in which, and other parts of that country, divers of that race 
continue as yet.
xe "AUCHENREOCH, Galbraith of Killearn, Bamore and-110"
Patrick married Galbraith of Killearn, Bamore and AUCHENREOCH . 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
Patrick and Galbraith had the following children:
+
71
M
i.
Walter BUCHANAN of Carbeth  was born estimated 1475. 
+
72
M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Drumikil  was born estimated 1460. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Ballerdeorn-523"
49.
Walter BUCHANAN of Ballerdeorn  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-525"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-526"
51.
Archibald BUCHANAN  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-527"

74
M
i.
John BUCHANAN  was born in of Edinburgh, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 7th of  Lenny-537"
53.
John BUCHANAN 7th of Lenny  (Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John, third laird of Lenny, was married to Mushet of Burnbank's daughter, and had by her Patrick, his 
successor; which Patrick, married Semple of Fulwood's daughter, by whom he had Walter, his successor, 
who was killed by Shaw of Camsmore. He marrieS a daughter of Haldan, laird of Glenegeis, by whom he 
had John, his suecessor,who married the earl of Monteath's daughter. This John, in company with Patrick, second of that name, laird of Buchanan, with a good many others of best account of his name, was killed at the battle of Flowdon, anno 1513.
Auchmar, p.69
xe "MUSHET, Miss of Burnbank-543"
John married Miss MUSHET of Burnbank . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Patrick BUCHANAN 8th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Mochastel-538"
55.
Walter BUCHANAN of Mochastel  (Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The first cadet of the family of Lenny, according to the genealogical manuscript of that family, was 
Walter, third son to Andrew, laird of Lenny. This Walter obtained a beneficial tack of Mochastel in 
Callander paroch, from Balfour, lord Burleigh's ancestor, then proprietor thereof. Walter's son was called 
Andrew, whose son Patrick, had one son, Alexander.
Walter had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd of Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-642"
59.
Walter BUCHANAN  (Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To John succeeded Walter, who was married to Edmonstone of Balleun's daughter, as appears by a 
seasin in her favour, in life-rent, of the lands of Lecher, by John Buchanan, father to this Walter, dated in 
the year 1628, by whom he had 
John his successor, as is clear by charter in his favour, by James, earl of Montrose, afterward marquis, of 
an annuity of three chalder of victual, payable, irredeemably, out of the lands of Auch- neiven, dated in 
the year 1630 ; as also a precept of Clare Constat, by James, marquis of Montrose, with seasin thereon, 
to the above-mentioned John, of the lands of Auchneiven, dated anno 1668. 
Walter of Auchneiven's second son was Walter, late deacon of the bakers in Glasgow, who had four sons, 
John Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, Walter, maltman there, George, baker there, and Thomas 
Buchanan, master of a ship belonging to the said town. He had also two daughters, Marion, married to 
Robert Graham, merchant in Glasgow, and Janet, married to George Currie, merchant in that city. John 
of Auchneiven was married to Elizabeth Crawfurd, daughter to John Crawfurd, portioner of Partick. He 
had by her John his successor, and Walter Buchanan, writer in Glasgow, who acquired the lands of 
Teucher- hill in the parish of Meikle Govari.
Walter had the following children:
+
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-644"

78
M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-645"

79
M
iii.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-646"

80
M
iv.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
Sixteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 16th Laird  of Buchanan-54"
60.
Patrick BUCHANAN 16th Laird of Buchanan  (Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1483 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. He died on 9 Sep 1513 in Branxton, Northumberland, England. 
Was he ever a laird? "his father outlived him many years"
Patrick, the second of that name, albeit his father outlived him many years, yet, as in the tree of the 
family, so also in this place, he may be accounted the sixteenth laird. He was married to the earl of Argyll 
his daughter, her mother being the earl of Huntley's daughter. He had of this marriage two sons and two 
daughters, that came to age. His eldest son was George his successor, his second, Walter, Spittle's 
ancestor. His two daughters, were married to the lairds of Auchinbreck and Calder. He had also an 
illegitimate son called Robert. Patrick's successor was George, first of that name, and seventeenth laird of 
Buchanan, as is clear by charter, under the great seal, in his favour, of the lands of Buchanan, in the 
year 1530.  
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.26
xe "CAMPBELL, Margaret of Argyll-55"
Patrick married (1) Margaret CAMPBELL of Argyll  daughter of Earl OF ARGYLL and Miss OF HUNTLEY on 22 Jun 1486 in Stirling, Stirling, Scotland. 
http://listsearches.rootsweb.com/th/read/GEN-MEDIEVAL/2001-07/0996031542
... the addenda et corrigenda (vol. ix) of "The Scots_Peerage" on page 19, which corrects information 
about the family of_Colin Campbell, 1st Earl of Argyll, says: "6. Margaret, married to_Patrick Buchanan, 
younger of Buchanan, tocher 600 merks. The_marriage-contract, dated at Stirling 22 June 1486, bears 
that my lord_shall pay so much of this sum at Michaelmas "if he may gudlie gett it"_(Third Rep. Hist. 
MSS. Com., 390; Fraser's Lennox Book, ii. 127, 128;_Argyll Charter-Chest)."
Patrick and Margaret had the following children:
+
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i.
George BUCHANAN 17th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1500. 
+
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN 1 of Spittel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-59"
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iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "OF AUCHINBRECK, The Laird-61"Miss married The Laird OF AUCHINBRECK . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-60"
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iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "OF CALDER, The Laird-62"Miss married The Laird OF CALDER . 
He had the following children:
+
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v.
Robert the Coich BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1510. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Arnpryor,  Auchmar, and Gartartan-67"
61.
John BUCHANAN of Arnpryor, Auchmar, and Gartartan  (Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Arnpryor,  Auchmar, and Gartartan-67"BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Auchmar writes" the oldest writes of this family having been ... lost" the best record is an old family tree 
dated 1600 "John Buchanan 1st of Arnpryor ... second son to Walter 4th of that name, laird of Buchanan, 
and of Lord Graham's daughter"  
1st of Arnpryor, the King of Kippen
Menzies of Arnprior, having no heir, a major land owner in the area Forrester tried to coerce him into 
deeding the land to Forrester. Instead Menzies appealed for help from Buchanan of that ilk, offering 
Arnprior in return for safety.
Miscellanea Scotica - Memoirs of the ancient alliance between France and Scotland. pp.200-210 quoting
Buchanan's inquiry into the genealogy and present state of ancient Scottish surnames with the history of 
the family of Buchanan. 
The oldest writes of this family either carried off when the last laird of Arn went to Ireland or some other 
way lost manner of the descent thereof off the family of cannot be so clearly illustrated as otherwise it 
might The most clear document for that purpose is the genealogical tree of the family of Buchanan which 
positively asserts John Buchanan first of Arnpryor to have been second son to Walter fourth of that name 
laird f Buchanan and of the lord Graham's daughter which tree being composed anno 1600 the 
composers thereof might have lived in or near the latter part of this gentleman's lifetime so that the 
account given thereby may fully satisfy all such as are not too much addicted to criticism or needless 
scrupulosity. The portion this gentleman obtained from his father the laird of Buchanan was the lands of 
Auchmar which at his death returned to the family of Buchanan as the custom was of appenage or 
tanistry lands The manner of his obtaining of the lands of Arnpryor was pretty singular being this.
In the reign of king James IV and for divers ages before the Meinzieses were proprietors of a great part 
of the parish of Kippen and some of the parish of Killearn though scarce any memory of that name 
remains in either of those parishes in this age A gentleman of that name being laird of Arnpryor at the 
above mentioned juncture who had no children of his own nor any of his name in these parts that could 
pretend any relation to him was for some time at variance with one Forrester of Carden a very toping 
gentleman of Arnpryor's neighbourhood who upon account of his neighbour Arnpryor's circumstances 
sent a menacing kind of message to him either to dispone his estate in his favour voluntarily otherwise 
he would dispossess him of it by force. 
Arnpryor not being of power to oppose Garden and being loath to give his estate by compulsion to his 
enemy judged it the more proper as well as honourable method to dispone his estate to some other 
gentleman who would counterbalance Carden and would maintain the rightful owner in possession 
thereof during his life. In this exigency he had recourse to the laird of Buchanan offering to dispone his 
estate to one of Buchanan's sons if he would defend him from any violence offered by Carden. Buchanan 
readily accepted of the offer and so far undervalued Garden that he sent his second son then only a child 
without any other guard than his dry nurse to oversee him along with Arnpryor to be kept by him as his 
heir.
Upon notice hereof Garden came to Arnpryor's house with a resolution to kill him or oblige him to send 
back Buchanan's son and grant his former demands Arnpryor having gone out of the way Carden very 
imperiously ordered the woman who attended Buchanan's child to carry him back forthwith whence he 
came otherwise he would burn Arnpryor's house and them together The woman replied that she would 
not desert the house for any thing he durst do telling him withal if he offered the least violence it would 
be revenged to his cost This stout reply was somewhat damping to Carden who at the same time 
reflecting that he would not only be obnoxious to the laws for any violent measures he should take but 
also to enmity with Buchanan which he was by no means able to support therefore followed the safest 
course by desisting for the future
...
This John Buchanan of Auchmar and Arnpryor was afterwards termed king of Kippen upon the following 
account King James V a very sociable debonair prince residing at Stirling in Buchanan of Arnpryor's time 
carriers were very frequently passing along the common road being near Arnpryor's house with 
necessaries for the use of the king's family and he having some ex traordinary occasion ordered one of 
these carriers to leave his load at his house and he would pay him for it which the carrier refused to do 
telling him he was the king's carrier and his load for his majesty's use to which Arnpryor seemed to have 
small regard compelling the carrier in the end to leave his load telling him if king James was king of 
Scotland he was king of Kippen so that it was reasonable he should share with his neighbour king in 
some of these loads so frequently carried that road. The carrier representing this usage and telling the 
story as Arnpryor spoke it to some of the king's servants it came at length to his majesty's ears who 
shortly thereafter with a few attendants came to visit his neighbour king who was in the meantime at 
dinner King James having sent a servant to demand access was denied the same by a tall fellow with a 
battle ax who stood porter at the gate telling there could he no access till dinner was over. This answer 
not satisfying the king, he sent to demand access a second time upon which he was desired by the porter 
to desist otherwise he would find cause to repent his rudeness. His majesty finding this method would 
not do desired the porter to tell his master that the Good man of Ballageich desired to speak with the 
king of Kippen. The porter telling Arnpryor so much he in all humble manner came and received the king 
and having entertained him with much sumptuousness and jollity became so agreeable to king James 
that he allowed him to take so much of any provision he found carrying that road as be had occasion for 
and seeing he made the first visit desired Arnpryor in a few days to return him a second at Stirling which 
he performed and continued in very much favour with the king always thereafter being termed king of 
Kippen while he lived. 
Arnpryor had also the lands of Gartartan by Arnpryor had also the lands of Gartartan by which he was 
sometimes designed particularly he is so designed in a charter in his favour by John Commendator of 
Inchmahomo of certain lands called Hornhaugh He obtained charter of the lands of Brachern from John 
McNair heritor thereof dated in the year 1530 There is a certain traditional account that the lands of 
Brachern after Arnpryor obtained right thereto were violently possessed by one McTormad captain of a 
company of outlaws who with his associates in number twenty four coming to a tavern in Drymen parish 
at a place called Chappellairoch. Arnpryor upon notice thereof came in the nighttime to the tavern 
accompanied with some few horsemen and finding these outlaws overcome with liquor and sleep made 
fast the door of the house where they lay and then set fire to it all therein being either burnt or killed. He 
afterwards gave the lands of Brachern with those of Cashly to one of his sons. 
This brave gentleman with divers others of his name being killed at the battle of Pinky in queen Mary's 
minority he was succeeded by ANDREW his eldest son as is clear by charter in his favour and of John 
Buchanan his son and apparent heir of the lands of Arnpryor dated in the year 1560 There is also a 
charter by Bartholomew Bane in favour of the said Andrew of the Milntown of Buchlyvie dated in the year 
1557 Andrew had two sons John his successor and Walter to whom his father disponed the Milntown or 
as others write Hiltown of Buoh lyvie had John third There is little account to be had of John third laird of 
Arnpryor or his successors for two descents upon account of the loss of the principal writes of that family 
The last of these who was in possession of Arnpryor was John who sold those lands to Sir John laird of 
Buchanan and were by him disponed to John Buchanan of Mochastel of Lenny's family and grandfather 
to Francis Buchanan now of Arnprvor John Buchanan who sold Arnpryor having gone to Ireland was 
killed by the Irish in the year 1641 He had two sons William and David who both died without issue He 
had also three daughters Dorothy first married to Robert Buchanan one of king Charles I his butlers To"
xe "LEVINGSTOUN, Dorothy-41"John married Dorothy LEVINGSTOUN . 
name from FamilySearch
John and Dorothy had the following children:
+
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i.
Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd of Arnpryor .
+
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ii.
Duncan BUCHANAN of Brachern .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Drumikill and Gartincaber-294"
65.
Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Drumikill and Gartincaber  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The same Thomas grants charter of the half-lands of Drumikill to Robert Buchanan his son in fee, with 
reservation of his own, and Geils Cuningham, his spouse's life-rents, dated in the year 1495. This Thomas, upon the death of Thomas Buchanan of Carbeth, his uncle, obtained the lands Gartincaber, which he and his successors retained possession of until Carbeth sold his half of Drumikill, to the proprietor of the other half of that estate, upon which occasion Carbeth re-obtained the beneficial tack of Gartincaber, of which a cadet of his family is now in possession. And this seems to be the ground of the error into which some have run, concerning the ancestors of these two families being the same, in regard two Thomases, whose age differed so little, were proprietors of Gartincaber, and sometimes designed thereby. Thomas Buchanan of Carbeth's resignation of the half-lands of Drumikill, in the hands of James Halden of Glenegeis, superior thereof, and Glenegeis's confirmation of these lands in favour of Robert Buchanan, are dated in the year 1565. Thomas Buchanan first of Drumikill was married to Geils Cuningham, daughter to Cuningham of Drumquhassil; and by her as far as can be collected, he had four sons, that came to age; Robert his successor, Thomas, afterwards of Moss, William of Baturrich, now Drumhead, and John of Drumdash, afterwards of Camochoill and Wester Ballat.
There was one Angus Buchanan of Finnicktenent, reputed a cadet of Drumikill, and if so, behoved to be a 
third son of Robert, second laird of Drumikill. The last of that family went to Ireland, more than an age 
ago. There being no account whether any of that race be remaining in that kingdom or not, there is no 
great occasion to insist too much upon the descent of the same.
xe "CUNINGHAM, Geils of-295"
Robert married Geils of CUNINGHAM  daughter of CUNINGHAM of Drumquhassil. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Drumikill .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Moss-298"
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ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Moss .
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Baturrich  and Drumhead-299"
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William BUCHANAN of Baturrich and Drumhead .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Drumdash,  Camochoill and Wester Ballat-300"
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iv.
John BUCHANAN of Drumdash, Camochoill and Wester Ballat .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Moss-335"
66.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Moss  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Moss-335"Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The first cadet of the family of Drumikill, was Thomas Buchanan, second son to Thomas Buchanan, first 
of Drumikill, who obtained the lands of Moss. He married Agnes Herriot, daughter to Herriot of Trabrown, 
and had by her three sons. Of these was Patrick, sent to the king of Denmark to require that Hepburn, 
earl of Bothwel, then prisoner. in that kingdom* should be sent to Scotland in order to be punished for 
Darnlie's murder. This Patrick had no male issue; so that the Moss, by virtue of some certain clause in his 
father Patrick's charter of the same, returned to the laird of Drumikill, or was purchased by him. Thomas 
of Moss's other two sons, were Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and the great Mr. George Buchanan.
There are some of opinion, that Patrick, Alexander, and Mr. George were sons of Thomas, eldest son of 
Robert, second Drumikill. But this supposition is clearly overthrown by a charter among Drumikill's 
evidences lately perused by me, which had escaped me upon my first perusal of them, being a charter of 
William, earl of Montrose, to Thomas Buchanan, brother-german to Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, as 
nearest heir to Thomas Buchanan, his pupillus, that is, as I take it, his nephew, or brother's son, of the 
lands of Moss. So that the Moss being then the appenage, or second son's portion of the family of 
Drumikill; and this Thomas, being the only second son existing at that time, obtained these lands, at 
least during his own lifetime, as the custom of such lands was then, and for a long time thereafter. For 
further illustration of this matter, I have seen in the hands of George Buchanan of Bellachruin, lineal 
successor of Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and consequently representer of the family of Moss, a 
discharge by Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, to Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, his cousin, and emm, 
discharging his intromission for some years, with the rents of a part of the estate of Drumikill.
xe "HERRIOT, Agnes of Trabrown-336"
Thomas married Agnes HERRIOT of Trabrown . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-337"
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i.
Patrick BUCHANAN .
no male issue
+
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ii.
Alexander BUCHANAN of Ibert .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-339"
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M
iii.
George BUCHANAN .
the famous scholar and reformer
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Baturrich  and 1st of Blairhanachan-345"
67.
William BUCHANAN of Baturrich and 1st of Blairhanachan  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The next cadet of the family of Drumikill, to that of Moss, was William Buchanan of Baturrich, third son 
to Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill. The first lands obtained after he came off that family, were those of 
Meikle Baturrich in Kilmaronock parish. He married one of the name of M'Aulay, Heiress of Blairhenachan, 
now Drumhead, in the parish of Cardross, and shire of Dunbarton ; as appears by charter in favour of the 
said William Buchanan, dated in the year 1530. The genealogical tree of the family of Buchanan, asserts 
this William to have been married to Arncaple's daughter; but it seems this M'Aulay of Blairhenachan, 
whose heiress he married, was a son of the family of Arncaple, so that the error is not very considerable. 
William first of Blairhanachan's successor, was Robert, who obtained a charter of these lands from 
Alexander M'Aulay of Arncaple, dated in the year 1552. This Robert made an excambion with Haldan of 
Glenegeis, of the lands of Baturrich, with those of Blairwhoish, in possession of which Drumhead 
continues. Robert above-mentioned, had three sons, Robert, his successor; Mungo, first of Tullichewn; 
and John, or as others say with no less probability, Thomas, first of Drumfad.
xe "MCAULAY, Miss of Blairhenachan  now Drumhead-346"
William married Miss MCAULAY of Blairhenachan now Drumhead . 
heiress
William and Miss had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Blairhanachan .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of of  Drumdash-382"
68.
John BUCHANAN of of Drumdash  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The third cadet of the family of Drumikill, was John, fourth son to Thomas, first of Drumikill, who for 
patrimony, got a beneficial tack of Drumdash in Drymen parish. He was killed by the Buchanans of Cashill, and succeeded by his son Walter, who sold Drumdash, and obtained a tack of Camochoil, and purchased the Spittel of Wester Ballat, from the M'Convels, heiresses thereof, about the year 1552. He also got a grasoum tack of Wester Ballat. He had two sons John and Duncan, John, his eldest son, had no male issue, the beneficial tack of Camochoil, by that means fell to his daughters. The eldest of these being married to one Blair, conveyed with her the Camochoil, being <http://books.google.com/
books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA215&dq=Scots+wedset&output=text>Continue » <http://books.
google.com/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA225&dq=Scots+wedset&output=text>
John had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN of Camochoil and of Wester Ballat .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 3rd of  Carbeth-433"
69.
Thomas BUCHANAN 3rd of Carbeth  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1485 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Thomas Buchanan, son and heir to the deceased John Buchanan in Easter Ballat, as nearest heir to his 
uncle Thomas of Carbeth, obtained charter from John Halden of Glenegeis, in favour of himself and Janet 
Buchanan his spouse in life- rent, and of Thomas Buchanan his son in fee, of the lands of Carbeth, in the 
year 1555. This Thomas the third of Carbeth is said to have been first married to a daughter of Douglas 
of Mains, by whom he had Thomas his successor; and for his second wife, was married to a daughter of 
the laird of Buchanan. By her he had five sons, and one daughter, married to Gregor MacGregor, 
Glengyle's ancestor. The sons were, John, Walter, William, Archibald, and Robert.
The third cadet of the family of Carbeth was John, first son of the second marriage to Thomas, third of 
that name, of Carbeth. This John obtained the tack of Gartincaber. He had two sons, George and Walter, 
and two daughters, the eldest married to William Buchanan, first of Ross, the other to one MacAuslan. 
George had four sons, the eldest John, for whom his father acquired the lands of Blairluisk. John had two 
sons, George, who went to Ireland, and William. George sold Blairluisk to his brother William, now of 
Blairluisk, who hath two sons, George, younger of Blairluisk, and John, merchant in England. George, 
who sold Blairluisk, hath four sons, John and William, who reside in the county of Tyrone, George, who 
resides in Munster, and Thomas, in the county of Donegal!. John first of Gartiricaber's second son was 
Walter, who had no male issue. John had an illegitimate son, Thomas, who went to Ireland, and had one 
son, John, whose only son, George, in Glenmaqueen, had four sons, John, William, Matthew, and George, who. reside mostly in the counties of Derry and Donegal!. George of Gartincaber's second son, George, was father to Thomas Buchanan in Creitchael, in Buchanan parish. He had another son, Andrew, father to George and Patrick Buchanan in Ledrish, in Buchanan parish. George's third son was Thomas, who purchased in heritage a part of Gartincaber. He had two sons, William, who acquired Ardoch in 
Kilmaronock parish, and George, late of Gartincaber, who left four sons, John, now of Gartincaber, 
Thomas, merchant in England, Ougal and Robert. George's fourth son was Andrew, who had three sons, 
two of these having gone to Ireland, and one residing in Drymen parish. George had also a daughter 
married to Andrew Buchanan of Gartachairn.
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet of Buchanan-434"
Thomas married (1) Janet BUCHANAN of Buchanan . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-438"

97
M
i.
Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William-439"
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ii.
William BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-440"
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iii.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-441"
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iv.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-442"
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v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
By her he had five sons, and one daughter, married to Gregor MacGregor, Glengyle's 
ancestor. The sons were, John, Walter, William, Archibald, and Robert.
xe "MACGREGOR, Gregor-443"Miss married Gregor MACGREGOR . 
xe "DOUGLAS, Miss of Mains-436"
Thomas married (2) Miss DOUGLAS of Mains . 
They had the following children:
+
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vi.
John BUCHANAN 1st of Gartincaber .
+
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vii.
Thomas BUCHANAN 4th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1520. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William 1st of  Easter Ballat-472"
70.
William BUCHANAN 1st of Easter Ballat  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1530 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Note the major discrepancy in the estimated birthdates. Something looks wrong here.
The second cadet of the family of Carbeth is Buchanan of Easter Ballat, his ancestor being John, second 
son to Thomas first of Carbeth. And although Thomas, eldest son to this John, fell into the interest of 
Carbeth, and left his brother William in possession of Ballat, yet it seems he did not quit the benefit of the 
tack of Ballat to his brother, till the same was sold off by Thomas, successor to the above Thomas, to 
Walter Buchanan, son to the said William. 
I find this William, who may be accounted ancestor of the present family of Ballat, mentioned in a 
discharge for five hundred merks Scots, by Semple of Craigbat to Buchanan of Arnpryor, for which it 
seems this William was cautioner, the date of which discharge was in the year 1576. That which clears 
the conveyance of the tack of Ballat by Carbeth, is a submission betwixt Thomas Buchanan of Carbeth 
and Walter Buchanan in Easter Ballat, who refer any difference betwixt them in relation to Ballat to the 
determination of John Buchanan in Ballacondachy, John MacLauchlan of Auchintroig, and Duncan 
Buchanan of Brachern, upon Carbeth's part; and William Buchanan in Baturrich, and John Buchanan, 
burgess in Dunbarton, his brother, with Andrew Galbraith in Tomdarroch, upon Walter in Ballet's part; 
with Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill, oversman. These judges decerned the said Walter to pay four 
hundred merks Scots to Carbeth for his pretension to Ballat, and decerned Carbeth to maintain Walter's 
possession of these lands, and warrant him at the hands of his brethren, and all others. This submission 
is dated in the year 1594, and decree! was past thereon in January, 1595, there being a great many 
other persons of repute present, besides parties, who all were obliged to sign by a notar. 
For any thing I can find, this Walter had two sons, William, who succeeded in Ballat, and Duncan, who 
acquired the Duchless. 
William also had two sons, William his successor, and John, merchant in Stirling. William, third of that 
name of Ballat, had three sons, John, Walter, and Alexander. John of Ballat had four sons, William his 
successor, Walter, now in Ballat, John and Patrick, merchants in Glasgow. William late of Ballat's 
successor is John, present Ballat.
William had the following children:
+
104
M
i.
Walter BUCHANAN 2nd of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1560. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Carbeth-112"
71.
Walter BUCHANAN of Carbeth  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1475 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
xe "GRAHAM, Miss-113"
Walter married Miss GRAHAM  daughter of The Lord GRAHAM. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
Same or different?
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~rykbrown/stewart_of_ardvorlich.htm
James [Stewart] married secondly to Janet BUCHANAN, widow of Walter Buchanan, ancestor of Arnprior.  
Her birth surname is unknown.  They had no known children.  James had the following "natural" (i.e. 
illegitimate) son by an unknown woman, probably born between his marriages.
-
 John Dubh Mhor STEWART of Dalveich b: ABT 1630 in Loch Earn, Perthshire, Scotland.  John became 
chief of the Stewarts of Dalveich.
Walter and Miss had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1500. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Drumikil-111"
72.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Drumikil  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1460 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
Thomas had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1480. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 8th of  Lenny-544"
75.
Patrick BUCHANAN 8th of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John, third laird of Lenny, was married to Mushet of Burnbank's daughter, and had by her Patrick, his 
successor; which Patrick, married Semple of Fulwood's daughter, by whom he had Walter, his successor, 
who was killed by Shaw of Camsmore. He marries a daughter of Haldan, laird of Glenegeis, by whom he 
had John, his suecessor,who married the earl of Monteath's daughter. This John, in company with Patrick, second of that name, laird of Buchanan, with a good many others of best account of his name, was killed at the battle of Flowdon, anno 1513.
xe "SEMPLE, Miss of Fulwood-545"
Patrick married Miss SEMPLE of Fulwood . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN 9th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew 2nd of  Mochastel-571"
76.
Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd of Mochastel  (Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
Patrick BUCHANAN 3rd of Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-643"
77.
John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven  (Walter BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John of Auchneiven was married to Elizabeth Crawfurd, daughter to John Crawfurd, portioner of Partick. 
He had by her John his successor, and Walter Buchanan, writer in Glasgow, who acquired the lands of 
Teucherhill in the parish of Meikle Govan.
xe "CRAWFURD, Elizabeth-647"
xe "CRAWFURD, Elizabeth-647"John married Elizabeth CRAWFURD . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven .
+
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Teucherhill .
Seventeenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, George 17th Laird  of Buchanan-42"
81.
George BUCHANAN 17th Laird of Buchanan  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1500 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Patrick's successor was George, first of that name, and seventeenth laird of Buchanan, as is clear by 
charter, under the great seal, in his favour, of the lands of Buchanan, in the year 1530. He purchased the 
lands of Duchray and others, as evinces charter thereof, anno 1532. He was made sheriff-principal of 
Dunbartonshire, anno 1561. He was first married to Margaret Edmonstone, daughter to the laird of 
Duntreath. her mother being Shaw of Sauchy's daughter. He had of this marriage John his successor. He 
married for his second lady, Janet Cunninghame, daughter to Cunninghame of Craigens, being first 
married to the laird of Houstoun. He had with his second lady, William, ancestor of Buchanan of Auchmar, in whose favour his father grants charter of the thirteen merk land of Straithyre, in the year 1556. He had also of this marriage one daughter, Margaret, first married to Cunninghame of Robertland, secondly, to Stirling of Glorat, and, lastly, to Douglas of Maines. George was succeeded by John, second of that name, and eighteenth laird of Buchanan. 
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.26-27
[received a charter in 1530, Sherriff-Princpal of Dunbartonshire in 1561]
In 1565 Sir George Buchanan thought that Grey Colin's men had killed his servant and taken 160 of his 
tenants' cattle and 20 horses and mares. Since he had given his bond of manrent to Argyll, he therefore 
complained to the 5th earl as his lord and demanded redress. Argyll in his turn wrote to Grey Colin telling 
him to return Buchanan's goods and provide recompense and reminding Glenorchy that Buchanan was 
an important servitor who needed to be satisfied. Grey Colin sent an angry reply to the earl, declaring 
that particular raid had not taken Buchanan's cattle and pointing out with some asperity that as a 
Campbell he was more important than Buchanan. The letters have survived in the Breadalbane Collection 
in the National Archives [NAS GD112] and my transcripts are available online [http://www.div.ed.ac.uk/
scottishletters]
xe "EDMONSTONE, Margaret-43"
George married (1) Margaret EDMONSTONE  daughter of Mr. EDMONSTONE Laird of Dunreith and Miss SHAW of Sauchy. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 18th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1530. 
xe "CUNNINGHAME, Janet-46"
George married (2) Janet CUNNINGHAME  daughter of Mr. CUNNINGHAME of Craigens. 
They had the following children:
+
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ii.
William BUCHANAN of Auchmar and Straithyre  was born estimated 1520. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Margaret-50"
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iii.
Margaret BUCHANAN .
xe "CUNNINGHAME, Mr. of Robertland-51"Margaret married (1) Mr. CUNNINGHAME of Robertland . 
xe "STIRLING, Mr. of Glorat-52"Margaret married (2) Mr. STIRLING of Glorat . 
xe "DOUGLAS, Mr. of Maines-53"Margaret married (3) Mr. DOUGLAS of Maines . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 1 of  Spittel-58"
82.
Walter BUCHANAN 1 of Spittel  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Ancestor of Buchanan of Spittle
His charter is largely illegible, but probably from his father. p. 38
"in the latter part of King James V his reign, Walter Buchanan of Spittle is designed brother-german to 
George Buchanan of that ilk: also in a saisin by that same laird of the lands of Auchmar, anno 1547."
Charter by Alexander, Master of Glencairn of the lands of Arrorochymore in 1530.
Charter from Andrew Cunninghame of Blairwhoish to Walter Buchanan and his wife Isabel Cuningham to 
the lands of Blairvocky in 1535.
xe "CUNINGHAM, Isabel of Glencairn-184"
Walter married Isabel CUNINGHAM of Glencairn  daughter of CUNINGHAM earl of Glencairn. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 2 of Spittel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-187"
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ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Drumikill-188"Miss married Walter BUCHANAN of Drumikill . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich-63"
85.
Robert the Coich BUCHANAN  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1510 in Stirling, Scotland. 
illegitimate according to Auchmar: "He had also an illegitimate son called Robert."
The ancestor of the Buchanans in Arduill was Robert Coich, or mad Robert, well known to be son to 
Patrick, second of that name laird of Buchanan, in the reign of king James IV, as by un- controverted 
tradition is asserted. He was, upon account of his passionate or precipitant temper, termed Coich, or mad, more especially from two mad adventures of his. 
The first of which was, his being engaged, under a great penalty, to present a certain malefactor to the 
laird of Buchanan, and the person to be presented dying before the prefixed time of presentation, mad 
Robert's surety was charged to pay the penalty; whereupon he went to the place where the principal was 
interred, and having digged up his corps, carried the same, and threw it upon the court table before the 
laird and company, protesting thereupon to be free of the penalty for non-production. The laird, and 
others present, being somewhat surprised at this uncommon action, frankly acquitted the penalty, lest a 
greater inconveniency might ensue upon refusal. 
The second of mad Robert's adventures was, his killing a gentleman who belonged to the lord Graham, 
for no other reason, but that the said gentleman, by his lord's orders, was going to uplift the rents of 
certain lands in the upper part of Buchanan parish, then belonging to the lord Graham, and which Robert 
disdained should be possessed by any other than a Buchanan, it being contiguous to their estate.
The lord Graham, justly incensed at this action, had recourse to Buchanan for reparation, 'which seeing 
not very practicable to be had of the actor, and Buchanan having satisfied my lord of his not being 
accessory to that affair, my lord was obliged for preventing future inconveniences, to make an exchange 
of the lands in Buchanan parish, with those of Bamoir, lying near to his other estate, and which then 
pertained to Buchanan.
Mad Robert had only one son, called Patrick, who, as his father had that of Coich, had the nickname of 
Courrui, or champion ; the reason of giving that epithet to him being this; the families of Argyll and 
Buchanan being at variance in this Patrick's time, Argyll and Buchanan, each of them attended with a 
select party of horsemen, according to the custom of these times, met accidentally at Cramond water, 
the one coming from, the other going for, Edinburgh ; these two parties standing upon each bank of the 
river, and neither of them adventuring to enter the same; at length Patrick Buchanan, mad Robert's son, 
couching his spear, and setting spurs to his horse, jumped boldly with no little noise into the river, and 
past through, Buchanan with his party following him. Upon which Argyll's party stood a little aside, and 
left the passage clear. Upon Patrick's jumping into the water, Argyll said in Irish to the laird of Kilmartin, 
who stood next him, " By St. Martin that is a massy champion," in Irish Courrui, whence Patrick was 
always termed afterwards the Courrui, or Champion. He had four sons, Finlay, Alexander, Thomas, and 
Patrick. Of Finlay, the eldest of these, are descended Alexander Buchanan, father to James Buchanan, 
now of Cremannan, who, with his sons, resides in Ireland; Mr. James Buchanan, 'who purchased the 
lands of Cremannan, and having no issue, disponed those lands to the present James of Cremannan his 
nephew. The Buchanans, possessors for a long time of Blairour in Dry- men parish, of which John 
Buchanan in Easter Balfunning, Thomas Buchanan, stabler in Edin* burgh, with some others, are also 
descended off the said Finlay.
Of Alexander, Patrick's second son, are descended the Buchanans, for some time possessors of Bal- 
lantone and Gaidrew of Drumquhassil.
Of Thomas the third son, are descended the Buchanans in Wester Arduill in Buchanan parish, ordinarily 
termed Donald MacThomas, his race.
Of Patrick, the fourth son of Patrick the Cour- rui, is descended Finlay Buchanan, in Laggan of Tyrconnell 
in Ireland, who has some brethren, and other relations of that race, residing near Ra- pho and some 
other places of that kingdom.
Robert had the following children:
+
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i.
Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew 2nd of  Arnpryor-265"
86.
Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd of Arnpryor  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Miscellanea Scotica - Memoirs of the ancient alliance between France and Scotland. pp.200-210 quoting
Buchanan's inquiry into the genealogy and present state of ancient Scottish surnames with the history of 
the family of Buchanan. 
This brave gentleman with divers others of his name being killed at the battle of Pinky in queen Mary's 
minority he was succeeded by ANDREW his eldest son as is clear by charter in his favour and of John 
Buchanan his son and apparent heir of the lands of Arnpryor dated in the year 1560 There is also a 
charter by Bartholomew Bane in favour of the said Andrew of the Milntown of Buchlyvie dated in the year 
1557 Andrew had two sons John his successor and Walter to whom his father disponed the Milntown or 
as others write Hiltown of Buoh lyvie had John third There is little account to be had of John third laird of 
Arnpryor or his successors for two descents upon account of the loss of the principal writes of that family 
The last of these who was in possession of Arnpryor was John who sold those lands to Sir John laird of 
Buchanan and were by him disponed to John Buchanan of Mochastel of Lenny's family and grandfather 
to Francis Buchanan now of Arnprvor John Buchanan who sold Arnpryor having gone to Ireland was 
killed by the Irish in the year 1641 He had two sons William and David who both died without issue He 
had also three daughters Dorothy first married to Robert Buchanan one of king Charles I his butlers To"
Andrew had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 3rd of Arnpryor .
+
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Milntown of Buchlyvie .
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan of Brachern-276"
87.
Duncan BUCHANAN of Brachern  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan of Innerpafray-277"
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i.
Duncan BUCHANAN of Innerpafray .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Drumikill-297"
88.
Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Drumikill  (Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "HAY, Margaret-301"
Robert married Margaret HAY . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Drumikill .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Wester  Cameron-304"
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ii.
John BUCHANAN of Wester Cameron .
The fourth cadet of the family of Drumikill, was John of Cameron, second son to 
Robert, second of Drumikill. He was married to Denniestoun of Auchindinnan's 
daughter. He obtained the lands of Wester Cameron in tack ; his son having afterwards 
purchased the same in heritage, which was sold by Walter, grandfather to the present 
William in Cameron, to Drumikill. There are few, or none of this family remaining, 
except William, now in Cameron, who hath three sons, Walter, William and John, all 
married. William had a brother called George, who went abroad.
xe "DENNIESTOUN, Miss of Auchindinnan-393"John married Miss DENNIESTOUN of Auchindinnan . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander of Ibert-338"
93.
Alexander BUCHANAN of Ibert  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice 
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander of Ibert-338"BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Thomas of Moss's second son, was Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, who had two sons, the eldest of whom, 
was Mr. Thomas Buchanan, as is clear by charter of Ibert in his favour, by Mr. Thomas Archibald, Vicar of 
Dry men, of date 1567 years. He became lord privy-seal, upon demission of that office by his uncle, Mr. 
George. He married a daughter of the second marriage, of John, laird of Buchanan ; by whom he had 
two daughters, the eldest married to Patrick Buchanan of Auchmar, the second to Captain Henry 
Cuningham. John, second son to Alexander of Ibert, acquired the lands of Ballachruin, being ancestor to 
George Buchanan of Ballachruin, whose brethren were Moses Buchanan, Merchant; and Arthur, Wright in 
Glasgow; and William, who left one son George, who went abroad. There are also descended of this 
family, Buchanan, lately of Harperstoun; Buchanan, portioner of Clober, with some others. Thomas of 
Moss's third son, was the said Mr. George Buchanan
Alexander had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN 2nd of Ibert .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Ballachruin-341"
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ii.
John BUCHANAN of Ballachruin .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Blairhanachan-347"
95.
Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Blairhanachan  (William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
William first of Blairhanachan's successor, was Robert, who obtained a charter of these lands from 
Alexander M'Aulay of Arncaple, dated in the year 1552. This Robert made an excambion with Haldan of 
Glenegeis, of the lands of Baturrich, with those of Blairwhoish, in possession of which Drumhead 
continues. Robert above-mentioned, had three sons, Robert, his successor; Mungo, first of Tullichewn; 
and John, or as others say with no less probability, Thomas, first of Drumfad.
Robert had the following children:
+
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Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Blairhanachan  was born estimated 1560. 
+
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ii.
Mungo BUCHANAN 1st of Tullichewn  was born estimated 1565. 
+
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iii.
John or Thomas BUCHANAN 1st of Drumfad  was born estimated 1570. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Camochoil  and of Wester Ballat-383"
96.
Walter BUCHANAN of Camochoil and of Wester Ballat  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN of Camochoil .
+
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ii.
Duncan BUCHANAN of Wester Ballat .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 1st of  Gartincaber-395"
102.
John BUCHANAN 1st of Gartincaber  (Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The third cadet of the family of Carbeth was John, first son of the second marriage to Thomas, third of 
that name, of Carbeth. This John obtained the tack of Gartincaber. He had two sons, George and Walter, 
and two daughters, the eldest married to William Buchanan, first of Ross, the other to one MacAuslan. 
George had four sons, the eldest John, for whom his father acquired the lands of Blairluisk. John had two 
sons, George, who went to Ireland, and William. George sold Blairluisk to his brother William, now of 
Blairluisk, who hath two sons, George, younger of Blairluisk, and John, merchant in England. George, 
who sold Blairluisk, hath four sons, John and William, who reside in the county of Tyrone, George, who 
resides in Munster, and Thomas, in the county of Donegal!. John first of Gartiricaber's second son was 
Walter, who had no male issue. John had an illegitimate son, Thomas, who went to Ireland, and had one 
son, John, whose only son, George, in Glenmaqueen, had four sons, John, William, Matthew, and George, who reside mostly in the counties of Derry and Donegal!. George of Gartincaber's second son, George, was father to Thomas Buchanan in Creitchael, in Buchanan parish. He had another son, Andrew, father to George and Patrick Buchanan in Ledrish, in Buchanan parish. George's third son was Thomas, who purchased in heritage a part of Gartincaber. He had two sons, William, who acquired Ardoch in 
Kilmaronock parish, and George, late of Gartincaber, who left four sons, John, now of Gartincaber, 
Thomas, merchant in England, Ougal and Robert. George's fourth son was Andrew, who had three sons, 
two of these having gone to Ireland, and one residing in Drymen parish. George had also a daughter 
married to Andrew Buchanan of Gartachairn.
John had the following children:
+
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i.
George BUCHANAN 2nd of Gartincaber .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-486"
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
John first of Gartiricaber's second son was Walter, who had no male issue.
+
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iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-488"
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iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "MACAUSLAND,-489"Miss married MACAUSLAND . 
xe ", UNKNOWN-497"
John married (2) UNKNOWN  unmarried. 
They had the following children:
+
133
M
v.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 4th of  Carbeth-435"
103.
Thomas BUCHANAN 4th of Carbeth  (Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1520 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Thomas had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN 5th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1550. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 2nd of  Easter Ballat-473"
104.
Walter BUCHANAN 2nd of Easter Ballat  (William BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1560 in of Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
From Auchmar, Walter acquired Easter Ballat in 1594, so Walter was probably born in 1550-1560. I am 
estimating 1560.
I find this William, who may be accounted ancestor of the present family of Ballat, mentioned in a 
discharge for five hundred merks Scots, by Semple of Craigbat to Buchanan of Arnpryor, for which it 
seems this William was cautioner, the date of which discharge was in the year 1576. 
That which clears the conveyance of the tack of Ballat by Carbeth, is a submission betwixt Thomas 
Buchanan of Carbeth and Walter Buchanan in Easter Ballat, who refer any difference betwixt them in 
relation to Ballat to the determination of John Buchanan in Ballacondachy, John MacLauchlan of 
Auchintroig, and Duncan Buchanan of Brachern, upon Carbeth's part; and William Buchanan in Baturrich, 
and John Buchanan, burgess in Dunbarton, his brother, with Andrew Galbraith in Tomdarroch, upon 
Walter in Ballet's part; with Thomas Buchanan of Drumikill, oversman. These judges decerned the said 
Walter to pay four hundred merks Scots to Carbeth for his pretension to Ballat, and decerned Carbeth to 
maintain Walter's possession of these lands, and warrant him at the hands of his brethren, and all others. 
This submission is dated in the year 1594, and decree! was past thereon in January, 1595, there being a 
great many other persons of repute present, besides parties, who all were obliged to sign by a notar. 
For any thing I can find, this Walter had two sons, William, who succeeded in Ballat, and Duncan, who 
acquired the Duchless.
Walter had the following children:
+
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William BUCHANAN 3rd of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1600. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan of the  Duchless-475"
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Duncan BUCHANAN of the Duchless  was born in of Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
Of Duncan, the first cadet of Ballat, is descended Buchanan of Duchless, Buchanan, 
lately of Mid-Cashlie, Buchanan in Little Kep, with divers others. John Buchanan, 
merchant in Stirling, was father to Mr. John Buchanan, present minister of the gospel 
in Covintoun in the shire of Lanerk, who hath two sons, Mr. John, a probationer, and 
Mr. George, student of theology in Glasgow. Alexander and Walter, sons to William 
Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue; as hath also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in 
Glasgow, being uncle to the present Ballat; John his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his 
other uncle any male issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, John-115"
105.
John BUCHANAN  (Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-115"Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1500 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time.
John had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, David-116"
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David BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1530 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time 
says: Editor of John Knox's History
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-117"
106.
Thomas BUCHANAN  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1480 in Stirling, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
He died young leaving a wife and  children
xe "HERIOT, Agnes-118"
Thomas married Agnes HERIOT . 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
Thomas and Agnes had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, George of Drumikil-119"
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George BUCHANAN of Drumikil  was born in Feb 1506 in Moss, Stirlingshire, Scotland. 
History of Stirlingshire. Corrected and brought down to the present time
about 1520 went to study in Paris with financial assistance from a maternal uncle.
Bachelor of Arts 3 Oct 1525 at St. Andrews.
ACC0UNT
OF
MR. GEORGE BUCHANAN.
HAVING finished my account of the family of Drumikill, I return, according to promise, 
to give some memoirs of the famous Mr. George Buchanan, who brought such a 
mighty accession of honour both to his name and country. It agrees not with my 
design to give a complete history of this great man; for that would be to give a history 
of Scotland during the age in which he lived, in the affairs whereof he bore so 
considerable a part. He was born, as he himself informs us, in the year 1506. The 
death of his father, and the breaking of his grandfather, brought the family under very 
great difficulties. His mother being left a widow with eight children, did all she could for 
their education, though under the greatest discouragements. But it was George's 
peculiar good fortune to be taken notice of by a brother of his mother's, who finding 
him extremely capable of  learning, sent him to Paris; from whence, after about two 
years' stay, he was obliged to return, by reason of his narrow circumstances, and want 
of health. After his recovery he became a volunteer in the French troops then in 
Scotland, but soon falling sick again, went to St. Andrews, and studied logic under the 
celebrated John Major. He followed him to France the same year, and after having 
stayed at Paris two, years, struggling with his misfortunes, he was called to teach 
grammar in the college of St. Barbara. This he did for three years. He was brought 
back into Scotland by a young nobleman, the earl of Cassils, who had kept him with 
him five years in Paris. He intended to have returned again into France, but was 
prevented by the king's appointing him governor to his natural son, the earl of Murray. 
He had some time before this wrote a poem, which enraged the whole fraternity of 
Cordeliers against him, and raised him many enemies, with whose reproaches he was 
so touched, that he began from thenceforward to listen more than ever to the teachers 
of the Reformation. About this time the king returning from France, made the clergy 
very uneasy, they being apprehensive, that queen Magdalen whom he brought along 
with him, had imbibed the new opinions from her aunt the queen of Navarre. But the 
death of that princess soon dispelled their fears. Sometime after a plot was discovered 
against the king, who upon this found reason ,to believe, that the Cordeliers had not 
discharged their duty to him. He therefore commanded Buchanan to write some verses. 
Buchanan obeyed without any reluctance, but kept within bounds, and made use of 
ambiguous expressions. The king not pleased with those verses, commanded him to 
write sharper, which was accordingly done in the famous Sylva, which is called 
Franciscanus. Cardinal Beton hereupon plotted his ruin, and even proceeded so far as 
to get him thrown into prison, from whence he escaped by his ingenuity, and fled into 
England. But matters being in such confusion there, that one day the Lutherans were 
burnt, and the next day the papists, he thought fit to retire again into France; and for 
fear cardinal Beton, who was then ambassador at that court, should play him some 
trick, he privately withdrew from Paris, and went to Bourdeaux, whither Andrew 
Goveanus, a learned Portuguese, invited him. He taught three years there, though not 
without some dread of the Cordeliers and cardinal Beton, which last had written to the 
archbishop of Bourdeaux to secure him ; but that prelate was so kind as to discover 
the matter to some of Buchanan's intimate friends. After this he followed Goveanusi 
into Portugal, who had orders from the king his master to bring him a certain number 
of persons fit to teach philosophy and literature in the new university he had founded 
at Conimbria. All went well as long as Goveanus lived, but he dying soon after, the 
learned men who followed him, particularly Buchanan, were vexed all manner of ways. 
They ript up his poem against the Cordeliers, and reproached him with eating flesh in 
Lent, though according to the custom of the country. It was also pretended, that in his 
discourse he had discovered some disgust at the catholic religion. He was thus plagued 
with them for above a year together, till at last, for fear of discovering that they had 
unjustly harrassed a man of reputation, they confined him for some months to a 
monastery, in order to be better instructed. It was there he undertook his admired 
paraphrase of the Psalms, which has been since prized at such an inestimable rate by 
the learned world. Having obtained his liberty, he past into England, but quickly 
returned to France. Some years after he entered into the service of mareschal de 
Brissac, and was tutor to his son Timoleon de Cosse, to whom he has inscribed his 
incomparable poem De Sphaera. The mareschal then commanded the French army in 
Piedmont. Buchanan continued five years in that employment, sometimes in Italy, and 
sometimes in France. He quitted it in 1560. Returning into Scotland after the 
disturbances occasioned by the faction of the Guises were composed, he went over 
openly to the communion of the reformed church, and was made preceptor to king 
James VI in 1565.
Thus far have we an account of this great man from himself, as he wrote, and 
published it in his own lifetime. His modesty withheld him from giving us a detail of the 
great honours and prosperity to which he afterwards arrived. However, the histories of 
that age make it evident, he was for some years in the management of our Scottish 
affairs. By being promoted to the post of lord privy-seal, he became one.of the great 
officers of state. And his activity in pushing the Reformation gave him such a character 
with our reformers, that he was chosen by them to preside in one of their general 
assemblies as moderator, notwithstanding of his being a layman.
Yet these are but a small part of his honours, compared with that lasting glory he has 
acquired by his admirable writings. His History of Scotland, both for disposition and 
purity of language, has been looked upon, by all good judges, to come the nearest to 
the ancients of any performance these latter ages have produced. I know indeed he 
has been blamed by some people of partiality; but the imputation has never yet been 
made sufficiently out upon those passages excepted against. He has also been no less 
censured for maintaining several principles, apprehended to be destructive of 
government, in his dialogue De Jure Regni apud Scotos. It is not my business either to 
justify or condemn him in this matter. Yet thus much may safely be said for him, That 
he has laid down no general principles of government, but what have been maintained 
by the greatest legislators and philosophers of antiquity ; and that he has been 
followed in them by several of the most eminent among the modern writers. If to err 
be a fault, it is always allowed to be an extenuation of it, to err in good company. And 
this is all I shall say on the matter.
Buchanan's poetical writings have met with a better fate; very few having bad the 
hardiness to detract from the worth of them, and those few that have done it, having 
gained so little honour by it. He has been admired over all Europe, as the many 
editions of his works abundantly testify, which, as they are in every body's hands, it 
would be a very needless piece of presumption in me to give any character of. Nor 
shall I trouble either myself or the reader with the numerous encomiums of learned 
men upon him ; but conclude with the single testimony of the great Scaliger, whose 
praise, considering how little he was addicted to bestow it, cannot be suspected.
Imperil fuerot Roman! Scotia limes; 
Bomani eloqui Scotia finis erit. 
As Scotia's realms the Roman power confin'd, 
So here their rest Rome's arts and language find.
Auchmar, pp. 56-58
Miscelleana Scotica, pp. 226-228
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 9th of  Lenny-546"
107.
Walter BUCHANAN 9th of Lenny  (Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John, third laird of Lenny, was married to Mushet of Burnbank's daughter, and had by her Patrick, his 
successor; which Patrick, married Semple of Fulwood's daughter, by whom he had Walter, his successor, 
who was killed by Shaw of Camsmore. He marries a daughter of Haldan, laird of Glenegeis, by whom he 
had John, his successor,who married the earl of Monteath's daughter. This John, in company with Patrick, 
second of that name, laird of Buchanan, with a good many others of best account of his name, was killed 
at the battle of Flowdon, anno 1513.
xe "HALDAN, Miss of Glenegeis-547"
Walter married Miss HALDAN of Glenegeis . 
They had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 10th of Lenny  died in 1513. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 3rd of  Mochastel-572"
108.
Patrick BUCHANAN 3rd of Mochastel  (Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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Alexander BUCHANAN 4th of Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-648"
109.
John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John of Auchneiven last-mentioned was married to Graham of Killearn's daughter, and had by her one 
son, John Buchanan, present Auchneiven, who is married to Graham of Killearn's daughter; and one 
daughter unmarried.
xe "GRAHAM, Miss of Killearn-650"
John married Miss GRAHAM of Killearn . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-651"
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John BUCHANAN of Auchneiven .
John of Auchneiven last-mentioned was married to Graham of Killearn's daughter, and 
had by her one son, John Buchanan, present Auchneiven, who is married to Graham of 
Killearn's daughter; and one daughter unmarried.
The Buchanans of the third of Lecher are cadets of Auchneiven; as also John Buchanan, baker, and late deacon convener in Glasgow, father to John Buchanan, late deacon of the bakers there, who had three daughters, the eldest married to William Anderson, merchant in Glasgow, the second to George Danzeil, wright in the said town, the third to Mr. Robert Buchanan of Arn- pryor, whose daughter is married to the laird of Bardowie.
Also the ancestor of those Buchanans lately in Borland, now in other parts of Buchanan 
paroch, was a cadet of this family. James Buchanan, uncle to these last-mentioned, 
went to Ireland in the beginning of the reign of king Charles II. John, eldest son to the 
said James, being a person of good parts and education, became lord mayor of Dublin, 
and upon that account obtained the honour of Knighthood; he purchased a good 
estate near that city, of which his son is now in possession, who, with some other sons 
of his, and a brother, and others of this family, resides in Leinster, and other places of 
that kingdom.
The latest cadet of Auchneivens family is John, son to the deceast Walter Buchanan, 
writer in Glasgow, being the present Auchneiven's cou- sin-german, and present 
proprietor of Teucherhill.
Auchmar, p.76
xe "GRAHAM, Miss of Killearn-652"John married Miss GRAHAM of Killearn . 
[She must be closely related to her mother-in-law, if Auchmar is right.]
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-653"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Teucherhill-649"
110.
Walter BUCHANAN of Teucherhill  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Teucherhill-654"
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John BUCHANAN of Teucherhill .
Eighteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, John 18th Laird  of Buchanan-34"
111.
John BUCHANAN 18th Laird of Buchanan  (George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1530 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
George was succeeded by John, second of that name, and eighteenth laird of Buchanan. His father 
grants charter in his favour, in the year 1552. He died before his father, and was twice married, first, to 
the lord Levingstone's daughter, her mother being daughter to the earl of Morton, which marriage was 
consummated by virtue of a dispensation, in regard of propinquity of blood. There was of this marriage 
one son, George, who came to age. [From FamilySearch it appears that there was a second son, John.] 
He married, secondly, a daughter of one Chisholm, brother to the bishop of Dumblane, and had with her 
one daughter, married to Mr. Thomas Buchanan of Ibert, lord privy-seal. To John succeeded his son Sir 
George, second of that name, and nineteenth laird of Buchanan
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.27
xe "LEVINGSTONE, Elizabeth-35"
John married (1) Elizabeth LEVINGSTONE  daughter of Lord LEVINGSTONE and Miss MORTON. 
They had the following children:
+
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Sir George BUCHANAN 19th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1553. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-507"
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John BUCHANAN .
died young
xe "CHISHOLM, Helen-39"
John married (2) Helen CHISHOLM . 
He married, secondly, a daughter of one Chisholm, brother to the bishop of Dumblane, and had with her 
one daughter, married to Mr. Thomas Buchanan of Ibert, lord privy-seal.
FamilySearch gives her name as Helen and the daughter as Elizabeth Buchanan b. abt 1556
John and Helen had the following children:
+
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Elizabeth BUCHANAN  was born about 1556. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Auchmar  and Straithyre-49"
112.
William BUCHANAN of Auchmar and Straithyre  (George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1520 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
[Granted charter to Auchmar by his father in 3 Jan 1547 and to Straithyre in 1556. p.33]
[Auchmar is the last (most recent) cadet branch of Buchanan. p.33]
These lands were in some time after disponed irreversibly to the ancestor of the present family of 
Auchmar, and his heirs. The first of which was William Buchanan, first son, of the second marriage, to 
George Buchanan [seventeenth laird of Buchanan] of that ilk, and Janet Cunninghame, daughter to 
Cunninghame (for any thing I can find), first laird of Craigens, who was son to the earl of Glencairn. This 
lady was first married to Patrick, laird of Houston, director of the chancery in the reign of king James V. ...  
Buchanan, after Houston's death, having married his relict, granted charter, in favour of William 
Buchanan, his first son of this second marriage, and his heirs, of the lands of Auchmar, dated the 3d of 
January, 1547 years. Nor did Buchanan's indulgence and liberality to this his son stop here, but he did 
also, in the year 1556, grant charter, in his favour, of the thirteen merk land of Straithyre, with real 
warrandice for the same in the Easter Mains of Buchanan, ...  hard usage given by Sir John [laird of 
Buchanan], created such animosity betwixt these two families as could scarcely be fully extinguished:...
William, the first of Auchmar, was married to Elizabeth Hamilton, daughter to the laird of Inchmachan, 
(or as I find him. sometimes designed, of Eglismachan) ... Of this marriage betwixt Auchmar and 
Inchmachan's daughter, three sons and two daughters came to maturity. The eldest of the sons was 
Patrick, the second George, and the third Mr. William. Margaret the eldest daughter was married to 
Cunninghame of Blairwhoish ; the second to James Colchoun, merchant in Glasgow.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.33
xe "HAMILTON, Elizabeth of Inchmachan-120"
William married (1) Elizabeth HAMILTON of Inchmachan . 
Daughter of the Larird of Inchamachan
William and Elizabeth had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 2nd Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-121"
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Patrick BUCHANAN 2nd Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  was born estimated 1570 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Patkick the eldest son succeeded to his father William in the lands of Auchmar and 
Straithyre. He married Helen Buchanan, heiress of Ibert, daughter to Mr. Thomas 
Buchanan of Ibert, nephew to the great Mr. George Buchanan, which Thomas became 
lord privy seal, by resignation of that office in his favour by Mr. George his uncle. Mr. 
Thomas's wife was a daughter of John, laird of Buchanan. Patrick above-mentioned 
died within a few years of his marriage, his children having not long survived him ; so 
that his interest devolved to George his second brother, as is evident by precept of 
Clare Constat, and charter thereupon, in his favour, by John, laird of Buchanan, of the 
lands of Auchmar, dated in the year 1606.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan", p.33
[Patrick and his children died, leaving Auchmar to his brother George]
xe "BUCHANAN, Helen of Ibert-126"Patrick married Helen BUCHANAN of Ibert  daughter of Thomas BUCHANAN of Ibert, Lord Privy Seal and Elizabeth BUCHANAN. 
daughter and heiress of Thomas Buchanan of Ibert, Lord Privy Seal
+
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George BUCHANAN 3rd Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  was born 
estimated 1580. 
+
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William BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Margaret-124"
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Margaret BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-125"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe ", unknown-172"
William married (2) unknown . 
They had the following children:
+
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George BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1550. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2 of  Spittel-186"
114.
John BUCHANAN 2 of Spittel  (Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "CUNINGHAM, Elizabeth-189"
John married Elizabeth CUNINGHAM  daughter of CUNINGHAM laird of Drumquhuassle. 
charter in liferent anf Edward Buchanan her son in fee ofthe lands of Merkinch 1553
John and Elizabeth had the following children:
+
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Edward BUCHANAN 3rd of Spittel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick the Courrui-655"
116.
Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN  (Robert the Coich BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Mad Robert had only one son, called Patrick, who, as his father had that of Coich, had the nickname of 
Courrui, or champion ; the reason of giving that epithet to him being this; the families of Argyll and 
Buchanan being at variance in this Patrick's time, Argyll and Buchanan, each of them attended with a 
select party of horsemen, according to the custom of these times, met accidentally at Cramond water, 
the one coming from, the other going for, Edinburgh ; these two parties standing upon each bank of the 
river, and neither of them adventuring to enter the same; at length Patrick Buchanan, mad Robert's son, 
couching his spear, and setting spurs to his horse, jumped boldly with no little noise into the river, and 
past through, Buchanan with his party following him. Upon which Argyll's party stood a little aside, and 
left the passage clear. Upon Patrick's jumping into the water, Argyll said in Irish to the laird of Kilmartin, 
who stood next him, " By St. Martin that is a massy champion," in Irish Courrui, whence Patrick was 
always termed afterwards the Courrui, or Champion. 
He had four sons, Finlay, Alexander, Thomas, and Patrick. Of Finlay, the eldest of these, are descended 
Alexander Buchanan, father to James Buchanan, now of Cremannan, who, with his sons, resides in 
Ireland; Mr. James Buchanan, 'who purchased the lands of Cremannan, and having no issue, disponed 
those lands to the present James of Cremannan his nephew. The Buchanans, possessors for a long time 
of Blairour in Drymen parish, of which John Buchanan in Easter Balfunning, Thomas Buchanan, stabler in 
Edinburgh, with some others, are also descended off the said Finlay.
Of Alexander, Patrick's second son, are descended the Buchanans, for some time possessors of 
Ballantone and Gaidrew of Drumquhassil.
Of Thomas the third son, are descended the Buchanans in Wester Arduill in Buchanan parish, ordinarily 
termed Donald MacThomas, his race.
Of Patrick, the fourth son of Patrick the Courrui, is descended Finlay Buchanan, in Laggan of Tyrconnell 
in Ireland, who has some brethren, and other relations of that race, residing near Rapho and some other 
places of that kingdom.
Patrick had the following children:
+
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Finlay BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-657"
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Alexander BUCHANAN .
Of Alexander, Patrick's second son, are descended the Buchanans, for some time 
possessors of Ballantone and Gaidrew of Drumquhassil.
+
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iii.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-659"
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M
iv.
Patrick BUCHANAN .
Of Patrick, the fourth son of Patrick the Courrui, is descended Finlay Buchanan, in 
Laggan of Tyrconnell in Ireland, who has some brethren, and other relations of that 
race, residing near Rapho and some other places of that kingdom.
xe "BUCHANAN, John 3rd of  Arnpryor-273"
117.
John BUCHANAN 3rd of Arnpryor  (Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
This last Arnpryor had two brethren Mr David a gentleman of great learning of whom I shall speak 
afterwards and captain William a gentleman of very much courage and of the greatest art and dexterity 
in managing a sword of any of his time He killed an Italian in Dublin in presence of the lord lieutenant 
and other nobility of that kingdom the same Italian having gone through most nations in Europe always 
having had the victory of all he encountered with Captain William being one of Buchanan's captains at 
Ennerkeithing a certain English officer when the two armies advanced near to one another stept forth 
and challenged any of the Scottish army to exchange a few blows with him The challenge was accepted 
by captain William who though a very little man of person did in a trice kill that English champion This 
captain William resided [in Ireland]
John had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 4th of Arnpryor  died in 1641. 
xe "BUCHANAN, David-274"
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David BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William captain-275"
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William BUCHANAN captain  died in of Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Milntown  of Buchlyvie-267"
118.
Walter BUCHANAN of Milntown of Buchlyvie  (Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Milntown  of Buchlyvie-267"Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Miscellanea Scotica - Memoirs of the ancient alliance between France and Scotland. pp.200-210 quoting
Buchanan's inquiry into the genealogy and present state of ancient Scottish surnames with the history of 
the family of Buchanan. 
Andrew had two sons John his successor and Walter to whom his father disponed the Milntown or as 
others write Hiltown of Buchlyvie. There is little account to be had of John third laird of Arnpryor or his 
successors for two descents upon account of the loss of the principal writes of that family The last of 
these who was in possession of Arnpryor was John who sold those lands to Sir John laird of Buchanan 
and were by him disponed to John Buchanan of Mochastel of Lenny's family and grandfather to Francis 
Buchanan now of Arnpryor John Buchanan who sold Arnpryor having gone to Ireland was killed by the 
Irish in the year 1641 He had two sons William and David who both died without issue He had also three 
daughters Dorothy first married to Robert Buchanan one of king Charles I his butlers To"
Walter had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN  died in 1603. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Drumikill-302"
120.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Drumikill  (Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To Thomas first of Drumikill succeeded his son Robert, as is evident by the charters in his favour of the 
lands of Drumikill; as also by charter in his favour of Spittel of Finnick, with boat and boatland of Catter, 
by Matthew, earl of Lennox, dated at the earl's ancient mansion-house of Middle Catter, in the year 1505. 
This Robert was married to Margaret Hay, of what family not mentioned, and by her had two sons, 
Thomas his eldest, who, by any thing can be found, was married to Logy of that ilk's daughter. This 
Thomas was not entered to any of his father's estate, having died young, and long before his father, he 
being only mentioned as procurator in a seasin of Robert his father, by designation of Thomas Buchanan, 
primogenitus, or eldest son of Robert Buchanan of Drumikill. Robert's second son was John, ancestor of 
Buchanan in Wester Cameron. Thomas, last-mentioned, left two sons, Robert and Walter.
The fourth cadet of the family of Drumikill, was John of Cameron, second son to Robert, second of 
Drumikill. He was married to Denniestoun of Auchindinnan's daughter. He obtained the lands of Wester 
Cameron in tack ; his son having afterwards purchased the same in heritage, which was sold by Walter, 
grandfather to the present William in Cameron, to Drumikill. There are few, or none of this family 
remaining, except William, now in Cameron, who hath three sons, Walter, William and John, all married. 
William had a brother called George, who went abroad.
xe "LOGY, Miss of that  ilk-303"
Thomas married Miss LOGY of that ilk . 
Thomas and Miss had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert of Drumikill-305"
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN of Drumikill .
Robert, eldest son to the said Thomas, was served heir to his grandfather, Robert 
Buchanan of Drumikill, by designation of his nephew, and apparent heir, in the year 
1518. He died unmarried, at least without issue, and was succeeded by his brother 
Walter, as testifies a precept of Clare Constat and charter thereon, in favour of him, 
and Janet Buchanan his spouse, in life-rent, and Thomas Buchanan, their son, in fee of 
the lands of Drumikill, dated 1536. I find this Walter mentioned in a bond of an 
hundred merks due to John Lennox of Branshogle, by Graham of Fintry, Cuningham of 
Glengarnock, and Galbraith of Balgair, principals, earl of Glencairn, Cuningham of 
Drumquhassil, and Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, cautioners, all in one bond, and 
subscribed by two nottars, in regard none of all the principals or cautioners could write, 
except Fintry and Drumikill. This bond was dated in the year 1537, which being in the 
time when popery prevailed in this nation, and a consummate ignorance of all manner 
of learning, it is not to be wondered at, that so many laicks should not be able to write, 
when I have even heard from a gentleman of very good repute, that he had perused a,
write of date near that time, in which two of the monks of Paisly were inserted 
witnesses, for whom the nottar was obliged to sign, in regard these two clergymen 
were ignorant of letters. Walter Buchanan of Drumikill was first married to Janet 
Buchanan, daughter to Walter Buchanan of Spittel, by whom he had Thomas his 
successor. He had for second lady a daughter of Kinross of Kip- penross, and had by 
her William, afterward of Ross.
To Walter, succeeded his son Thomas, as is clear, by the charter already mentioned, 
with divers others. He was first married to Logan of Balvey's daughter; secondly, to 
Stirling of Glor- at's daughter. Of these marriages he had three sons, William, his 
successor; Walter of Conochra; and James who went to Ireland.
Thomas was succeeded by his son William, who married Semple of Ful wood's 
daughter, by whom he had three sons, Walter his successor; Thomas and George; 
which last two went to Ireland, where divers of their progeny live in good 
circumstances. He had also one daughter, married to Kincaid of Auchinreoch.
Walter, succeeded his father William, and was married to Hamilton of Kinglassy's 
daughter. By her he had two sons, William, first of Cragievairn; and Dugal of 
Gartincaber.
To Walter, succeeded his son William, who was married to Cuningham of Boquhan's 
daughter. He had with her three sons, John, William and Walter. The two last left no 
issue. This William sold the estate of Drumikill, to his cousin, Captain William Buchanan, second son to William Buchanan, first of Ross, and afterward purchased from my lord Napier, the lands of Craigievairn, by which he and his successors were afterwards designed.
To William, first designed Craigievairn, succeeded his son John, who married 
Cuningham of Trin- beg's daughter, and had by her one son, William, his successor; 
and one daughter, married to lieutenant James Hamilton, brother to Hamilton of 
Bardowie.
William, present Cragievairn, married Hamilton of Bardowie's daughter, and hath by 
her a numerous issue.
The first cadet of the family of Drumikill, was Thomas Buchanan, second son to 
Thomas Buchanan,' first of Drumikill, who obtained the lands of Moss. He married 
Agnes Herriot, daughter to Herriot of Trabrown, and had by her three sons. Of these 
was Patrick, sent to the king of Denmark to require that Hepburn, earl of Bothwel, 
then prisoner. in that kingdom* should be sent to Scotland in order to be punished for 
Darnlie's murder. This Patrick had no male issue; so that the Moss, by virtue of some 
certain clause in his father Patrick's charter of the same, returned to the laird of 
Drumikill, or was purchased by him. Thomas of Moss's other two sons, were Alexander 
Buchanan of Ibert, and the great Mr. George Buchanan.
There are some of opinion, that Patrick, Alexander, and Mr. George were sons of 
Thomas, eldest son of Robert, second Drumikill. But this supposition is clearly 
overthrown by a charter among Drumikill's evidences lately perused by me, which had 
escaped me upon my first perusal of them, being a charter of William, earl of Montrose, 
to Thomas Buchanan, brother-german to Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, as nearest heir 
to Thomas Buchanan, his pupillus, that is, as I take it, his nephew, or brother's son, of 
the lands of Moss. So that the Moss being then the appenage, or second son's portion 
of the family of Drumikill; and this Thomas, being the only second son existing at that 
time, obtained these lands, at least during his own lifetime, as the custom of such 
lands was then, and for a long time thereafter. For further illustration of this matter, I 
have seen in the hands of George Buchanan of Bellachruin, lineal successor of 
Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and consequently representer of the family of Moss, a 
discharge by Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, to Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, his cousin, 
and emm, discharging his intromission for some years, with the rents of a part of the 
estate of Drumikill. Which Walter, by authentic documents already mentioned, is found 
to
+
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Walter BUCHANAN 4th of Drumikill .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 2nd of  Ibert-340"
122.
Thomas BUCHANAN 2nd of Ibert  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Thomas of Moss's second son, was Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, who had two sons, the eldest of whom, 
was Mr. Thomas Buchanan, as is clear by charter of Ibert in his favour, by Mr. Thomas Archibald, Vicar of 
Dry men, of date 1567 years. He became lord privy-seal, upon demission of that office by his uncle, Mr. 
George. He married a daughter of the second marriage, of John, laird of Buchanan ; by whom he had 
two daughters, the eldest married to Patrick Buchanan of Auchmar, the second to Captain Henry 
Cuningham. John, second son to Alexander of Ibert, acquired the lands of Ballachruin, being ancestor to 
George Buchanan of Ballachruin, whose brethren were Moses Buchanan, Merchant; and Arthur, Wright in 
Glasgow; and William, who left one son George, who went abroad. There are also descended of this 
family, Buchanan, lately of Harperstoun; Buchanan, portioner of Clober, with some others. Thomas of 
Moss's third son, was the said Mb. T charter 1567
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Buchanan-342"Thomas married Miss BUCHANAN of Buchanan . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-343"
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i.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-344"
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ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Blairhanachan-350"
124.
Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Blairhanachan  (Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1560 in of Blarishanachan, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
+
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Archibald BUCHANAN 4th Blairhenachan now Drumhead .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-352"
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Robert BUCHANAN  died in of Glenmaqueen, Derry, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Mungo 1st of  Tullichewn-348"
125.
Mungo BUCHANAN 1st of Tullichewn  (Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1565 in of Blarishanachan, Stirling, Scotland. 
The first cadet of Drumhead's family, is Buchanan of Tullichewn. Mungo Buchanan, second son to Robert, 
second Blairhenachan, who purchased the Spittels of Creitingaws, from the Dennistouns, coheiresses of 
these Spittels ; the one part thereof from the one of these, with consent of Thomas Buchanan, her 
husband, who seems to be brother to the said Mungo, in the year 1603; the other half of these Spittels 
from the other heiress, in the year 1605. In which year, he got charter of confirmation of the Spittels, 
from James Den- niestoun of Colgrain, superior thereof. Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained 
first a tack, and after a feu-charter, from Lodowick, Duke of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. 
This Robert had two sons, Robert, his successor ; and William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of TuU 
lichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, Robert, his successor; James, who acquired a part of 
little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in Edinburgh, who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, 
and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
Mungo had the following children:
+
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Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Tullichewn .
xe "BUCHANAN, John or Thomas 1st of  Drumfad-349"
126.
John or Thomas BUCHANAN 1st of Drumfad  (Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John or Thomas 1st of  Drumfad-349"Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1570 in of Blarishanachan, Stirling, Scotland. 
William first of Blairhanachan's successor, was Robert, who obtained a charter of these lands from 
Alexander M'Aulay of Arncaple, dated in the year 1552. This Robert made an excambion with Haldan of 
Glenegeis, of the lands of Baturrich, with those of Blairwhoish, in possession of which Drumhead 
continues. Robert above-mentioned, had three sons, Robert, his successor; Mungo, first of Tullichewn; 
and John, or as others say with no less probability, Thomas, first of Drumfad.
The first cadet of Drumhead's family, is Buchanan of Tullichewn. Mungo Buchanan, second son to Robert, 
second Blairhenachan, who purchased the Spittels of Creitingaws, from the Dennistouns, coheiresses of 
these Spittels ; the one part thereof from the one of these, with consent of Thomas Buchanan, her 
husband, who seems to be brother to the said Mungo, in the year 1603; the other half of these Spittels 
from the other heiress, in the year 1605. In which year, he got charter of confirmation of the Spittels, 
from James Denniestoun of Colgrain, superior thereof. Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained first 
a tack, and after a feu-charter, from Lodowick, Duke of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. This 
Robert had two sons, Robert, his successor ; and William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of TuU 
lichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, Robert, his successor; James, who acquired a part of 
little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in Edinburgh, who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, 
and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
Thomas, youngest brother of Mungo, first of Tullichewn, and third son to Robert, second Blairhenachan, 
acquired a feu, or wedset-right, of the lands of meikle Drumfad in Glenfroon. His son was called John, 
designed of Drumfad; which lands this John, or rather his son of the same name, sold, being ancestor to 
John Buchanan of Cattermiln in the parish of Kilmaronock, and others.
There are also divers of the family of Drumhead besides these mentioned, who reside in the parishes of 
Dunbarton and Bonneil. William of Stuckrodger, above-named, had one son, William, who mostly resided 
at St. Ninians, who had two sons, William, who left one son; and James, who went abroad.
Miscellanea Scotica pp.217 - 221
John had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 2nd of of Drumfad .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Camochoil-384"
127.
John BUCHANAN of Camochoil  (Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-386"
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F
i.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BLAIR, of Campchoil-387"Miss married BLAIR of Campchoil . 
Walter, who sold Drumdash, and obtained a tack of Camochoil, and purchased the 
Spittel of Wester Ballat, from the M'Convels, heiresses thereof, about the year 1552. 
He also got a grasoum tack of Wester Ballat. He had two sons John and Duncan, John, 
his eldest son, had no male issue, the beneficial tack of Camochoil, by that means fell 
to his daughters.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-388"
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-388"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan of Wester  Ballat-385"
128.
Duncan BUCHANAN of Wester Ballat  (Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John's brother obtained the heritage of the Spittels, with tack of Wester Ballat. ... Duncan the said John's 
brother, was ancestor to Patrick Buchanan of Wester Ballat, who had three sons, John, the eldest, who 
had issue; Mr. Thomas, writer in Edinburgh; and Duncan, merchant in London. Of this family is 
descended, John Buchanan in Hiltoun of Buchlyvie; Patrick Buchanan Merchant at Kippen kirk, with some 
others in these parts. There are also divers of this family in the counties of Antrim and Down, in Ireland.
Duncan had the following children:
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i.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Wester Ballat .
xe "BUCHANAN, George 2nd of  Gartincaber-485"
129.
George BUCHANAN 2nd of Gartincaber  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The third cadet of the family of Carbeth was John, first son of the second marriage to Thomas, third of 
that name, of Carbeth. This John obtained the tack of Gartincaber. He had two sons, George and Walter, 
and two daughters, the eldest married to William Buchanan, first of Ross, the other to one MacAuslan. 
George had four sons, the eldest John, for whom his father acquired the lands of Blairluisk. John had two 
sons, George, who went to Ireland, and William. George sold Blairluisk to his brother William, now of 
Blairluisk, who hath two sons, George, younger of Blairluisk, and John, merchant in England. George, 
who sold Blairluisk, hath four sons, John and William, who reside in the county of Tyrone, George, who 
resides in Munster, and Thomas, in the county of Donegal. 
John first of Gartiricaber's second son was Walter, who had no male issue. John had an illegitimate son, 
Thomas, who went to Ireland, and had one son, John, whose only son, George, in Glenmaqueen, had 
four sons, John, William, Matthew, and George, who. reside mostly in the counties of Derry and Donegal. 
George of Gartincaber's second son, George, was father to Thomas Buchanan in Creitchael, in Buchanan 
parish. He had another son, Andrew, father to George and Patrick Buchanan in Ledrish, in Buchanan 
parish. George's third son was Thomas, who purchased in heritage a part of Gartincaber. He had two 
sons, William, who acquired Ardoch in Kilmaronock parish, and George, late of Gartincaber, who left four 
sons, John, now of Gartincaber, Thomas, merchant in England, Ougal and Robert. George's fourth son 
was Andrew, who had three sons, two of these having gone to Ireland, and one residing in Drymen 
parish. George had also a daughter married to Andrew Buchanan of Gartachairn.
George had the following children:
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John BUCHANAN of Blairluisk .
+
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George BUCHANAN .
+
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Andrew BUCHANAN .
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Thomas BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-520"
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v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew of Gaertachairn-521"Miss married Andrew BUCHANAN of Gaertachairn . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-394"
131.
Miss BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Ross-311"
Miss married William BUCHANAN of Ross  son of Walter BUCHANAN 4th of Drumikill and Miss KINROSS of Kippenross. 
The fifth cadet of Drumikill, was William,Buchanan of Ross, second son to Walter, fourth laird of Drumikill 
his mother being Kinross of Kippenross's daughter. He married John Buchanan in Gartincaber's daughter, 
by whom he had three sons, John, his successor; Captain William and George; also three daughters, the 
eldest married to Cuningham of Trinbeg, the second to Buchanan of Auchmar, the third to Buchanan of 
Carbeth. 
He purchased the lands of Ross from the earl of Glencairn, and was succeeded by John his son, who was 
thrice married, first to Cuningham of Drumquhassips daughter, and had by her, one son, and two 
daughters. The eldest of these daughters was married to Andrew, laird of M'Pharlan, being mother to the 
late John, laird of M'Pharlan. The other daughter was married to Robert Taylor of Mansfield, and had 
issue. John of Ross was secondly married to Crawford of Kilbirnie's daughter, relict to Lindsay of 
Balquhuarage. He had with her one son, William, second laird of Drumikill of that race, and one daughter 
married to Edward Buchanan of Spittel. He had for third lady, Anna Bickertoun, with whom he had issue.
William and Miss had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 2nd of Ross .
xe "BUCHANAN, William captain, 9th  of Drumikill-397"
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ii.
William BUCHANAN captain, 9th of Drumikill .
Purchased Drumikill from his cousin, the 8th laird of Drumikill
Captain William, second son to William first of Ross, was thrice married, but had no 
issue. He purchased the estate of Drumikill from his cousin William, eighth laird thereof; and because he had no issue of his own, disponed that estate to his nephew William Buchanan, second son to John of Ross, the captain's eldest brother.
xe "BUCHANAN, George-398"
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George BUCHANAN  died in 1645. 
George, third son to William first of Ross, was killed in the year 1645, having no issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-399"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "CUNINGHAM, of Trinbeg-402"Miss married CUNINGHAM of Trinbeg . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-400"

182
F
v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, of Auchmar-403"Miss married BUCHANAN of Auchmar . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-401"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, of Carbeth-404"Miss married BUCHANAN of Carbeth . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-498"
133.
Thomas BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in Ireland. 
He had the following children:
+
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 5th of  Carbeth-444"
134.
Thomas BUCHANAN 5th of Carbeth  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1550 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Thomas third of Carbeth was succeeded by his son of the same name, of whose marriage there is no 
account, nor of that of his successor, being also Thomas, fifth of that name of Carbeth, who had one 
daughter, married to Galbraith of Balgair, and was succeeded by his son
Thomas had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-445"
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i.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1575. 
xe "GALBRAITH, of Balgair-446"Miss married GALBRAITH of Balgair . 
+
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M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN 6th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1580. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William 3rd of  Easter Ballat-474"
135.
William BUCHANAN 3rd of Easter Ballat  (Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1600 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
William also had two sons, William his successor, and John, merchant in Stirling.
William had the following children:
+
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i.
William BUCHANAN 4th of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1630. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-477"
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ii.
John BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1635. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 10th of  Lenny-548"
139.
John BUCHANAN 10th of Lenny  (Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in 1513. 
John, third laird of Lenny, was married to Mushet of Burnbank's daughter, and had by her Patrick, his 
successor; which Patrick, married Semple of Fulwood's daughter, by whom he had Walter, his successor, 
who was killed by Shaw of Camsmore. He marries a daughter of Haldan, laird of Glenegeis, by whom he 
had John, his successor, who married the earl of Monteath's daughter. This John, in company with 
Patrick, second of that name, laird of Buchanan, with a good many others of best account of his name, 
was killed at the battle of Flowdon, anno 1513.
xe ", Miss of Monteath-549"
John married Miss of Monteath . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Robert BUCHANAN 11th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander 4th of  Mochastel-573"
140.
Alexander BUCHANAN 4th of Mochastel  (Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
This Alexander had two sons, John his eldest, and Walter, who obtained from his father the wed- set or 
feu-right of the lands of Glenny in Monteath, his eldest brother, John, having preferred the tack of 
Mochastel to the heritage of Glenny, possessed the same, allowing his brother that of Glenny. The last of 
that race who possessed the same, was captain James Buchanan, grandchild to the above Walter, who 
lived a good part of his time, and died a captain in Douglass's regiment in France, being never married, 
he sold his interest of Glenny to Walter Graham of Gartmor's family. Captain James had an uncle called 
Alexander, who obtained from Cuningham of Drumquhassil, a beneficial tack of the lands of Gartachairn 
in Drymen paroch.
This Alexander had two sons, Andrew, who feu- ed Gartachairn from my lord Napier, then proprietor 
thereof, and George. Andrew of Gartachairn had two sons, Alexander his successor, and George, late 
bailie in Glasgow. Alexander of Gartachairn had three sons, George, now of Gartachairn, Thomas 
Buchanan, mailman in Glasgow, and Andrew, tailor in the said town. Bailie George had four sons, George, 
his eldest son, mailman, Andrew, Neil, and Archibald, merchants in Glasgow.
George, second son to Alexander, first in Gartachairn, had three sons, John, who went abroad, Alexander, and William, residing in Edinburgh.
Alexander had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Mochastel .
+
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M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Glenny .
Nineteenth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Sir George 19th Laird  of Buchanan-26"
144.
Sir George BUCHANAN 19th Laird of Buchanan  (John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1553 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
To John succeeded his son Sir George, second of that name, and nineteenth laird of Buchanan, as is 
clear by charter, in his favour, by king Henry and queen Mary, of the lands of Buchanan, isles of 
Clareinch and Kepinch, with bell and alms of St. Kessog, dated in the year 1564. This Sir George was 
married to Mary Graham, daughter to the earl of Monteith, her mother being the lord Seatoun's daughter. 
Of this marriage he had one son, Sir John, and two daughters, Helen, married to Alexander Colchoun of 
Luss, and Susanna, first married to John MacFarlan of Arrochar, secondly, to Campbell of Craignish. Sir 
George's successor was Sir John, third of that name, and twentieth laird of Buchanan, as appears by 
charter
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.27
[received a charter in 1564 - I can't get this number to fit in the time line. (1584?)]
xe "GRAHAM, Mary-27"
Sir married Mary GRAHAM  daughter of Lord GRAHAM Earl of Monteith. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Sir John BUCHANAN 20th Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1575. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Helen-29"
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ii.
Helen BUCHANAN .
xe "COLCHOUN, Alexander-31"Helen married Alexander COLCHOUN . Alexander was born in of Luss, Stirling, Scotland. He died in 1617. 
This Alexander Colquhoun, third son of Sir John Colquhoun, got a charter under the 
great seal of the lands of Woltoun, Auchindouarie, &c., in Dumfries-shire, dated 5th 
February 1597
... By his wife Helen, daughter of Sir George Buchanan of that ilk, he had five sons and 
a daughter.
xe "BUCHANAN, Susanna-30"
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iii.
Susanna BUCHANAN .
xe "MCFARLAN, John Laird of  McFarlan-32"Susanna married (1) John MCFARLAN Laird of McFarlan . John was born in of Arrochar, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "CAMPBELL, Mr.-33"Susanna married (2) Mr. CAMPBELL . Mr. was born in of Craignish, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Elizabeth-40"
146.
Elizabeth BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, Elizabeth-40"Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born about 1556 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
daughter of John Laird Buchanan
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Ibert,  Lord Privy Seal-127"
Elizabeth married Thomas BUCHANAN of Ibert, Lord Privy Seal . Thomas was born in of Ibert, Stirling, Scotland. 
nephew of George Buchanan, Lord Privy Seal
Thomas and Elizabeth had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Helen of Ibert-126"
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i.
Helen BUCHANAN of Ibert .
daughter and heiress of Thomas Buchanan of Ibert, Lord Privy Seal
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 2nd Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-121"Helen married Patrick BUCHANAN 2nd Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  son of William BUCHANAN of Auchmar and Straithyre and Elizabeth HAMILTON of Inchmachan. Patrick was born estimated 1570 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Patkick the eldest son succeeded to his father William in the lands of Auchmar and 
Straithyre. He married Helen Buchanan, heiress of Ibert, daughter to Mr. Thomas 
Buchanan of Ibert, nephew to the great Mr. George Buchanan, which Thomas became 
lord privy seal, by resignation of that office in his favour by Mr. George his uncle. Mr. 
Thomas's wife was a daughter of John, laird of Buchanan. Patrick above-mentioned 
died within a few years of his marriage, his children having not long survived him ; so 
that his interest devolved to George his second brother, as is evident by precept of 
Clare Constat, and charter thereupon, in his favour, by John, laird of Buchanan, of the 
lands of Auchmar, dated in the year 1606.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan", p.33
[Patrick and his children died, leaving Auchmar to his brother George]
xe "BUCHANAN, George 3rd Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-122"
148.
George BUCHANAN 3rd Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  (William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1580 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
Patrick above-mentioned died within a few years of his marriage, his children having not long survived 
him ; so that his interest devolved to George his second brother, as is evident by precept of Clare Constat, and charter thereupon, in his favour, by John, laird of Buchanan, of the lands of Auchmar, dated in the year 1606. ...
George Buchanan of Auchmar had seven sons ; Patrick his successor, John, Andrew, Mr. Maurice, William, Robert, and George. He had also two daughters; the eldest married to Colchoun of Camstrodan, the second to captain Pettigroe.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.34
xe "STEWART, Janet-129"George married Janet STEWART  daughter of Andrew STEWART of Blairgarie. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Patrick BUCHANAN 4th Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  was born estimated 1630. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-132"
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ii.
John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-133"
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M
iii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
+
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M
iv.
Maurice BUCHANAN Rev. .
xe "BUCHANAN, William Major-136"
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v.
William BUCHANAN Major  died in Germany. 
George of Auchmar's fifth son was William, who was a captain in the Swedish service 
in Germany. He was, upon account of his valour, conduct, and other laudable qualities, 
very much esteemed; having signalized himself upon diverse occasions particularly in 
vanquishing an Italian, who in most countries of Europe, had acquired very much fame 
by his martial achievements, and dexterity always in performing divers feats of arms, 
having carried the prize in all places he went to, till at last he was overcome by this 
captain William, no less to his honour, than to the Italian's disgrace. Upon account of 
this action, he obtained a major's commission, but was within few days thereafter 
killed in the said service. He was married to Anna Fennel, an English woman. His 
children and their posterity have continued in Germany.
-
Auchmar, p.35
xe "PENNEL, Anna-176"William married Anna PENNEL . Anna was born in England. She died in of Germany. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-135"
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vi.
Robert BUCHANAN .
+
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M
vii.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-138"
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viii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "COLCHOUN, of Camstrodan-140"Miss married COLCHOUN of Camstrodan . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-139"
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ix.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "PETTIGROE, Captain-141"Miss married PETTIGROE Captain . 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-123"
149.
William BUCHANAN  (William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in of Ireland. 
went to Ireland where he was factor (manager) for the Hamiltons lords of Candeboys afterwards earls of 
Clanbrazil in County Down.
He married in Ireland and had one son, Major William Buchanan whe served in the regiment of George 
Laird of Buchanan at Ennerkeithing. He survived to return to Ireland and purchase Scrabohill near 
Newtoun Clandeboys. He had 2 sons and 2 daughters. p.35
William had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William major-182"
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i.
William BUCHANAN major  was born in of Ireland. He died in of Scrabohill, Newtoun Clandeboys, Down, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, George-173"
152.
George BUCHANAN  (William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1550 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
William of Auchmar, had an illegitimate son, called George, whose son John, had a wedset upon the 
lands of Blairluisk, in Kilmaronock parish, which having sold, he went to Ireland, where diverse of his 
progeny reside near the village called St. Johnstoun, in the county of Derry; from whence, one of them 
having come to the paroch of Bonneil, had two sons, Archibald at present in Bonneil, who hath three 
sons, George, a trader at sea; William, a residenter in London ; and James, residing near Glasgow. 
Another, Archibald, being also descended of the said George, resides in Inverary, in Argyllshire.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.35
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Blairluisk-183"
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i.
John BUCHANAN of Blairluisk  was born estimated 1580 in of Blairluisk, Kilmarnock, Scotland. He died in of St Johnstoun, County Derry, Ireland. 
William of Auchmar, had an illegitimate son, called George, whose son John, had a 
wedset upon the lands of Blairluisk, in Kilmaronock parish, which having sold, he went 
to Ireland, where diverse of his progeny reside near the village called St. Johnstoun, in 
the county of Derry; from whence, one of them having come to the paroch of Bonneil, 
had two sons, Archibald at present in Bonneil, who hath three sons, George, a trader 
at sea; William, a residenter in London ; and James, residing near Glasgow. Another, 
Archibald, being also descended of the said George, resides in Inverary, in Argyllshire.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan", p.35
xe "BUCHANAN, Edward 3rd of  Spittel-191"
153.
Edward BUCHANAN 3rd of Spittel  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
[Elizabeth Cuningham] charter in liferent and Edward Buchanan her son in fee ofthe lands of Merkinch 
1553
Another charter 1555
xe "GALBRAITH, Christian-192"
xe "GALBRAITH, Christian-192"Edward married Christian GALBRAITH  daughter of GALBRAITH laird of Culcruich. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 4th of Spittel .
+
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M
ii.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Finlay-656"
154.
Finlay BUCHANAN  (Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Of Finlay, the eldest of these, are descended Alexander Buchanan, father to James Buchanan, now of 
Cremannan, who, with his sons, resides in Ireland; Mr. James Buchanan, 'who purchased the lands of 
Cremannan, and having no issue, disponed those lands to the present James of Cremannan his nephew. 
The Buchanans, possessors for a long time of Blairour in Drymen parish, of which John Buchanan in 
Easter Balfunning, Thomas Buchanan, stabler in Edinburgh, with some others, are also descended off the 
said Finlay.
Finlay had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Alexander BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-658"
156.
Thomas BUCHANAN  (Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Of Thomas the third son, are descended the Buchanans in Wester Arduill in Buchanan parish, ordinarily 
termed Donald MacThomas, his race.
Thomas had the following children:
xe "MACTHOMAS, Donald-664"
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i.
Donald MACTHOMAS .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 4th of  Arnpryor-266"
158.
John BUCHANAN 4th of Arnpryor  (John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in 1641 in Ireland. 
[I have added him, because unless there was another John Buchanan of Arnprior I can't get the pieces to 
fit together.]
The last of these who was in possession of Arnpryor was John who sold those lands to Sir John laird of 
Buchanan and were by him disponed to John Buchanan of Mochastel of Lenny's family and grandfather 
to Francis Buchanan now of Arnpryor. John Buchanan who sold Arnpryor having gone to Ireland was 
killed by the Irish in the year 1641 He had two sons William and David who both died without issue He 
had also three daughters Dorothy first married to Robert Buchanan one of king Charles I his butlers
John Buchanan 5th of Arnpryor is on Auchmar, p.71
John had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William-268"
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i.
William BUCHANAN .
died without issue
xe "BUCHANAN, David-269"
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ii.
David BUCHANAN .
died without issue
xe "BUCHANAN, Dorothy-270"
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iii.
Dorothy BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alice-271"
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iv.
Alice BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Anna-272"
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v.
Anna BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John-278"
161.
John BUCHANAN  (Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in 1603 in Glen Fruin, Stirling, Scotland. 
Died in the battle of Glen Fruin against Clan McGregor.
xe "OF CASHLY, Miss and Brachern-279"
John married Miss OF CASHLY and Brachern . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Buchlyvie and Cashley .
+
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M
ii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 4th of  Drumikill-306"
163.
Walter BUCHANAN 4th of Drumikill  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet of Spittel-307"
Walter married (1) Janet BUCHANAN of Spittel  daughter of Walter BUCHANAN of Spittel. 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN 5th of Drumikill  was born estimated 1510. 
xe "KINROSS, Miss of Kippenross-310"
Walter married (2) Miss KINROSS of Kippenross . 
Walter and Miss had the following children:
+
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ii.
William BUCHANAN of Ross .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald 4th Blairhenachan  now Drumhead-351"
166.
Archibald BUCHANAN 4th Blairhenachan now Drumhead  (Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Robert, second Blairhenachan, was succeeded by his son of the same name, who had two sons, 
Archibald his successor, and Robert, who went to Ireland, and resided in Glenmaqueen in the county of 
Derry. He had two sons, Archibald and George. Archibald, the eldest of these sons, married his cousin-
gennan [german i.e. first cousin], heiress of Blairhenachan, the title of which he changed into that of 
Drumhead, yet retained. He was father to Archibald, now of Drumhead, who is married to Anderson of 
Stobcross's daughter, by whom he hath three sons and two daughters. His eldest son, Archibald 
Buchanan, younger of Drumhead, is married to Gilbert Buchanan of Bankel's daughter. James and 
George, his other two sons, both merchants in Glasgow, are unmarried. His eldest daughter is married to 
Robert Buchanan, writer in Glasgow. His other daughter is unmarried. 
Drumhead had two sisters, the eldest married to Napier of Ballikinrain, the youngest to Buchanan of 
Balfunning.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Blairhenachan-353"
Archibald married Miss BUCHANAN of Blairhenachan . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Archibald BUCHANAN 5th of Drumhead .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-364"

221
F
ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "NAPIER, of Ballikinrain-366"Miss married NAPIER of Ballikinrain . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-365"
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iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, of Balfunning-367"Miss married BUCHANAN of Balfunning . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Tullichewn-368"
168.
Robert BUCHANAN 2nd of Tullichewn  (Mungo BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
 Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained first a tack, and after a feu-charter, from Lodowick, Duke 
of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. This Robert had two sons, Robert, his successor ; and 
William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of Tullichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, 
Robert, his successor; James, who acquired a part of little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in 
Edinburgh, who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
Robert had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Tullichewn .
+
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ii.
William BUCHANAN of Stuckrodger .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  of Drumfad-376"
169.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of of Drumfad  (John or Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 3rd of Drumfad .
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick of Wester  Ballat-389"
172.
Patrick BUCHANAN of Wester Ballat  (Duncan BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John's brother obtained the heritage of the Spittels, with tack of Wester Ballat. ... Duncan the said John's 
brother, was ancestor to Patrick Buchanan of Wester Ballat, who had three sons, John, the eldest, who 
had issue; Mr. Thomas, writer in Edinburgh; and Duncan, merchant in London. Of this family is 
descended, John Buchanan in Hiltoun of Buchlyvie; Patrick Buchanan Merchant at Kippen kirk, with some 
others in these parts. There are also divers of this family in the counties of Antrim and Down, in Ireland.
Patrick had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Wester  Ballat-390"
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i.
John BUCHANAN of Wester Ballat .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-391"
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ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan-392"
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iii.
Duncan BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Blairluisk-437"
173.
John BUCHANAN of Blairluisk  (George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
George of Gartincaber's second son, George, was father to Thomas Buchanan in Creitchael, in Buchanan 
parish. He had another son, Andrew, father to George and Patrick Buchanan in Ledrish, in Buchanan 
parish. George's third son was Thomas, who purchased in heritage a part of Gartincaber. He had two 
sons, William, who acquired Ardoch in Kilmaronock parish, and George, late of Gartincaber, who left four 
sons, John, now of Gartincaber, Thomas, merchant in England, Dugal and Robert. George's fourth son 
was Andrew, who had three sons, two of these having gone to Ireland, and one residing in Drymen 
parish. George had also a daughter married to Andrew Buchanan of Gartachairn.
John had the following children:
+
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i.
George BUCHANAN of Blairluisk .
+
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ii.
William BUCHANAN of Blairluisk .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-505"
174.
George BUCHANAN  (George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
George of Gartincaber's second son, George, was father to Thomas Buchanan in Creitchael, in Buchanan 
parish.
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas in Creitchael-510"
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN in Creitchael  was born in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-506"
175.
Andrew BUCHANAN  (George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, George-511"
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George BUCHANAN  was born in Ledrish, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-512"
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ii.
Patrick BUCHANAN  was born in Ledrish, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-513"
176.
Thomas BUCHANAN  (George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Ardoch-514"
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i.
William BUCHANAN of Ardoch .
+
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ii.
George BUCHANAN of Gartincaber .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Ross-396"
178.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Ross  (Miss BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "CUNINGHAM, Miss of Drumquhassips-405"
John married (1) Miss CUNINGHAM of Drumquhassips . 
John and Miss had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Mr.-406"
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i.
Mr. BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-407"
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ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "MCPHARLAN, Andrew laird of  M'Pharlan-409"Miss married Andrew MCPHARLAN laird of M'Pharlan . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-408"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "TAYLOR, Robert of Mansfield-410"Miss married Robert TAYLOR of Mansfield . 
xe "CRAWFORD, Miss of Kilbirnie-411"
John married (2) Miss CRAWFORD of Kilbirnie . 
They had the following children:
+
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William BUCHANAN 10th of Drumikill .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-413"
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v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Edward of Spittel-414"Miss married Edward BUCHANAN of Spittel . 
xe "BICKERTOUN, Anna-415"
John married (3) Anna BICKERTOUN . 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-499"
184.
John BUCHANAN  (Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John had an illegitimate son, Thomas, who went to Ireland, and had one son, John, whose only son, 
George, in Glenmaqueen, had four sons, John, William, Matthew, and George, who. reside mostly in the 
counties of Derry and Donegal!.
John had the following children:
+
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i.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 6th of  Carbeth-447"
186.
Thomas BUCHANAN 6th of Carbeth  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1580 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
Thomas, sixth of that name. He married a daughter of Adam Colchoun, merchant in Dunbarton, said to 
be a son of Luss's, her mother being Lindsay of Bonneil's daughter. He had by her two sons, John his 
successor, and Walter.
xe "COLCHOUN, Miss-448"
Thomas married Miss COLCHOUN . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 7th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1610. 
+
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1615. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William 4th of  Easter Ballat-476"
187.
William BUCHANAN 4th of Easter Ballat  (William BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1630 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
William also had two sons, William his successor, and John, merchant in Stirling.
William had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1660. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-479"
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1665 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
[Is this the same person?]
Alexander and Walter, sons to William Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue ; as hath 
also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, being uncle to the present Ballat; John 
his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his other uncle any male issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-480"
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Alexander BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1670 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
[Is this the same person?]
Alexander and Walter, sons to William Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue ; as hath 
also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, being uncle to the present Ballat; John 
his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his other uncle any male issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 11th of  Lenny-550"
189.
Robert BUCHANAN 11th of Lenny  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To John, succeeded Robert, who was first married to Graham of Inchbrachie's daughter, relict of the laird 
of Ardkinglass. He had for second lady, Mushet of Burnbank's daughter.
xe "GRAHAM, Miss of Inchbrachie-551"
Robert married (1) Miss GRAHAM of Inchbrachie . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 12th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Sir John of Scotscraig-623"
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ii.
Sir John BUCHANAN of Scotscraig .
The third cadet of Lenny's family is Sir John of Scotscraig, second son to Robert, first 
of that name, laird of Lenny. His estate of Scotscraig went with a daughter of his, to a 
son of the earl of Marr, and since has been conveyed to divers others.
Auchmar, p.71
+
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James BUCHANAN of Shirrahal .
xe "MUSHET, Miss of Burnbank-552"
Robert married (2) Miss MUSHET of Burnbank . 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Mochastel-574"
190.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Mochastel  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John in Mochastel, had two sons, Robert, his eldest, and Archibald, ancestor to Buchanan of Torry, 
Robert had one son, Walter, who had two sons, John, and Arthur. John, the eldest, sold his tack of 
Mochastel, and acquired afterwards the lands of Arnpryor, Straithyre, and a part of the lands of 
Buchanan. He had one son, Mr. Robert, who had also one son, Francis Buchanan, present Arnpryor.
John had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 6th of Mochastel .
+
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ii.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Glenny-575"
191.
Walter BUCHANAN of Glenny  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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Alexander BUCHANAN 1st in Gartachairn .
+
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ii.
Mr BUCHANAN .
Twentieth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Sir John 20th Laird  of Buchanan-20"
192.
Sir John BUCHANAN 20th Laird of Buchanan  (Sir George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1575 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
He ruined the family financially with his lavish gifts to universities and other extrvagances.
Sir John, only son of Sir George, succeeded his father, and became twentieth Laird of Buchanan. He 
married Anabella Erskine, daughter of Adam Erskine, Lord Commendator of Cambuskenneth. By her he 
had a son, George, his heir, and a daughter, who married Campbell of Rahein. p.27
[received a charter in 1618]
xe "ARESKIN, Annabella-21"
Sir married Annabella ARESKIN  daughter of Mr. ARESKIN Adam Commendador or Lord Cambuskenneth and Miss DRUMMOND of Carnock. 
They had the following children:
+
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Sir George BUCHANAN 21st Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1600. He died in 1651. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-24"
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ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "CAMPBELL, Mr. of Rahein-25"Miss married Mr. CAMPBELL of Rahein . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick 4th Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-131"
196.
Patrick BUCHANAN 4th Laird of Auchmar and Straithyre  (George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1630 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
To George succeeded his eldest son Patrick, as is clear by charter, in his favour, of the lands of Auchmar, 
dated in the year 1662. He married Agnes Buchanan, daughter to William Buchanan of Ross. He had by 
her one son, John, who had issue, and five daughters; Janet, married to Buchanan of Cameron, Mary to 
Thomas Anderson, Elizabeth to Walter M'Pbarlan, Agnes to Galbraith of Armfinlay, and Jean to Nairn of 
Baturich. He had also an illegitimate son, John, who went to Ireland.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.34
xe "BUCHANAN, Agnes of Ross-142"
Patrick married (1) Agnes BUCHANAN of Ross  daughter of William BUCHANAN of Ross. 
They had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 5th Laird of Auchmar  was born estimated 1655. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet-147"
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ii.
Janet BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, of Cameron-150"Janet married BUCHANAN of Cameron . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Mary-145"
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Mary BUCHANAN .
xe "ANDERSON, Thomas-151"Mary married Thomas ANDERSON . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Elizabeth-146"
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iv.
Elizabeth BUCHANAN .
xe "MCPHARLANE, Walter-152"Elizabeth married Walter MCPHARLANE . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Agnes-148"
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v.
Agnes BUCHANAN .
xe "GALBRAITH, of Armfinlay-153"Agnes married GALBRAITH of Armfinlay . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Jean-149"
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vi.
Jean BUCHANAN .
xe "NAIRN, of Baturich-154"Jean married NAIRN of Baturich . 
xe ", unknown-155"
Patrick married (2) unknown . 
They had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Maurice Rev.-134"
199.
Maurice BUCHANAN Rev.  (George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in Tyrone, Ireland. 
Mr. Maurice Buchanan, fourth son to George Buchanan of Auchmar. He was a preacher in the county of 
Tyrone, and had one son, James, who had only one son, captain Maurice, who resides near Dublin.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.35
Maurice had the following children:
+
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i.
James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-137"
202.
George BUCHANAN  (George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
George of Auchmar's seventh and youngest son, George, had one son, William, who married at London, 
having left a son, James, who is a merchant in that city. John, Andrew and Robert, George's other sons, 
their issue is wholly extinct.
-
p.35
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William-177"
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i.
William BUCHANAN  died in of London, England. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 4th of  Spittel-194"
207.
Robert BUCHANAN 4th of Spittel  (Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "LAWSON, Miss of Boghal-196"
Robert married Miss LAWSON of Boghal . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN 5th of Spittal .
+
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ii.
Andrew BUCHANAN of Blairvocky .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-195"
208.
George BUCHANAN  (Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
William BUCHANAN of Arrachybeg .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-660"
209.
Alexander BUCHANAN  (Finlay BUCHANAN, Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James of Cremannan-661"
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James BUCHANAN of Cremannan  died in of Cremannan, Ireland. 
+
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ii.
Mr. BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Buchlyvie and Cashley-280"
216.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Buchlyvie and Cashley  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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Duncan BUCHANAN 3rd of Buchlyvie and Cashley .
+
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ii.
Andrew BUCHANAN of Ballachneck .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-281"
217.
Andrew BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-291"
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John BUCHANAN  was born in of Dunvigan, Derry, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-292"
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Andrew BUCHANAN  was born in of Dunvigan, Derry, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-293"
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William BUCHANAN  was born in of Dunvigan, Derry, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas 5th of  Drumikill-308"
218.
Thomas BUCHANAN 5th of Drumikill  (Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1510. 
It is unclear from Auchmar which wife is the mother of which child p.49
xe "LOGAN, Miss of Balvey-312"
Thomas married (1) Miss LOGAN of Balvey . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN 6th of Drumikill .
+
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M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Conochra .
xe "BUCHANAN, James-316"
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M
iii.
James BUCHANAN  died in of Ireland. 
xe "STIRLING, Miss of Glorat-313"
Thomas married (2) Miss STIRLING of Glorat . 
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Ross-311"
219.
William BUCHANAN of Ross  (Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The fifth cadet of Drumikill, was William,Buchanan of Ross, second son to Walter, fourth laird of Drumikill 
his mother being Kinross of Kippenross's daughter. He married John Buchanan in Gartincaber's daughter, 
by whom he had three sons, John, his successor; Captain William and George; also three daughters, the 
eldest married to Cuningham of Trinbeg, the second to Buchanan of Auchmar, the third to Buchanan of 
Carbeth. 
He purchased the lands of Ross from the earl of Glencairn, and was succeeded by John his son, who was 
thrice married, first to Cuningham of Drumquhassips daughter, and had by her, one son, and two 
daughters. The eldest of these daughters was married to Andrew, laird of M'Pharlan, being mother to the 
late John, laird of M'Pharlan. The other daughter was married to Robert Taylor of Mansfield, and had 
issue. John of Ross was secondly married to Crawford of Kilbirnie's daughter, relict to Lindsay of 
Balquhuarage. He had with her one son, William, second laird of Drumikill of that race, and one daughter 
married to Edward Buchanan of Spittel. He had for third lady, Anna Bickertoun, with whom he had issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-394"
William married Miss BUCHANAN  daughter of John BUCHANAN 1st of Gartincaber. 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of  Ross is printed as #178 on page 101.
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M
ii.
William BUCHANAN captain, 9th OD is printed as #179 on page 90.
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M
iii.
George BUCHANAN is printed as #180 on page 90.

281
F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN is printed as #181 on page 90.

282
F
v.
Miss BUCHANAN is printed as #182 on page 90.

283
F
vi.
Miss BUCHANAN is printed as #183 on page 90.
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald 5th of  Drumhead-354"
220.
Archibald BUCHANAN 5th of Drumhead  (Archibald BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
 Archibald, now of Drumhead, who is married to Anderson of Stobcross's daughter, by whom he hath 
three sons and two daughters. His eldest son, Archibald Buchanan, younger of Drumhead, is married to 
Gilbert Buchanan of Bankel's daughter. James and George, his other two sons, both merchants in 
Glasgow, are unmarried. His eldest daughter is married to Robert Buchanan, writer in Glasgow. His other 
daughter is unmarried. Drumhead had two sisters, the eldest married to Napier of Balli- kinrain, the 
youngest to Buchanan of Balfunning.
The next cadet of Drumhead's family, was Walter, ordinarily termed Walter in Drymen, because he 
resided the most part of his time in that village. Having no manner of document, to testify the time and 
manner of the descent of this Walter, off that of Drumhead, I must leave the same undetermined, 
though he is always reputed, as also owned by his progeny to be a cadet of the said family. This Walter 
had two sons, John and Walter, both notars. John had three sons, Walter the eldest, for whom he 
purchased the lands of Moss, being grandfather to the present Walter Buchanan of Moss, and father to 
John Buchanan of Carstoun. John, the notar's second son was John, grandfather to Archibald Buchanan 
of Balfunning, and father to John Buchanan of little Croy. His third son was William, who had one son, 
who never married. Walter in Drymen's second son, Walter, went to Argyllshire, and settled in Melfort in 
that shire, in which, and Lismore, divers of his race continue yet. Some others came thence, and settled 
in Drymen parish and other places.
The next cadet of Drumhead's family, was Walter, ordinarily termed Walter in Drymen, because he 
resided the most part of his time in that village. Having no manner of document, to testify the time and 
manner of the descent of this Walter, off that of Drumhead, I must leave the same undetermined, 
though he is always reputed, as also owned by his progeny to be a cadet of the said family. This Walter 
had two sons, John and Walter, both notars. John had three sons, Walter the eldest, for whom he 
purchased the lands of Moss, being grandfather to the present Walter Buchanan of Moss, and father to 
John Buchanan of Carstoun. John, the notar's second son was John, grandfather to Archibald Buchanan 
of Balfunning, and father to John Buchanan of little Croy. His third son was William, who had one son, 
who never married. Walter in Drymen's second son, Walter, went to Argyllshire, and settled in Melfort in 
that shire, in which, and Lismore, divers of his race continue yet. Some others came thence, and settled 
in Drymen parish and other places.
The last cadet of the family of Drumhead, is George, the present Drumhead's uncle. He resided the most 
of his time near Rapho, in the county of Deny in Ireland. He purchased a pretty good interest in that 
kingdom. He was a gentleman of a very good character, and very much esteemed in that place. He had 
two sons, the eldest succeeded to his interest, the youngest was a clergyman.
xe "ANDERSON, Miss of Stobcross-355"
Archibald married Miss ANDERSON of Stobcross . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald 5th of  Drumhead-356"

284
M
i.
Archibald BUCHANAN 5th of Drumhead .
Buchanan of Drumhead, a cadet of the old family of Drumikill, bears Buchanan; for 
distinction, a bent bow in the lion's sinister paw, and an arrow in his dexter: for crest, 
a sinister hand holding a bent bow. His motto, Par fit Fortnna Labwi.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Bankel-361"Archibald married Miss BUCHANAN of Bankel  daughter of Gilbert BUCHANAN of Bankel. 
His eldest son, Archibald Buchanan, younger of Drumhead, is married to Gilbert 
Buchanan of Bankel's daughter.
xe "BUCHANAN, James-357"
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M
ii.
James BUCHANAN .
James and George, his other two sons, both merchants in Glasgow, are unmarried. His 
eldest daughter is married to Robert Buchanan, writer in Glasgow. His other daughter 
is unmarried. Drumhead had two sisters, the eldest married to Napier of Ballikinrain, 
the youngest to Buchanan of Balfunning.
xe "BUCHANAN, George-358"

286
M
iii.
George BUCHANAN  died in of Rapho, Derry, Ireland. 
James and George, his other two sons, both merchants in Glasgow, are unmarried. His 
eldest daughter is married to Robert Buchanan, writer in Glasgow. His other daughter 
is unmarried. Drumhead had two sisters, the eldest married to Napier of Ballikinrain, 
the youngest to Buchanan of Balfunning.
[Is this the same person? This one is married.]
The last cadet of the family of Drumhead, is George, the present Drumhead's uncle. He 
resided the most of his time near Rapho, in the county of Deny [Derry] in Ireland. He 
purchased a pretty good interest in that kingdom. He was a gentleman of a very good 
character, and very much esteemed in that place. He had two sons, the eldest 
succeeded to his interest, the youngest was a clergyman.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-359"

287
F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-363"Miss married Robert BUCHANAN . Robert was born in of Glasgow, Lanark, Scotland. 
James and George, his other two sons, both merchants in Glasgow, are unmarried. His 
eldest daughter is married to Robert Buchanan, writer in Glasgow. His other daughter 
is unmarried. Drumhead had two sisters, the eldest married to Napier of Ballikinrain, 
the youngest to Buchanan of Balfunning.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-360"
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-360"
288
F
v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
unmarried
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Tullichewn-369"
223.
Robert BUCHANAN 3rd of Tullichewn  (Robert BUCHANAN, Mungo BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
 Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained first a tack, and after a feu-charter, from Lodowick, Duke 
of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. This Robert had two sons, Robert, his successor ; and 
William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of Tullichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, 
Robert, his successor; James, who acquired a part of little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in 
Edinburgh, who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
Robert had the following children:
+
289
M
i.
Mungo BUCHANAN 4th of Tullichewn .
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Stuckrodger-370"
224.
William BUCHANAN of Stuckrodger  (Robert BUCHANAN, Mungo BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
William of Stuckrodger, above-named, had one son, William, who mostly resided at St. Ninians, who had 
two sons, William, who left one son; and James, who went abroad.
William had the following children:
+
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 3rd of  Drumfad-377"
225.
John BUCHANAN 3rd of Drumfad  (John BUCHANAN, John or Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Thomas, youngest brother of Mungo, first of Tullichewn, and third son to Robert, second Blairhenachan, 
acquired a feu, or wedset-right, of the lands of meikle Drumfad in Glenfroon. His son was called John, 
designed of Drumfad; which lands this John, or rather his son of the same name, sold, being ancestor to 
John Buchanan of Cattermiln in the parish of Kilmaronock, and others.
pp.217 - 221
John had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Cattermiln-378"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Cattermiln .
[Auchmar says John Buchanan 3rd of Drumfad is his "ancestor" (not necessarily his 
father)]
xe "BUCHANAN, George of Blairluisk-487"
229.
George BUCHANAN of Blairluisk  (John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in of Ireland. 
[Sons] John and William, who reside in the county of Tyrone, George, who resides in Munster, and 
Thomas, in the county of Donegal.
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-493"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN  died in of County Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-494"
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M
ii.
William BUCHANAN  died in of County Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, George-495"
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M
iii.
George BUCHANAN  died in of County Munster, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-496"
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M
iv.
Thomas BUCHANAN  died in of County Donegal, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Blairluisk-490"
230.
William BUCHANAN of Blairluisk  (John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John had two sons, George, who went to Ireland, and William. George sold Blairluisk to his brother 
William, now of Blairluisk, who hath two sons, George, younger of Blairluisk, and John, merchant in 
England.
William had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, George of Blairluisk-491"
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M
i.
George BUCHANAN of Blairluisk .
xe "BUCHANAN, John-492"
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M
ii.
John BUCHANAN  died in of England. 
xe "BUCHANAN, George of Gartincaber-515"
235.
George BUCHANAN of Gartincaber  (Thomas BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Gartincaber-516"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Gartincaber .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-517"
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M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN  died in of England. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Dugal-518"
300
M
iii.
Dugal BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-519"
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M
iv.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William 10th of  Drumikill-412"
239.
William BUCHANAN 10th of Drumikill  (John BUCHANAN, Miss BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The fifth cadet of Drumikill, was William,Buchanan of Ross, second son to Walter, fourth laird of Drumikill 
his mother being Kinross of Kippenross's daughter. He married John Buchanan in Gartincaber's daughter, 
by whom he had three sons, John, his successor; Captain William and George; also three daughters, the 
eldest married to Cuningham of Trinbeg, the second to Buchanan of Auchmar, the third to Buchanan of 
Carbeth. He purchased the lands of Ross from the earl of Glencairn, and was succeeded by John his son, 
who was thrice married, first to Cuningham of Drumquhassips daughter, and had by her, one son, and 
two daughters. The eldest of these daughters was married to Andrew, laird of M'Pharlan, being mother to 
the late John, laird of M'Pharlan. The other daughter was married to Robert Taylor of Mansfield, and had 
issue. John of Ross was secondly married to Crawford of Kilbirnie's daughter, relict to Lindsay of 
Balquhuarage. He had with her one son, William, second laird of Drumikill of that race, and one daughter 
married to Edward Buchanan of Spittel. He had for third lady, Anna Bickertoun, with whom he had issue.
He was given Drumikill by his uncle who married 3 times but had no children.
This William of Drumikill married a daughter of MacAulay of Arncaple, and had by her three sons, William, 
who died unmarried, Archibald, now of Drumikill, and George, who had no issue, also one daughter, 
married to lieutenant William Bontein, brother to the laird of Airdoch, who had issue. Archibald, present 
Drumikill, married Jean Buchanan, heiress of Ross, daughter of James Buchanan of Ross his uncle, and 
of Margaret Stirling, daughter to Stirling of Law. With her he had four sons and four daughters; George, 
third son to William first of Ross, was killed in the year 1645, having no issue.
xe "MACAULAY, Miss of Arncaple-416"
William married Miss MACAULAY of Arncaple . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William-417"
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN .
died unmarried
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald 11th of  Drumikill-418"

303
M
ii.
Archibald BUCHANAN 11th of Drumikill .
The old family, of Drumikill of which William Buchanan, now of Craigievairn, is 
representer, by any information I can obtain, for armorial bearing carries the bearing 
of Buchanan ; and for distinction, a battle-ax in the lion's dexter paw, pointing towards 
the chief proper, with helmet in crest, suiting his quality. The motto, Prosecute or 
Perish.
The present Buchanan of Drumikill bears Buchanan ; and for distinction, in the lion's 
dexter paw, a man's heart proper; his crest, a dexter hand holding a sword. Motto, 
God with my right.
xe "BUCHANAN, Jean of Ross-422"Archibald married Jean BUCHANAN of Ross  daughter of James BUCHANAN of Ross and Margaret STIRLING of Law. 
xe "BUCHANAN, George-419"
 Jean Buchanan, heiress of Ross, daughter of James Buchanan of Ross his uncle, and 
of Margaret Stirling, daughter to Stirling of Law. With her he had four sons and four 
daughters; George, third son to William first of Ross, was killed in the year 1645, 
having no issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, George-419"
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M
iii.
George BUCHANAN .
no issue
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-420"

305
F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BONTEIN, William-421"Miss married William BONTEIN . 
William Bontein, brother to the laird of Airdoch
xe "BUCHANAN, George-500"
241.
George BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Glenmaqueen, Ireland. 
John had an illegitimate son, Thomas, who went to Ireland, and had one son, John, whose only son, 
George, in Glenmaqueen, had four sons, John, William, Matthew, and George, who. reside mostly in the 
counties of Derry and Donegal!.
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-501"

306
M
i.
John BUCHANAN  was born in of Glenmaqueen, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-502"
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M
ii.
William BUCHANAN  was born in of Glenmaqueen, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Matthew-503"
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M
iii.
Matthew BUCHANAN  was born in of Glenmaqueen, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, George-504"

309
M
iv.
George BUCHANAN  was born in of Glenmaqueen, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 7th of  Carbeth-449"
242.
John BUCHANAN 7th of Carbeth  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1610 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
John, first of that name, succeeded his father Thomas : he married a daughter of William Buchanan of 
Ross, and had by her two sons, John his
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Ross-451"
John married Miss BUCHANAN of Ross . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN 8th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1640. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Moses of Glyns-453"
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M
ii.
Moses BUCHANAN of Glyns  was born estimated 1645 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe ", Miss Govean of  Drumquhassil-530"Moses married Miss Govean of Drumquhassil . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-454"
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-454"
312
F
iii.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1650 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "FORRESTER, James of Polder-456"Miss married James FORRESTER of Polder . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-455"
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iv.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1655 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BRICE, John-457"Miss married John BRICE . 
a notar
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-450"
243.
Walter BUCHANAN  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1615 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James-529"
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i.
James BUCHANAN .
potioner of Cairnockf in Dundaff
xe "BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Easter Ballat-478"
244.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Easter Ballat  (William BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1660 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
The estimated birth years start with the assumption that John of Ballat's son William was born about 
1700. i.e. He was an adult at the time Auchmar wrote the book in 1732.
Of Duncan, the first cadet of Ballat, is descended Buchanan of Duchless, Buchanan, lately of Mid-Cashlie, 
Buchanan in Little Kep, with divers others. John Buchanan, merchant in Stirling, was father to Mr. John 
Buchanan, present minister of the gospel in Covintoun in the shire of Lanerk, who hath two sons, Mr. 
John, a probationer, and Mr. George, student of theology in Glasgow. Alexander and Walter, sons to 
William Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue ; as hath also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, being 
uncle to the present Ballat; John his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his other uncle any male issue.
John had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Easter  Ballat-481"
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN of Easter Ballat  was born estimated 1690 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-482"

316
M
ii.
Walter BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1695 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
[Is this the same person?]
Alexander and Walter, sons to William Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue ; as hath 
also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, being uncle to the present Ballat; John 
his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his other uncle any male issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, John-483"
xe "BUCHANAN, John-483"
317
M
iii.
John BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1700 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-484"
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M
iv.
Patrick BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1705 in Easter Ballat, Stirling, Scotland. 
[Is this the same person?]
Alexander and Walter, sons to William Buchanan in Ballat, had male issue ; as hath 
also Patrick Buchanan, merchant in Glasgow, being uncle to the present Ballat; John 
his uncle hath no issue, nor Walter his other uncle any male issue.
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 12th of  Lenny-553"
247.
Robert BUCHANAN 12th of Lenny  (Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Robert, first of that name, laird of Lenny, was succeeded by Robert, the second of that name, who was 
married to Stirling of Ardoch's daughter, by whom he had Robert, his successor, and John, his second 
son, grandfather to the present Lenny.
xe "STIRLING, Miss of Ardoch-554"
Robert married Miss STIRLING of Ardoch . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 13th of Lenny .
+
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M
ii.
Sir John BUCHANAN of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-561"
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iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
Robert, the second of that name, had also another daughter, who was married to Mr. 
Donald Campbel, a son of the above-mentioned family, who had nine daughters, the 
eldest of which was married to baron M'Corcadel, the second to M'Dugal of Gallanach, 
the third to M'Lachlan of Kilchoan, the fourth to M'Lean of Shouna, the fifth to 
Campbel of Inchdrenich, the sixth to Campbel of Fasnacloich, the seventh to Campbel 
of Fincrocan, the eighth to Reid of Achaorran, the ninth to Campbel of Fevard.
xe "CAMPBEL, Donald-562"Miss married Donald CAMPBEL . 
xe "BUCHANAN, James of Shirrahal-624"
249.
James BUCHANAN of Shirrahal  (Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The same Robert had a third son, James, merchant in Edinburgh, who purchased the estate of Shirrahal 
in Orkney. He had one son, Thomas, who sold Shirrahal, and had three sons, Arthur for whom he 
purchased the estate of Sound; John, whom he acquired the estate of Sandside; and William, to whom 
he left the estate of Russland; all whose progeny is extinct, except one daughter, left by Thomas, late of 
Sandside, being heiress of that estate.
James had the following children:
+
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i.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Shirrahal .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 6th of  Mochastel-593"
250.
Robert BUCHANAN 6th of Mochastel  (John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
Walter BUCHANAN 7th of Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-594"
251.
Archibald BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN of Torry .
+
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ii.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander 1st in  Gartachairn-576"
252.
Alexander BUCHANAN 1st in Gartachairn  (Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The last of that race who possessed the same, was captain James Buchanan, grandchild to the above 
Walter, who lived a good part of his time, and died a captain in Douglass's regiment in France, being 
never married, he sold his interest of Glenny to Walter Graham of Gartmor's family. Captain James had 
an uncle called Alexander, who obtained from Cuningham of Drumquhassil, a beneficial tack of the lands 
of Gartachairn in Drymen paroch.
This Alexander had two sons, Andrew, who feu- ed Gartachairn from my lord Napier, then proprietor 
thereof, and George. Andrew of Gartachairn had two sons, Alexander his successor, and George, late 
bailie in Glasgow. Alexander of Gartachairn had three sons, George, now of Gartachairn, Thomas 
Buchanan, mailman in Glasgow, and Andrew, tailor in the said town. Bailie George had four sons, George, 
his eldest son, -mailman, Andrew, Neil, and Archibald, merchants in Glasgow.
George, second son to Alexander, first in Gartachairn, had three sons, John, who went abroad, Alexander, and William, residing in Edinburgh.
Alexander had the following children:
+
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Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd in Gartachairn .
+
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ii.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Mr-577"
253.
Mr BUCHANAN  (Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James captain-578"
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i.
James BUCHANAN captain  was buried in France. 
Twenty-first Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Sir George 21st Laird  of Buchanan-2"
254.
Sir George BUCHANAN 21st Laird of Buchanan  (Sir John BUCHANAN, Sir George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1600 in of Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. He died in 1651 in Ennerkeithing, Scotland. 
Sir John's successor was Sir George, third of that name, and one and twentieth laird of Buchanan. He 
married Elizabeth Preston, daughter to Preston of Craigmillar, her mother being Hay of Pheinzie's 
daughter. Sir George, being colonel of Stirlingshire regiment, lost a great many of his regiment and 
kinsmen at the fatal conflict of Ennerkeithing, in which being taken prisoner, he died in that state, in the 
latter part of the year 1651, having left one son, John his sucessor, and three daughters, Helen, married 
to Sir John Rollo of Bannockburn; Agnes, married to Stewart of Rossyth; and Jean to Lecky of that Ilk.
John, third of that name, the two and twentieth, and last laird of Buchanan, succeeded to his father Sir 
George.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.27-28
[21st Buchanan of Buchanan, and Colonel of the Stirlingshire Regiment
Captured in battle at in Ennerkeithing and died in captivity]
[Sir George Buchanan commanded the Stirlingshire Regiment and led the clan at the Battle of Dunbar 
(1650) on the side of the Scottish Covenanters. From this I estimate his birth as about 1600-1610.]
Name Sir George, 21st Laird Of BUCHANAN14, 7C9R, M 
Death 1651 
Father Sir John, 20th Laird Of BUCHANAN, M 
Mother Anabella ERSKINE, F 
Misc. Notes 
Sir George, only son of Sir John, succeeded his father, and became the twenty-first Laird of Buchanan. 
He married Elizabeth, daughter of Preston of Craigmillar, and by her had a son, John, his heir, and three 
daughters - Hellen, who married Rollo of Bannockburn, Agnes, who married Stewart of Rossyth, and 
Jean, who married Lecky of that Ilk. Sir George died in 1651, a prisoner of the English.
xe "PRESTON, Elizabeth-3"
Sir married Elizabeth PRESTON  daughter of PRESTON of Craigmillar and Miss HAY of Pheinzies. Elizabeth was born estimated 1600 in of Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
They had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN 22nd Laird of Buchanan  was born estimated 1625. He died in Dec 1682. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Helen-14"
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ii.
Helen BUCHANAN .
xe "ROLLO, Sir John of Bannockburn-17"Helen married Sir John ROLLO of Bannockburn . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Agnes-15"
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iii.
Agnes BUCHANAN .
xe "STEWART, Mr. of Rossyth-18"Agnes married Mr. STEWART of Rossyth . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Jean-16"
xe "BUCHANAN, Jean-16"
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iv.
Jean BUCHANAN .
xe "LECKY, Chief of that  Ilk-19"Jean married Chief LECKY of that Ilk . 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 5th Laird  of Auchmar-144"
256.
John BUCHANAN 5th Laird of Auchmar  (Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1655 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
To Patrick Buchanan of Auchmar succeeded his son John. He married Anna Graham, daughter to John 
Graham. of Duchray. He had by her two sons and four daughters. The eldest of these daughters was 
married to Robert Graham of Glenny. The second daughter was first married to George Buchanan, son to 
Arthur Buchanan of Auchlessy, and afterwards to Andrew Stewart of town-head of Drymen. The third 
daughter was married to Robert Stewart of Cailliemore. The fourth to George M'Pharlan, merchant.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan", p.35
xe "GRAHAM, Anna of Duchray-157"
John married Anna GRAHAM of Duchray . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-158"
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i.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "GRAHAM, Robert of Glenny-163"Miss married Robert GRAHAM of Glenny . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-159"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George of Auchlessy-164"Miss married (1) George BUCHANAN of Auchlessy . 
xe "STEWART, Andrew-165"Miss married (2) Andrew STEWART . Andrew was born in of Drymen, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-160"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "STEWART, Robert of Cailliemore-166"Miss married Robert STEWART of Cailliemore . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-161"
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Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "MCPHARLANE, George-167"Miss married George MCPHARLANE . 
a merchant
xe "BUCHANAN, William 6th Laird  of Auchmar-162"
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William BUCHANAN 6th Laird of Auchmar  was born estimated 1680 in Auchmar, Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
John Buchanan of Auchmar was succeeded by William his son. He married Jean 
Buchanan, daughter to John Buchanan of Carbeth. Colin, second son to the said John, 
married Anna Hamilton, daughter to James Hamilton of Aitkenhead. 
The first cadet of the family of Auchmar, was Mr. William Buchanan, third son to 
William the first of Auchmar. This Mr. William went to Ireland, and became manager or 
factor, for the estate of the family of Hamilton, then lords of Clandeboys, and 
afterwards earls of Clanbrazil, in the county of Down, which family is now extinct. He 
married in that'country, and had one son, major William Buchanan, a very brave 
gentleman, who was major to George, laird of Buchanan's regiment, at the fatal 
conflict betwixt the Scots and English at Ennerkeithing. The major, upon defeat of the 
Scotish army, being well mounted, made his way through a party of English horsemen, 
and though pursued for some miles, came off safe, having killed diverse of the 
pursuers. He went afterwards to Ireland, and purchased an estate there, called 
Scrabohill, near Newtoun Clandeboys, in the County of Down. He had two sons, the 
eldest continued in Ireland, and the younger went abroad. He had also two daughters, 
both married in that country.
William of Auchmar, had an illegitimate son, called George, whose son John, had a 
wedset upon the lands of Blairluisk, in Kilmaronock parish, which having sold, he went 
to Ireland, where diverse of his progeny reside near the village called St. Johnstoun, in 
the county of Derry; from whence, one of them having come to the paroch of Bonneil, 
had two sons, Archibald at present in Bonneil, who hath three sons, George, a trader 
at sea; William, a residenter in London ; and James, residing near Glasgow. Another, 
Archibald, being also descended of the said George, resides in Inverary, in Argyllshire.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family 
and Surname of Buchanan", p.35
[I think this is the historian William Buchanan of Auchmar]
xe "BUCHANAN, Jean of Carbeth-168"William married Jean BUCHANAN of Carbeth  daughter of John BUCHANAN of Carbeth. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Colin-170"
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vi.
Colin BUCHANAN .
xe "HAMILTON, Anna-171"Colin married Anna HAMILTON . 
daughter of James Hamilton of Aitkinhead
xe "BUCHANAN, John-156"
262.
John BUCHANAN  (Patrick BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in of Ireland. 
an illegitimate son who went to Ireland
John had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Patrick-178"
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Patrick BUCHANAN  was born in of Ireland. He died in of the West Indies. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-179"
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John BUCHANAN  died in of Newtownstewart, Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe ", unknown-180"
John married (2) unknown . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Samuel-181"
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Samuel BUCHANAN  was born in of Laggan, Tyrconnel, Ireland. 
illegitimate
xe "BUCHANAN, James-174"
263.
James BUCHANAN  (Maurice BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter 
xe "BUCHANAN, James-174"BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Maurice Captain-175"

342
M
i.
Maurice BUCHANAN Captain  was born in of Dublin, Ireland. He died in of Dublin, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 5th of  Spittal-208"
265.
Walter BUCHANAN 5th of Spittal  (Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "GALBRAITH, Miss of Balgair-209"
Walter married Miss GALBRAITH of Balgair . 
They had the following children:
+
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Edward BUCHANAN 6th of Spittel .
+
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ii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Blairvocky .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew of Blairvocky-198"
266.
Andrew BUCHANAN of Blairvocky  (Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
worked as a factor for the earl of Mar. p.39
bought Blairvocky from [William Buchanan of] Spittel, and having never married left it to Walter 
Buchanan, his nephew, who was ancestor to the Buchanans of Blairvocky
Andrew had the following children:
+
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Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Arrachybeg-227"
267.
William BUCHANAN of Arrachybeg  (George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Buchanan Parish, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
+
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Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "BUCHANAN, Mr.-662"
269.
Mr. BUCHANAN  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Finlay BUCHANAN, Patrick the Courrui BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James of Cremannan-663"
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James BUCHANAN of Cremannan .
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan 3rd of  Buchlyvie and Cashley-282"
270.
Duncan BUCHANAN 3rd of Buchlyvie and Cashley  (John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, James-285"
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James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew of Ballachneck-283"
271.
Andrew BUCHANAN of Ballachneck  (John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-289"
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ii.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William 6th of  Drumikill-314"
275.
William BUCHANAN 6th of Drumikill  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To Thomas first of Drumikill succeeded his son Robebt, as is evident by the charters in his favour of the 
lands of Drumikill; as also by charter in his favour of Spittel of Finnick, with boat and boatland of Catter, 
by Matthew, earl of Lennox, dated at the earl's ancient mansion-house of Middle Catter, in the year 1505. 
This Robert was married to Margaret Hay, of what family not mentioned, and by her had two sons, 
Thomas his eldest, who, by any thing can be found, was married to Logy of that ilk's daughter. This 
Thomas was not entered to any of his father's estate, having died young, and long before his father, he 
being only mentioned as procurator in a seasin of Robert his father, by designation of Thomas Buchanan, 
primogenitus, or eldest son of Robert Buchanan of Drumikill. Robert's second son was John, ancestor of 
Buchanan in Wester Cameron. Thomas, last-mentioned, left two sons, Robert and Walter.
Robert, eldest son to the said Thomas, was served heir to his grandfather, Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, 
by designation of his nephew, and apparent heir, in the year 1518. He died unmarried, at least without 
issue, and was succeeded by his brother Walter, as testifies a precept of Clare Constat and charter 
thereon, in favour of him, and Janet Buchanan his spouse, in life-rent, and Thomas Buchanan, their son, 
in fee of the lands of Drumikill, dated 1536. I find this Walter mentioned in a bond of an hundred merks 
due to John Lennox of Branshogle, by Graham of Fin- try, Cuningham of Glengarnock, and Galbraith of 
Balgair, principals, earl of Glencairn, Cuningham of Drumquhassil, and Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, 
cautioners, all in one bond, and subscribed by two nottars, in regard none of all the principals or 
cautioners could write, except Fintry and Drumikill. This bond was dated in the year 1537, which being in 
the time when popery prevailed in this nation, and a consummate ignorance of all manner of learning, it 
is not to be wondered at, that so many laicks should not be able to write, when I have even heard from a 
gentleman of very good repute, that he had perused a,write of date near that time, in which two of the 
monks of Paisly were inserted witnesses, for whom the nottar was obliged to sign, in regard these two 
clergymen were ignorant of letters. Walter Buchanan of Drumikill was first married to Janet Buchanan, 
daughter to Walter Buchanan of Spittel, by whom he had Thomas his successor. He had for second lady 
a daughter of Kinross of Kip- penross, and had by her William, afterward of Ross.
To Walter, succeeded his son Thomas, as is clear, by the charter already mentioned, with divers others. 
He was first married to Logan of Balvey's daughter; secondly, to Stirling of Glor- at's daughter. Of these 
marriages he had three sons, William, his successor; Walter of Conochra; and James who went to Ireland.
Thomas was succeeded by his son William, who married Semple of Fulwood's daughter, by whom he 
had three sons, Walter his successor; Thomas and George; which last two went to Ireland, where divers 
of their progeny live in good circumstances. He had also one daughter, married to Kincaid of Auchinreoch.
Walter, succeeded his father William, and was married to Hamilton of Kinglassy's daughter. By her he 
had two sons, William, first of Cragievairn; and Dugal of Gartincaber.
To Walter, succeeded his son William, who was married to Cuningham of Boquhan's daughter. He had 
with her three sons, John, William and Walter. The two last left no issue. This William sold the estate of 
Drumikill, to his cousin, Captain William Buchanan, second son to William Buchanan, first of Ross, and 
afterward purchased from my lord Napier, the lands of Craigievairn, by which he and his successors were 
afterwards designed.
To William, first designed Craigievairn, succeeded his son John, who married Cuningham of Trin- beg's 
daughter, and had by her one son, William, his successor; and one daughter, married to lieutenant 
James Hamilton, brother to Hamilton of Bardowie.
William, present Cragievairn, married Hamilton of Bardowie's daughter, and hath by her a numerous 
issue.
The first cadet of the family of Drumikill, was Thomas Buchanan, second son to Thomas Buchanan,' first 
of Drumikill, who obtained the lands of Moss. He married Agnes Herriot, daughter to Herriot of Trabrown, 
and had by her three sons. Of these was Patrick, sent to the king of Denmark to require that Hepburn, 
earl of Bothwel, then prisoner. in that kingdom* should be sent to Scotland in order to be punished for 
Darnlie's murder. This Patrick had no male issue; so that the Moss, by virtue of some certain clause in his 
father Patrick's charter of the same, returned to the laird of Drumikill, or was purchased by him. Thomas 
of Moss's other two sons, were Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and the great Mr. George Buchanan.
There are some of opinion, that Patrick, Alexander, and Mr. George were sons of Thomas, eldest son of 
Robert, second Drumikill. But this supposition is clearly overthrown by a charter among Drumikill's 
evidences lately perused by me, which had escaped me upon my first perusal of them, being a charter of 
William, earl of Montrose, to Thomas Buchanan, brother-german to Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, as 
nearest heir to Thomas Buchanan, his pupillus, that is, as I take it, his nephew, or brother's son, of the 
lands of Moss. So that the Moss being then the appenage, or second son's portion of the family of 
Drumikill; and this Thomas, being the only second son existing at that time, obtained these lands, at 
least during his own lifetime, as the custom of such lands was then, and for a long time thereafter. For 
further ill ustration of this matter, I have seen in the hands of George Buchanan of Bellachruin, lineal 
successor of Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and consequently repre- senter of the family of Moss, a 
discharge by Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, to Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, his cousin, and umm, 
discharging his intromission for some years, with the rents of a part of the estate of Drumikill. Which 
Walter, by authentic documents already mentioned, is found to
<http://books.google.com/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA210&dq=Scots+wedset&
output=text>Continue » <http://books.google.com/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA220&dq=
Scots+wedset&output=text>
xe "SEMPLE, Miss of Fulwood-317"
William married Miss SEMPLE of Fulwood . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Walter BUCHANAN 7th of Drumikill .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-319"
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M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN  died in of Ireland. 
The seventh cadet of Drumikill was Thomas, second son to William, sixth laird of 
Drumikill. He, with his brother George, went to Ireland, where their progeny reside.
xe "BUCHANAN, George-320"
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iii.
George BUCHANAN  died in of Ireland. 
The seventh cadet of Drumikill was Thomas, second son to William, sixth laird of 
Drumikill. He, with his brother George, went to Ireland, where their progeny reside.
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Drumikill-321"
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F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN of Drumikill .
xe "KINCAID, of Auchinreoch-322"Miss married KINCAID of Auchinreoch . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Conochra-315"
276.
Walter BUCHANAN of Conochra  (Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The sixth cadet of the family of Drumikill was Walter of Conachra in Drymen parish, second son to 
Thomas, third of that name, and fifth laird of Drumikill. There are none of his male issue living except 
Thomas Buchanan of Kirkhouse of Strablane, and his children. The said Walter had one daughter, 
married to John Govean in Drymen, being mother to William Govean of Drumquhassil. The said Thomas 
had a third son, James, who went to Ireland.
Walter had the following children:
+
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i.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Mungo 4th of  Tullichewn-371"
289.
Mungo BUCHANAN 4th of Tullichewn  (Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Mungo BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick 
xe "BUCHANAN, Mungo 4th of  Tullichewn-371"BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
 Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained first a tack, and after a feu-charter, from Lodowick, Duke 
of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. This Robert had two sons, Robert, his successor ; and 
William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of Tullichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, 
Robert, his successor; James, who acquired a part of little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in 
Edinburgh, who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
Mungo had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 5th of  Tullichewn-372"
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN 5th of Tullichewn  was born in of Tullichewn, Stirling, Scotland. 
 Mungo's successor was Robert, who obtained first a tack, and after a feu-charter, 
from Lodowick, Duke of Lennox, of the lands of meikle Tullichewn. This Robert had 
two sons, Robert, his successor ; and William, who acquired Stuckrodger. Robert of 
TuU lichewn had one son, Mungo, who had four sons, Robert, his successor; James, 
who acquired a part of little Tullichewn, and had issue; Mungo, Writer in Edinburgh, 
who purchased Hiltoun and Auchintorly, and left issue; and William, now in Tullichewn.
xe "BUCHANAN, James-373"
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ii.
James BUCHANAN  was born in of Tullichewn, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Hiltoun  and Auchintorly-374"

359
M
iii.
William BUCHANAN of Hiltoun and Auchintorly  was born in of Tullichewn, Stirling, Scotland. 
writer in Edinburgh
xe "BUCHANAN, Mungo-375"
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M
iv.
Mungo BUCHANAN  was born in of Tullichewn, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-379"
290.
William BUCHANAN  (William BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Mungo BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William-380"
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i.
William BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, James-381"
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ii.
James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 8th of  Carbeth-452"
310.
John BUCHANAN 8th of Carbeth  (John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1640 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
John, second of that name, succeeded to his father. He was first married to Cleland of Wardhead's 
daughter, by whom he had two daughters. The eldest of these was married to John Callen- der of 
Westertoun, the other to Thomas Buchanan of Boquhan. Carbeth was secondly married to Margaret 
Steven, heiress of Easter Cattar and Finnicktenant: by her he had two sons, John his successor, and 
Moses of Glyns; also one daughter, married to Buchanan of Auchmar.
xe "CLELAND, Miss of Wardhead-458"
John married (1) Miss CLELAND of Wardhead . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-459"
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i.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1665 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "CALLENDER, John of Westertoun-461"Miss married John CALLENDER of Westertoun . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-460"
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ii.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1670 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Boquhan-462"Miss married Thomas BUCHANAN of Boquhan . 
xe "STEVEN, Margaret of Easter  Cattar and Finnicktenant-463"
John married (2) Margaret STEVEN of Easter Cattar and Finnicktenant . 
They had the following children:
+
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M
iii.
John BUCHANAN 9th of Carbeth  was born estimated 1675. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Moses of Glyns-465"
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M
iv.
Moses BUCHANAN of Glyns  was born estimated 1680 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-466"
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F
v.
Miss BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1685 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, of Auchmar-467"Miss married BUCHANAN of Auchmar . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 13th of  Lenny-555"
319.
Robert BUCHANAN 13th of Lenny  (Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Robert, first of that name, laird of Lenny, was succeeded by Robert, the second of that name, who was 
married to Stirling of Ardoch's daughter, by whom he had Robert, his successor, and John, his second 
son, grandfather to the present Lenny.
Robert, third of that name, laird of Lenny, was married to a daughter of Campbel of Lawers, by whom he 
had one son, Robert, who died unmarried, and one daughter, married to captain Archibald Campbel, son 
to the laird of Dunstafnage, being mother to doctor John Campbel of Torry.
xe "CAMPBEL, Miss of Lawers-557"
Robert married Miss CAMPBEL of Lawers . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert of Lenny-558"
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-559"
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F
ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "CAMPBEL, Archibald of Dunstafnage-560"Miss married Archibald CAMPBEL of Dunstafnage . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Sir John of Lenny-556"
320.
Sir John BUCHANAN of Lenny  (Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR 
xe "BUCHANAN, Sir John of Lenny-556"MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Robert, first of that name, laird of Lenny, was succeeded by Robert, the second of that name, who was 
married to Stirling of Ardoch's daughter, by whom he had Robert, his successor, and John, his second 
son, grandfather to the present Lenny.
Robert, last of that name, laird of Lenny, dying without issue, he was succeeded by John Buchanan, his 
cousin-german, son to John Buchanan, second son to Robert, second of that name, laird of Lenny, his 
mother being Stirling of Ardoch's daughter. John, laird of Lenny* last mentioned, married the laird of 
M'Pharlan's daughter, by whom he had two sons, John, his eldest son, married Lennox of Woodhead's 
daughter, and died without issue. His second son was Henry, who upon his brother's death succeeded to 
the estate of Lenny. He was first married to a second daughter of Buchanan of that ilk. He married 
secondly a daughter of Campbel of Lawers, having by both a numerous issue.
[I can't get this to fit.]
By any account I could obtain from the two sons of Robert, second of that name, laird of Lenny, are 
descended the greatest part of these Buchanans, residing in the parishes of Campsy and Bathernock. 
One of these two sons, whose name was John, having first settled in Bancleroch, now Kirktoun in 
Campsy parish, and having gone thence to Bankier, had three sons, whereof the eldest was Gilbert, 
whose posterity continue in and near Bankier, his second son, was William, who came to Blairsketh in 
Bathernock. This William had a son of the same name, father to William Buchanan, merchant in..Glasgow, 
and Gilbert Buchanan of Bankel, present dean of guild in Glasgow. 
here is also descended off this family, Walter Buchanan, late of Orchard, who dying without heirs-male, 
his interest devolved upon his eldest daughter, and was conveyed by her, to William Atkin, merchant in 
Glasgow, her husband, and now proprietor thereof. Orchard had another daughter, married to Andrew 
Gray of Christoun, near Glasgow j another to Robert Alexander, merchant, and Late bailie in Glasgow; 
and another, unmarried.
There are cadets of Lenny's family of a late extract, called Alexander Roye's progeny, being only a small 
number of the vulgar sort, residing for the most part in Callender parish.
The above-mentioned being all the cadets, according to the manuscript frequently spoken of, or any 
other documents I could obtain, descended off the family of Lenny, who retain the surname of Buchanan, 
I shall in the next place mention those of other denominations descended of the same.
Auchmar, pp.71-72
xe ", unknown-564"
Sir married unknown . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 14th of Lenny .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas of Shirrahal-625"
322.
Thomas BUCHANAN of Shirrahal  (James BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had one son, Thomas, who sold Shirrahal, and had three sons, Arthur for whom he purchased the 
estate of Sound; John, whom he acquired the estate of Sandside; and William, to whom he left the 
estate of Russland; all whose progeny is extinct, except one daughter, left by Thomas, late of Sandside, 
being heiress of that estate.
Thomas had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Arthur of Sound-626"
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i.
Arthur BUCHANAN of Sound .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Sandside-627"
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M
ii.
John BUCHANAN of Sandside .
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Russland-628"
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M
iii.
William BUCHANAN of Russland .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-629"
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F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
Is she this Thomas' daughter or one of his son John's descendants?
The same Robert had a third son, James, merchant in Edinburgh, who purchased the 
estate o) Shirrahal in Orkney. He had one son, Thomas, who sold Shirrahal, and had 
three sons, Arthur for whom he purchased the estate of Sound; John, whom he 
acquired the estate of Sandside; and William, to whom he left the estate of Russland; 
all whose progeny is extinct, except one daughter, left by Thomas, late of Sandside, 
being heiress of that estate.
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 7th of  Mochastel-595"
323.
Walter BUCHANAN 7th of Mochastel  (Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John in Mochastel, had two sons, Robert, his eldest, and Archibald, ancestor to Buchanan of Torry, 
Robert had one son, Walter, who had two sons, John, and Arthur. John, the eldest, sold his tack of 
Mochastel, and acquired afterwards the lands of Arnpryor, Straithyre, and a part of the lands of 
Buchanan. He had one son, Mr. Robert, who had also one son, Francis Buchanan, present Arnpryor.
Walter had the following children:
+
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i.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Arnpryor .
+
376
M
ii.
Arthur BUCHANAN 1st of Auchlessy .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Torry-607"
324.
John BUCHANAN of Torry  (Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John of Torry had two sons, Archibald of Torry, and Robert. Archibald of Torry had three sons, John, 
present Torry ; Archibald, who left no issue; and Andrew who had one son, James. John of Torry's 
second son, Robert, had five sons that came to age, the eldest whereof, is John of Greathil, in St. Ninian 
paroch. His other sons were Archibald, Charles, Alexander, and Duncan. There are also of the family of 
Mochastel, some of the Buchanans residing in Straithyre, with others in the parishes of Calender and 
Kilmadock.
Auchmar, p.71
John had the following children:
+
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i.
Archibald BUCHANAN of Torry .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-611"
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ii.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-608"
325.
Robert BUCHANAN  (Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-609"
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i.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
John, first of that name, in Mochastel's second son, Archibald, had two sons, John of 
Torry, and Robert, who was killed by the English, and left one son, Archibald.
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew 2nd in  Gartachairn-579"
326.
Andrew BUCHANAN 2nd in Gartachairn  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Andrew of Gartachairn had two sons, Alexander his successor, and George, late bailie in Glasgow.
Andrew had the following children:
+
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i.
Alexander BUCHANAN 3rd of Gartachairn .
+
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ii.
George BUCHANAN bailie .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-580"
327.
George BUCHANAN  (Alexander BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
George, second son to Alexander, first in Gartachairn, had three sons, John, who went abroad, Alexander, and William, residing in Edinburgh.
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-590"
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John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-591"
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ii.
Alexander BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, William-592"
384
M
iii.
William BUCHANAN .
Twenty-second Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, John 22nd Laird  of Buchanan-1"
329.
John BUCHANAN 22nd Laird of Buchanan  (Sir George BUCHANAN, Sir John BUCHANAN, Sir George BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1625 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. He died in Dec 1682 in Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
[All quotes are normally from William Buchanan of Auchmar, "A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon 
the Family and Surname of Buchanan", as contained in a book of about 104 pages, "The Family of 
Buchanan", reprinted by Scotpress, Morgantown, West Virginia in 1984. I purchased my copy from the 
Clan Buchanan Society International, 511 Pelican Cove, Windsor, Colorado, 80550, USA. 
The original of this book is said on page 4 to have been printed in 1732 and on the back cover is said to 
have been printed in 1723. 
I have created this computer file based on my understanding of the above book. The notes are excerpted 
from Miscellanea Scotica (see below). In case of questions, please refer to the book. 
- Bill Buchanan, Onoway, AB Canada T0E 1V0, May 2009.]
[The full text of the above book can also be read for free as part of a compilation called Miscellanea 
Scotica at:
http://books.google.ca/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA157&dq=%22miscellanea+scotica%22&
output=text]
His ancestry is given in:
A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of Buchanan, by William Buchanan of 
Auchmar, 1732, pages 16-29. John is mentioned on pp. 28-29
[John, only son of Sir George, succeeded his father, and became the 22nd Laird of Buchanan. He died in 
1682, leaving two daughters - Elizabeth, who married James Stewart of Ardvorlich, and Janet, who 
married Henry Buchanan of Leny. Having no son, his death brought the direct line of Buchanan to an end.]
John, third of that name, the two and twentieth, and last laird of Buchanan, succeeded to his father Sir 
George. He was first married to Mary Areskin, daughter to Henry, lord Cardross, her mother being 
Ballanden, of Broughton's daughter, and sister to the first lord Ballanden. With her he had one daughter 
Elizabeth, married to James Stewart of Ardvorlich. He secondly married Jean Pringle, daughter to Mr. 
Andrew Pringle a minister. With her he had one daughter, Janet, married to Henry Buchanan of Lenny. 
John, last laird, died in December 1682.
Having thus given a genealogical account of the family of Buchanan, it may not be improper to enquire 
how their estate came to be disposed of upon the extinction of the family. Not to go any further back, it 
is fit to know, that Sir John Buchanan, grand-father to the last laird, by his frequent travels into foreign 
nations and other extravagancies, had involved his estate in such an immense debt, that his grandson 
found it inconvenient for him to enter as heir, till he had caused David, lord Cardross, his brother-in-law, 
to compound with the most preferable of his creditors, and upon that composition to apprize the estate; 
upon which acquisition of Cardross, he entered upon the estate as singular successor; nor did he seek for 
any new right during the life of the lady Mary Areskin, his first lady, who at her death left only one 
daughter. Some few years after which, he entertained some thoughts of a second marriage, and for that 
purpose addressed himself to a daughter of Sir John Colchoun of Luss; between which family and that of 
Buchanan, there had been such frequent alliances, and communication of mutual good offices, as 
rendered the proposal very agreeable to Sir John. The only obstruction that offered, sprung from the 
mutual tailzies betwixt the families of Buchanan and Auchmar, whereby both interests were settled upon 
heirs-male. Buchanan, in order to remove this difficulty, went to London and obtained a new charter of 
his estate, upon the right already mentioned, acquired by him from the lord Cardross; and further, 
procured an additional clause in it, impowering him to dispone his estate to heirs whatsoever, and to 
whom he pleased. By this means, Buchanan of Auchmar, nearest heir-male, and next in succession by 
the tailzie, was wholly excluded, and his pretensions cut off. Buchanan's design however, was wholly 
defeated; the young lady [Colchoun] having, much against his expectation, married the laird of Keir 
before his return. This disappointment had such effects upon his high spirit, as in a little time threw him 
in a palsy, and prejudiced him in his judgment, in which unhappy circumstance he continued till his death. 
A little time before this misfortune befell him, John Buchanan of Arnpryor, then a widower, having come 
into Buchanan's family, gained such an influence over him, as to be entrusted with the whole 
management of his affairs. Arnpryor was not wanting to improve such an opportunity for the promoting 
his own interest, and found means to prevail on the laird to agree to a match between his daughter 
[Elizabeth] and Arnpryor's son, then a student of the civil law, that by this means the estate might be 
kept in the name, failing other heirs of Buchanan. The proposal would have certainly taken place, had 
not the young lady [Elizabeth] interposed, by refusing her consent; upon which, her father, then very 
much declined in judgment, conceived so much displeasure against her, as to make a disposition of his 
estate in favour of Arnpryor, and in prejudice of her right. However, keeping this paper in his own 
custody, and happening to go to the bath for recovery of his health, he, in his return, fell in love with Mrs. Jean Pringle [daughter of Rev. Andrew Pringle], and married her, and, upon her arrival at Buchanan, 
caused the disposition in favour of Arnpryor to be cancelled, which gave rise to an inveterate animosity, 
which continued ever after, between him and Arnpryor.
In a little time after this marriage, Buchanan, for reasons we cannot account for, disponed his estate to 
an old comrade of his, major George Grant, governor of Dunbarton castle, with this provision, that the 
major should marry his eldest daughter [Elizabeth], and assume the name and arms of Buchanan; 
reserving his own life-rent and his lady's jointure, and settling the estate so as to return to Buchanan's 
heirs-male, and, failing heirs of Grant's own body, to Buchanan's heirs whatsoever. Agreeable to this 
disposition, Grant made his addresses to the young lady [Elizabeth], but was rejected by her with the 
utmost indignation. The late lady Buchanan has been blamed, as promoting this disposition in favour of 
Grant; but 1 have received such information, from people well versed in Buchanan's affairs, as fully 
justifies her. Sometime after this, there was a project formed by Buchanan and Grant, of selling so much 
of the Highland lands of the estate of Buchanan as might, together with the price of some woods lately 
sold, and Buchanan's other moveables, clear the whole debts affecting the lower barony, or remainder of 
that estate. These Highland lands, accordingly, were sold to the marquis of Montrose, who, for security 
of that part sold to him, got infeftment of real warrandice upon the lower barony. This bargain being 
completed, it was suggested to the marquis, that he could not be fully secured in those lands lately 
purchased by him, till well informed of the extent of Buchanan's debts, and other circumstances of his 
affairs. For this purpose, Arnpryor, who of all others best knew those affairs, was prevailed upon to make 
a discovery of them to the marquis, having, for his service therein, and his assistance in evicting the 
whole estate, obtained the fourth part thereof, burdened with a proportionable part of the debts. Thus, 
there having been a debt due by Buchanan to Sir James Dick of Priestfield, for which all legal diligence 
was used, insomuch that the laird, with Drumikill, and some other cautioners, were denounced, and 
continued more than a year unrelaxed ; and Arnpryor, while manager for Buchanan, having been ordered 
to clear this debt, it was accordingly paid, and discharge and relaxation procured for the cautioners, but 
the principal, unhappily, was left unrelaxed. This secret once divulged, there was a gift obtained of 
Buchanan's life-rent and moveable escheat; by which, his whole moveables being exhausted, there was 
room left for wresting the estate out of his hands, by procuring rights to those debts for payment 
whereof these moveables were allotted. This project was the effectual means of ruining that estate; for 
divers adjudications being led in Arnpryor's name, then principal manager for my lord marquis, (the 
marquis himself, as it seems, being passive in it,) Buchanan's eldest daughter found herself obliged to 
resign her pretensions, for a sum of money, in favour of his lordship; and major Grant having a little 
before his death given up all Buchanan's evidences, both the rights and the fortune became to be entirely 
transferred.
This estate, as all others, was sometimes increased, or diminished, as it fell into the hands of good or bad 
managers. The lairds of Buchanan had, besides their old estate, several lands in the parishes of Killearn, 
Strablane, and others in the Lennox. The most flourishing condition it has been in, for divers ages, was 
upon the last laird's accession to it. For his old estate, which, together with Strathyre, Brachern, and 
some superiorities, was worth thirteen thousand merks of yearly rent, most of the same arising from 
steelbow horses, cows, corn, red land, besides casualties, and woods, computed in this age to be worth 
two thousand pounds sterling each cutting. Besides this, he had the whole estate of Badindalloch, 
amounting to six thousand merks per annum, which was acquired by Sir John, the late laird's grandfather, for money he was engaged in for Cunninghame of Glengarnock, proprietor thereof; as also he had the estate of Craigmillar in Mid-Lothian, being ten thousand merks per annum, acquired, by his father. So that from these three estates the family had near thirty thousand merks of yearly rent. But Buchanan having sold Badindalloch and Craigmillar when in health, and that of Buchanan going off in the manner we have already mentioned, after having continued six hundred and sixty-five years in that name, and in an uninterrupted succession of twenty-two lairds; by this mismanagement, and want of proper advice from his friends, this flourishing fortune has been destroyed, and the family itself extinguished.
-
The Paternal Arms of the Family of Buchanan.
-
Or, a lion rampant sable, armed and langued gules, within a double tressure, flowered and coun- 
terflowered with flower-de-luces of the second. Crest, a hand coupee holding up a ducal cap, or duke's 
coronet, proper, with two laurel branches wreathed surrounding the crest, disposed orleways proper; 
supported by two falcons garnished Or. Ancient motto above the crest, Audaces Juvo. Modern motto in 
compartment, Clarior Hinc Honos.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, pp.27-31
http://listsearches.rootsweb.com/th/read/GEN-MEDIEVAL/2001-07/0996010257From: shpxlcp@home.
com (Shawn Potter) 
Subject: New Buchanan Royal Descent? 
Date: 24 Jul 2001 14:30:57 -0700 
I am seeking constructive comments on the following new Buchanan royal descent.
I have not seen this particular line before. Gary Boyd Roberts in
"Ancestors of American Presidents" shows a Buchanan descent from King Robert III through Margaret 
Edmonstone to President James Buchanan; but he notes that he considered that line too tentative to 
include in "The Royal Descents of 500 Immigrants." If the tentative aspect of that line which Gary refers 
to is the link between Margaret Edmonstone and Janet Buchanan, wife of Thomas Buchanan, 3rd Laird of 
Carbeth, then it is worth noting that this line doesn't suffer the same weakness.
By the way, these Buchanans also are twice descended from King Robert II through the wife of Patrick 
Buchanan, 16th Laird of Buchanan, who was an unnamed daughter of Colin Campbell, 1st Earl of Argyll.
Shawn
-
Lineage
1. Robert III, King of Scotland = Annabella Drummond
2. Mary Stewart = George Douglas, 1st Earl of Angus
3. William Douglas, 2nd Earl of Angus = Margaret Hay
4. Helen Douglas = William Graham, 2nd Laird of Graham
5. Isabel Graham = Walter Buchanan, 15th Laird of Buchanan
6. Patrick Buchanan, 16th Laird of Buchanan = dau 1st Earl Argyll
7. George Buchanan, 17th Laird of Buchanan = Margaret Edmonstone
8. Janet Buchanan = Thomas Buchanan, 3rd Laird of Carbeth
9. John Buchanan, 1st Laird of Gartincaber = _____
10. George Buchanan, 2nd Laird of Gartincaber = Elizabeth Leckie
11. John Buchanan, 1st Laird of Blairlusk = _____
12. George Buchanan, 2nd Laird of Blairlusk = Elizabeth Mayne
13. William Buchanan = Janet _____
14. Walter Buchanan = Mary Roney
Documentation
1-2. Mary Stewart, second daughter of King Robert III of Scotland, married firstly George, 1st Earl of 
Angus, in 1397. (Smith, The Parish of Strathblane, pp. 104-105) The 1st Earl of Angus was taken captive 
at the Battle of Homildon Hill on September 14, 1402. (Paul, vol. i, p. 173) The 1st Earl of Angus died in 
1404. (Smith, The Parish of Strathblane, pp.104-105)
2-3. William Douglas, 2nd Earl of Angus, was the eldest son of Mary Stewart and the 1st Earl of Angus. 
(Paul, vol. i, pp. 173-174) The 2nd Earl of Angus married Margaret Hay, daughter of Sir William Hay of 
Yester, in about 1425, when they obtained papal dispensation for their marriage. (Paul, vol. i, p. 175) 
The 2nd Earl of Angus was succeeded by his eldest son in 1437. (Paul,
vol. i, p. 175)
3-4. Helen Douglas, daughter of the 2nd Earl of Angus and Margaret Hay, married William Graham, 2nd 
Laird of Graham. (Paul, vol. vi, pp. 222-223) The 2nd Laird of Graham died in about 1471; Helen Douglas 
was alive in 1480. (Paul, vol. vi, p. 222)
4-5. Walter Buchanan, 15th Laird of Buchanan, married a daughter of the Laird of Graham and his wife, 
a daughter of the Earl of Angus. (Auchmar, p.44) The 15th Laird of Buchanan married Isabel before 
November 26, 1463. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 286) The 15th Laird of Buchanan died before the end of 
1526, when the 17th Laird of Buchanan succeeded him. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 286)
5-6. Patrick Buchanan, 16th Laird of Buchanan, was a son of the 15th Laird of Buchanan and his wife, a 
daughter of the Laird of Graham. (Auchmar, p.44) The 16th Laird of Buchanan married a daughter of the 
Earl of Argyll. (Auchmar, p. 45)
6-7. George Buchanan, 17th Laird of Buchanan, was a son of the 16th Laird of Buchanan and his wife, a 
daughter of the Earl of Argyll. (Auchmar, p. 45)
The 16th Laird of Buchanan had two sons and two daughters. (Auchmar, p. 45)
The 16th Laird of Buchanan died before March 4, 1502/3. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 287) [Therefore, the 
16th Laird of Buchanan probably married in about 1494; and he probably was born before about 1473; 
and his wife probably was born in about 1474--this means she must have been a
daughter of Colin Campbell, 1st Earl of Argyll, rather than a daughter of Colin Campbell, 3rd Earl of Argyll, as supposed by Auchmar; and the 17th Laird of Buchanan probably was born in about 1497.]
7-8. George Buchanan, 17th Laird of Buchanan, married firstly Margaret Edmonstone, daughter of the 
Laird of Duntreath, and married secondly Janet Cuningham, daughter of the Laird of Craigens. (Auchmar, 
pp. 45-46) At this point in his narrative, Auchmar mentions three children of the 17th Laird of Buchanan, 
saying the first child--John--was a son of Margaret Edmonstone and the second and third children--
William and Margaret--were born to Janet Cuningham. (Auchmar, pp. 45-46) Later in his narrative, 
Auchmar says Thomas Buchanan, 3rd Laird of Carbeth, married firstly a daughter of Laird Douglas of 
Mains, and married secondly Janet Buchanan, daughter of the Laird of Buchanan. (Auchmar, pp. 112-
113)
8-9. John Buchanan, 1st Laird of Gartincaber, was the eldest son of Janet Buchanan and the 3rd Laird of 
Carbeth. (Auchmar, p. 113) The third son of Janet Buchanan and the 3rd Laird of Carbeth, William 
Buchanan, was born in about 1547. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 347) [Therefore, the 1st Laird of 
Gartincaber probably was born in about 1541; and his mother, Janet Buchanan, probably was born in 
about 1521; and Janet Buchanan must have been a daughter of the 17th Laird of Buchanan. But it is 
unclear from currently available records whether Janet Buchanan was a daughter of the Laird's first wife, 
Margaret Edmonstone, or his second wife, Janet Cuningham.] [The preceding editor's comment is not by 
me. - Bill] 
9-10. George Buchanan, 2nd Laird of Gartincaber, was a son of the 1st Laird. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 
350) The 2nd Laird of Gartincaber married Elizabeth Leckie, daughter of Walter Leckie of Disheour. 
(Smith, Strathendrick, p. 350)
10-11. John Buchanan, 1st Laird of Blairlusk, was the eldest son of the 2nd Laird of Gartincaber and 
Elizabeth Leckie. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 350)
George Buchanan, second son of the 2nd Laird of Gartincaber, served as attorney for his mother, 
Elizabeth Leckie, on November 25, 1634. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 350) [Therefore, George Buchanan, 
second son of the 2nd Laird of Gartincaber, probably was born before about 1613; and the 1st Laird of 
Blairlusk probably was born before about 1609.]
11-12. George Buchanan, 2nd Laird of Blairlusk, was the eldest son of the 1st Laird of Blairlusk, probably 
by an unknown first wife. (Smith, Strathendrick, p. 350) The 2nd Laird of Blairlusk sold Blairlusk to his 
brother, moved to Deroran, County Tyrone, Ireland, in 1674, and married Elisabeth Mayne in 1675. 
(Smith, Strathendrick, p. 350)
12-13. William Buchanan, father of Robert Buchanan of Cumberland County, Pennsylvania, was second 
son of the 2nd Laird of Blairlusk and Elisabeth Mayne. (Smith, Strathendrick, pp. 350-351)
13-14. Walter Buchanan, who lived in East Pennsborough, Cumberland County, Pennsylvania, was a 
brother of Robert Buchanan of the same county and a son of William Buchanan, son of the 2nd Laird of 
Blairlusk. (Browning, p. 541)
Walter Buchanan is memorialized on a large stone in Evergreen Cemetery at Gettysburg, Adams County, 
Pennsylvania, that contains the following inscriptions: "Here lyes the body of Andrew Buchanan who 
departed this life January the 19th, 1759, Aged 43 years." "In memory of Walter Buchanan who departed 
this life in the year 1780 [sic.] and of Mary Roney wife of Walter Buchanan." A neighboring stone 
contains the following inscription: "Here lyf the Body of Robert Buchanan who departed this life the 28th 
of Sept in the year of our Lord 1748, Aged 51 years. Also here lyf the body of James Buchanan who 
departed thif life the 21st of Nov in the year of our Lord
1751, Aged 20 yearf." (Photographs provided by Florence O'Neal.) The stone memorializing Andrew 
Buchanan, Walter Buchanan, and Mary Roney contains the following arms: Or, a lion rampant sable, 
armed and langued gules, within a double tressure flory counterflory of the second. Crest: A hand 
holding up a ducal cap, tufted on the top with a rose gules, within a laurel branch, disposed orleways 
proper. Motto: Audaces juvo clarior hinc hones. 
Supporters: two birds. (Zieber, p. 43) These are the arms of the family of Buchanan of that Ilk. (Sir Ian 
Moncreiffe of that Ilk, "The Highland Clans," New York: Clarkson N. Potter, Inc., 1967, pp. 198-199) 
Walter Buchanan signed his will February 27, 1786, with a codicil dated July 8, 1786, in which he named 
his wife, Mary, and children: James, William, Robert, Walter, Elizabeth, Janet, Mary, Margaret, and Ann. 
His will was proved in York County, Pennsylvania, on December 13, 1788. (York County Probate Records, 
Will Book G, p. 347) Robert Smith moved the Buchanan family stones from
Black's Cemetery, Upper Marsh Creek Presbyterian Church, to Evergreen Cemetery at Gettysburg during 
the first week of September in 1856. (Evergreen Cemetery Burial Permit Book)
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Buchanan's: In 1282, the Earl of Lennox granted a charter to Maurice de Bouchannane, confirming him 
in his lands and giving him the right to hold courts. The Buchanan chiefs held the lands for another 400 
years. 
John Buchanan, the last laird, sold his ancestral estate in 1682 to the Marquess of Montrose. The 
principal line of the Buchanans becoming, as above shown, extinct in 1682, the representation of the 
family devolved on Buchanan of Auchmar. [NOTE: THIS COINCIDES WITH BEGINNING 0F THE
MIGRATION TO NORTHERN IRELAND AND AMERICA.] 
Then this humorous note to give thought to all serious genealogists:
"The name of Buchanan was at one time so numerous in heritors that it is said that the laird of Buchanan 
could, in a summer's day, call fifty heritors of his own surname to his house, upon any occasion, and all 
of them might with convenience return to their respective residences before
night, the most distant of their homes not being above ten miles from Buchanan castle."
The ancestor of the Buchanans of Cashill was always reputed an immediate cadet of the family of 
Buchanan ; the first of these having obtained the lands of Cashill from the laird of Buchanan, by which 
that family was designed, and retained possession thereof for some ages, until about the latter part of 
the reign of queen Mary, Robert Buchanan of Cashill, and Walter Buchanan his son, fell at variance with 
Thomas Buchanan in Arduill, their kinsman and neighbour, in which contest the said Thomas and his son 
Duncan were both killed by those of Cashill, for which cause the laird of Buchanan dispossessed them of 
Cashill; whereupon Walter, Robert's eldest son, went to Ireland, where divers of his posterity remain yet. 
One of these having come thence, and settled in Argyllshire, was ancestor to William Buchanan of Glens, 
who hath brethren, and some other relations in that country. William's two sons are, John Buchanan, 
younger, merchant in Glasgow, and James, merchant in Tarbet. Robert of Cashill had another son, who 
went to Braidalbin, and was officer to one of the lairds of Glenorchy, the present earl of Braidalbin's 
ancestor, from which office his posterity were termed MacAmhaoirs, or officer's sons, of which there 
were some lately in Buchanan parish, but now extinct. There are others of that name yet in Braidalbin, 
but they maintain no correspondence with the name of Buchanan.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan
The Buchanans in Sallochy their progenitor, as those others last-mentioned, conform to any traditional 
account can be obtained, was an immediate cadet of the family of Buchanan, his name being Gilbert, 
whence his progeny were termed ordinarily MacGilberts, or Gilbertsons. The first possession given to this 
Gilbert was Sallochy in Buchanan parish, of which his posterity retained possession for divers generations. 
That family was divided into several branches, one of these continuing in the old possession, till of late 
years, John, last of this branch, died without male issue. Another branch of this family went to Kilpa- 
trick, and settled in Forgiestoun, whose issue having spread through some other parts of Kilpatrick and 
Bathernock, any of them who yet exist, pretend to be of Lenny's family, seeing the greater part of the 
other Buchanans of these, and some neighbouring places are really of the family of Lenny. Besides those 
already mentioned, there are some small heritors, with divers farmers, of the name of Buchanan, in 
Middle and East Calder, as also near Langholm in the south country, of whose descent I could obtain no 
distinct account; so that I must leave the same undetermined.
-
William Buchanan of Auchmar, A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of 
Buchanan, p.22
[I am estimating his birth as about 1625, based on the estimated birth date of his father and the fact that 
he married twice, and his first daughter Elizabeth was christened in 1651 and was an adult when John 
remarried, so about 1660. He married again and had a second daughter, Janet. - Bill]
xe "ARSKIN OR ERSKINE, Mary-4"
John married (1) Mary ARSKIN OR ERSKINE  daughter of Henry ARSKIN OR ERSKINE Lord Cardross and Miss BALLADEN OF BROUGHTON. Mary was born estimated 1630 in of Buchanan, Stirling, Scotland. 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Elizabeth-8"

385
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i.
Elizabeth BUCHANAN  was christened on 25 May 1651 in Kilmadock, Perthshire, Scotland. 
xe "STEWART, James 4th of  Ardvorlich-9"Elizabeth married James STEWART 4th of Ardvorlich . 
http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~rykbrown/stewart_of_ardvorlich.
htm
James STEWART married about 1682 to Elizabeth BUCHANAN of that ilk.  She was 
baptized 25 MAY 1651 in Kilmadock, Perthshire, Scotland, as the daughter of John 
Buchanan, 19th Lord of Buchanan and his wife Mary Erskine, daughter of Henry 
Erskine, Lord of Cardross.  James' marriage to Elizabeth Buchanan was not very 
popular with her family. They charged that she had married beneath her station. 
However the marriage was approved by her uncle, then the Lord of Cardross, which 
settled other family members' concerns.  James Stewart and Elizabeth Buchanan had 
the following children:
 Marie STEWART bap. 15 JUN 1680 in Stirling, Stirlingshire, Scotland.  Nothing more is 
known of her. 
 Robert STEWART , 5th of Ardvorlich b: ABT 6 MAY 1681 in Stirling, Stirlingshire, 
Scotland, of whom below.
 David STEWART, Forester of Glen Finglas b: ABT 9 APR 1684 in Glenfinglas, Callander, 
Perthshire, Scotland, son of James Stewart, 4th of Ardvorlich.  
The descendants of this Stewart branch were also not long in Glenfinglas as David 
became a casualty of the '45 and his descendants scattered.
Evidence of this David comes from the Ardvorlich History, MacGregor, and from the 
Stewarts of the South as follows: "The old Branch of Ardvorlich Family (& sometime 
Macorriston) became extinct when the present Mr Stewart's father became heir - the 
last branch which you may see in Duncan Stewart's History was Robert a rude and 
boisterous man, he died without issue [sic - actually Ardvorlich passed first to David's 
cousin, Robert, 6th Ardvorlich]. 
Next David, his brother, was Tenant in Glenfinglas (and sometimes in Macorriston) was 
Forrester to the Earl of Murray.  He was married to a daughter of Steward of Balled 
[actually she was a daughter of Stewart of Fungorth, believed to be of the family of 
Balled] and widow of Campbell of Lochdochard by whom he had one son - he was a 
promising youth he was slain at the unfortunate battle of Culloden. [sic - The Stewarts 
of the South has confused the two sons. See below.]"  
David's baptism, shown above, is not certain.  The entry in question shows no name 
for the child of James Stewart of Ardvorlich and Elizabeth whose baptism is recorded in 
Kilmadock. As David's birth is unaccounted for, it is believed this entry is David Stewart.
xe "PRINGLE, Jean-5"
John married (2) Jean PRINGLE  daughter of Andrew PRINGLE. Jean was born estimated 1635. 
called "Mrs. Jean Pringle" by Auchmar but he also call her "Jean Pringle, daughter to Andrew Pringle, a 
minister"
A Historical and Genealogical Essay Upon the Family and Surname of Buchanan, by William Buchanan of 
Auchmar, 1732, pages 28-29
John and Jean had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet-10"
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ii.
Janet BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Henry 16th of  Lenny-567"Janet married Henry BUCHANAN 16th of Lenny  son of John BUCHANAN 14th of Lenny and Miss M'PHARLAN of M'Pharlan. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Edward 6th of  Spittel-197"
343.
Edward BUCHANAN 6th of Spittel  (Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert 
xe "BUCHANAN, Edward 6th of  Spittel-197"BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "EDMUNDSTOUN, Miss of Balleun-199"
Edward married (1) Miss EDMUNDSTOUN of Balleun . 
They had the following children:
+
387
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i.
James BUCHANAN 7th of Spittel .
xe "BUCHANAN, John captain-201"
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John BUCHANAN captain  died in Ennerkeithing, Scotland. 
A captain in the regiment of George, laird of Buchanan. died in the battle of 
Ennerkeithing p. 38
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Ross-202"
Edward married (2) Miss BUCHANAN of Ross  daughter of John BUCHANAN of Ross. 
They had the following children:
+
389
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iii.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Edward-205"
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Edward BUCHANAN  died in University of Edinburgh, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-206"
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v.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "CUNNINGHAM, if Trinbeg-207"Miss married CUNNINGHAM if Trinbeg . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Blairvocky-210"
344.
Walter BUCHANAN of Blairvocky  (Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Walter Buchanan of Spittel 
There is a contract of wedset for the sum of one thousand merks Scots upon the lands of Sallochy by 
John Buchanan of that ilk in favour of this Walter dated in the year 1618 Walter of Blairvocky had one 
son Alexander who had four sons Walter Alexander William and George Walter's progeny is extinct 
Alexander left only one daughter George the youngest went abroad William the third brother having 
obtained the interest of Blairvocky sold the same to John Buchanan younger of Spittel William the last of 
Blairvocky resided mostly in Ireland He had four sons Alexander William Walter and Henry Alexander
Walter had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-250"
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Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-251"
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ii.
Alexander BUCHANAN .
+
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iii.
William BUCHANAN 2nd of Blarivocky .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-253"
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iv.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-242"
345.
Robert BUCHANAN  (Andrew BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-242"BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Arrachymore, Buchanan Parish, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-243"
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Andrew BUCHANAN .
+
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James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-245"
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Robert BUCHANAN .
+
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iv.
Alexander BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Donald-228"
346.
Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
+
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M
ii.
Duncan BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
+
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M
iii.
Robert BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  died in 1645. 
+
403
M
iv.
Walter BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe ", unknown-240"
Donald married (2) unknown . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-241"
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M
v.
Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John-284"
348.
John BUCHANAN  (Duncan BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James-286"
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i.
James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John-287"
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M
ii.
John BUCHANAN  was born in of Glasgow, Lanark, Scotland. 
maltman
xe "BUCHANAN, John-288"
350.
John BUCHANAN  (Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter 
xe "BUCHANAN, John-288"BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Moses-290"
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M
i.
Moses BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter 7th of  Drumikill-318"
352.
Walter BUCHANAN 7th of Drumikill  (William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To Thomas first of Drumikill succeeded his son Robebt, as is evident by the charters in his favour of the 
lands of Drumikill; as also by charter in his favour of Spittel of Finnick, with boat and boatland of Catter, 
by Matthew, earl of Lennox, dated at the earl's ancient mansion-house of Middle Catter, in the year 1505. 
This Robert was married to Margaret Hay, of what family not mentioned, and by her had two sons, 
Thomas his eldest, who, by any thing can be found, was married to Logy of that ilk's daughter. This 
Thomas was not entered to any of his father's estate, having died young, and long before his father, he 
being only mentioned as procurator in a seasin of Robert his father, by designation of Thomas Buchanan, 
primogenitus, or eldest son of Robert Buchanan of Drumikill. Robert's second son was John, ancestor of 
Buchanan in Wester Cameron. Thomas, last-mentioned, left two sons, Robert and Walter.
Robert, eldest son to the said Thomas, was served heir to his grandfather, Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, 
by designation of his nephew, and apparent heir, in the year 1518. He died unmarried, at least without 
issue, and was succeeded by his brother Walter, as testifies a precept of Clare Constat and charter 
thereon, in favour of him, and Janet Buchanan his spouse, in life-rent, and Thomas Buchanan, their son, 
in fee of the lands of Drumikill, dated 1536. I find this Walter mentioned in a bond of an hundred merks 
due to John Lennox of Branshogle, by Graham of Fin- try, Cuningham of Glengarnock, and Galbraith of 
Balgair, principals, earl of Glencairn, Cuningham of Drumquhassil, and Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, 
cautioners, all in one bond, and subscribed by two nottars, in regard none of all the principals or 
cautioners could write, except Fintry and Drumikill. This bond was dated in the year 1537, which being in 
the time when popery prevailed in this nation, and a consummate ignorance of all manner of learning, it 
is not to be wondered at, that so many laicks should not be able to write, when I have even heard from a 
gentleman of very good repute, that he had perused a,write of date near that time, in which two of the 
monks of Paisly were inserted witnesses, for whom the nottar was obliged to sign, in regard these two 
clergymen were ignorant of letters. Walter Buchanan of Drumikill was first married to Janet Buchanan, 
daughter to Walter Buchanan of Spittel, by whom he had Thomas his successor. He had for second lady 
a daughter of Kinross of Kippenross, and had by her William, afterward of Ross.
To Walter, succeeded his son Thomas, as is clear, by the charter already mentioned, with divers others. 
He was first married to Logan of Balvey's daughter; secondly, to Stirling of Glor- at's daughter. Of these 
marriages he had three sons, William, his successor; Walter of Conochra; and James who went to Ireland.
Thomas was succeeded by his son William, who married Semple of Ful wood's daughter, by whom he 
had three sons, Walter his successor; Thomas and George; which last two went to Ireland, where divers 
of their progeny live in good circumstances. He had also one daughter, married to Kincaid of Auchinreoch.
Walter, succeeded his father William, and was married to Hamilton of Kinglassy's daughter. By her he 
had two sons, William, first of Cragievairn; and Dugal of Gartincaber.
To Walter, succeeded his son William, who was married to Cuningham of Boquhan's daughter. He had 
with her three sons, John, William and Walter. The two last left no issue. This William sold the estate of 
Drumikill, to his cousin, Captain William Buchanan, second son to William Buchanan, first of Ross, and 
afterward purchased from my lord Napier, the lands of Craigievairn, by which he and his successors were 
afterwards designed.
To William, first designed Craigievairn, succeeded his son John, who married Cuningham of Trin- beg's 
daughter, and had by her one son, William, his successor; and one daughter, married to lieutenant 
James Hamilton, brother to Hamilton of Bardowie.
William, present Cragievairn, married Hamilton of Bardowie's daughter, and hath by her a numerous 
issue.
The first cadet of the family of Drumikill, was Thomas Buchanan, second son to Thomas Buchanan,' first 
of Drumikill, who obtained the lands of Moss. He married Agnes Herriot, daughter to Herriot of Trabrown, 
and had by her three sons. Of these was Patrick, sent to the king of Denmark to require that Hepburn, 
earl of Bothwel, then prisoner. in that kingdom* should be sent to Scotland in order to be punished for 
Darnlie's murder. This Patrick had no male issue; so that the Moss, by virtue of some certain clause in his 
father Patrick's charter of the same, returned to the laird of Drumikill, or was purchased by him. Thomas 
of Moss's other two sons, were Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and the great Mr. George Buchanan.
There are some of opinion, that Patrick, Alexander, and Mr. George were sons of Thomas, eldest son of 
Robert, second Drumikill. But this supposition is clearly overthrown by a charter among Drumikill's 
evidences lately perused by me, which had escaped me upon my first perusal of them, being a charter of 
William, earl of Montrose, to Thomas Buchanan, brother-german to Robert Buchanan of Drumikill, as 
nearest heir to Thomas Buchanan, his pupillus, that is, as I take it, his nephew, or brother's son, of the 
lands of Moss. So that the Moss being then the appenage, or second son's portion of the family of 
Drumikill; and this Thomas, being the only second son existing at that time, obtained these lands, at 
least during his own lifetime, as the custom of such lands was then, and for a long time thereafter. For 
further ill ustration of this matter, I have seen in the hands of George Buchanan of Bellachruin, lineal 
successor of Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, and consequently repre- senter of the family of Moss, a 
discharge by Walter Buchanan of Drumikill, to Alexander Buchanan of Ibert, his cousin, and umm, 
discharging his intromission for some years, with the rents of a part of the estate of Drumikill. Which 
Walter, by authentic documents already mentioned, is found to
« Previous <http://books.google.com/books?id=WmouAAAAMAAJ&pg=RA1-PA210&dq=Scots+wedset&
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xe "HAMILTON, Miss of Kinglassy-323"
Walter married Miss HAMILTON of Kinglassy . 
They had the following children:
+
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i.
William BUCHANAN 8th of Drumikill and 1st of Craigievairn .
+
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M
ii.
Dugald BUCHANAN of Gartincaber .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-425"
356.
Miss BUCHANAN  (Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-425"Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "GOVEAN, John in Drymen-426"
Miss married John GOVEAN in Drymen . 
They had the following children:
xe "GOVEAN, William of Drumquhassil-427"
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M
i.
William GOVEAN of Drumquhassil .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 9th of  Carbeth-464"
365.
John BUCHANAN 9th of Carbeth  (John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born estimated 1675 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
John, third of that name of Carbeth, succeeded to his father. He married Stirling of Kippendavie's 
daughter, by whom he had two sons, William his heir, and Moses, and one daughter unmarried. William 
Buchanan, younger of Carbeth, is married to Kincaid of Auchinreoch's daughter, by whom he hath issue.
xe "STIRLING, Miss of Kippendavie-468"
John married Miss STIRLING of Kippendavie . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William of Carbeth-469"
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M
i.
William BUCHANAN of Carbeth  was born estimated 1700 in Carbeth, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "KINCAID, Miss of Auchinreoch-471"William married Miss KINCAID of Auchinreoch . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Moses-470"
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M
ii.
Moses BUCHANAN  was born estimated 1705. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 14th of  Lenny-563"
370.
John BUCHANAN 14th of Lenny  (Sir John BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Robert, last of that name, laird of Lenny, dying without issue, he was succeeded by John Buchanan, his 
cousin-german, son to John Buchanan, second son to Robert, second of that name, laird of Lenny, his 
mother being Stirling of Ardoch's daughter. John, laird of Lenny* last mentioned, married the laird of 
M'Pharlan's daughter, by whom he had two sons, John, his eldest son, married Lennox of Woodhead's 
daughter, and died without issue. His second son was Henry, who upon his brother's death succeeded to 
the estate of Lenny. He was first married to a second daughter of Buchanan of that ilk. He married 
secondly a daughter of Campbel of Lawers, having by both a numerous issue.
xe "M'PHARLAN, Miss of M'Pharlan-565"
John married Miss M'PHARLAN of M'Pharlan . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John 15th of  Lenny-566"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN 15th of Lenny .
Robert, last of that name, laird of Lenny, dying without issue, he was succeeded by 
John Buchanan, his cousin-german, son to John Buchanan, second son to Robert, 
second of that name, laird of Lenny, his mother being Stirling of Ardoch's daughter. 
John, laird of Lenny* last mentioned, married the laird of M'Pharlan's daughter, by 
whom he had two sons, John, his eldest son, married Lennox of Woodhead's daughter, 
and died without issue. His second son was Henry, who upon his brother's death 
succeeded to the estate of Lenny. He was first married to a second daughter of 
Buchanan of that ilk. He married secondly a daughter of Campbel of Lawers, having by 
both a numerous issue.
xe "LENNOX, Miss of Woodhead-568"John married Miss LENNOX of Woodhead . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Henry 16th of  Lenny-567"
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M
ii.
Henry BUCHANAN 16th of Lenny .
xe "CAMPBEL, Miss of Lawers-570"Henry married (1) Miss CAMPBEL of Lawers . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Janet-10"Henry married (2) Janet BUCHANAN  daughter of John BUCHANAN 22nd Laird of Buchanan and Jean PRINGLE. 
xe "BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Arnpryor-596"
375.
John BUCHANAN 5th of Arnpryor  (Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John, the eldest, sold his tack of Mochastel, and acquired afterwards the lands of Arnpryor, Straithyre, 
and a part of the lands of Buchanan. He had one son, Mr. Robert, who had also one son, Francis 
Buchanan, present Arnpryor.
John had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Robert BUCHANAN 6th of Arnpryor .
xe "BUCHANAN, Arthur 1st of  Auchlessy-597"
376.
Arthur BUCHANAN 1st of Auchlessy  (Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Walter in Mochastel's second son, Arthur, purchased the lands of Auchlessy. He had six sons that came 
to age, the eldest, John, who went abroad; the second, James, now of Auchlessy; the third, Walter, now 
Caornach; the fourth, Robert, who left one son, James, mailman in Dumblain, a fifth, George, who left 
no issue; the sixth, Alexander of Dullater, residing at present in his ancestor's old possession, Mochastel.
Arthur had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-600"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, James 2nd of  Auchlessy-601"
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M
ii.
James BUCHANAN 2nd of Auchlessy .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter of Caornach-602"
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M
iii.
Walter BUCHANAN of Caornach .
+
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M
iv.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George-604"
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M
v.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander of Dullater  and Mochastel-605"
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M
vi.
Alexander BUCHANAN of Dullater and Mochastel .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald of Torry-610"
377.
Archibald BUCHANAN of Torry  (John BUCHANAN, Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Archibald of Torry had three sons, John, present Torry ; Archibald, who left no issue; and Andrew who 
had one son, James. John of Torry's second son, Robert, had five sons that came to age, the eldest 
whereof, is John of Greathil, in St. Ninian paroch. His other sons were Archibald, Charles, Alexander, and 
Duncan. There are also of the family of Mochastel, some of the Buchanans residing in Straithyre, with 
others in the parishes of Calender and Kilmadock.
Auchmar, p.71
Archibald had the following children:
+
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Torry .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-613"
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M
ii.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
+
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M
iii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander 3rd of  Gartachairn-581"
380.
Alexander BUCHANAN 3rd of Gartachairn  (Andrew BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Alexander of Gartachairn had three sons, George, now of Gartachairn, Thomas Buchanan, mailman in 
Glasgow, and Andrew, tailor in the said town.
Alexander had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, George 4th of  Gartachairn-583"

425
M
i.
George BUCHANAN 4th of Gartachairn .
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-584"
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M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-585"
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M
iii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, George bailie-582"
381.
George BUCHANAN bailie  (Andrew BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or 
xe "BUCHANAN, George bailie-582"Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
Bailie George had four sons, George, his eldest son, -mailman, Andrew, Neil, and Archibald, merchants in 
Glasgow.
George had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, George-586"
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i.
George BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-587"
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ii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Neil-588"

430
M
iii.
Neil BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-589"
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M
iv.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
Twenty-third Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, James 7th of  Spittel-200"
387.
James BUCHANAN 7th of Spittel  (Edward BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Cashlie-211"
James married Miss BUCHANAN of Cashlie  daughter of John BUCHANAN of Cashlie. 
They had the following children:
+
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M
i.
Edward BUCHANAN 8th of Spittel .
xe "BUCHANAN, John captain-214"
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ii.
John BUCHANAN captain .
Captain in the Dutch and English service during the whole wars of the French English 
and Dutch until 1690
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald captain-215"
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iii.
Archibald BUCHANAN captain .
a captain of the king's horseguards
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-216"
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iv.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
unmarried
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-217"

436
M
v.
Walter BUCHANAN .
unmarried
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-204"
389.
Robert BUCHANAN  (Edward BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in of Glasgow, Lanark, Scotland. 
The fourth cadet of Spittel's family was ROBERT BUCHANAN late deacon of the bakers of Glasgow being 
one of the sons of the second marriage of Edward Buchanan second of that name of Spittel and 
Buchanan of Ross's daughter His son Robert Buchanan writer in Glasgow married Buchanan of 
Drumhead's daughter He had also daughters married Mr Neil Snodgrass
a baker
Robert had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-258"
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i.
Robert BUCHANAN .
a writer
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss of Drumhead-259"Robert married Miss BUCHANAN of Drumhead . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-260"
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-260"
438
F
ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "SNODGRASS, Neil-262"Miss married (1) Neil SNODGRASS . Neil was born in of Paisley, Scotland. 
a writer
xe "WALLACE, Alexander-263"Miss married (2) Alexander WALLACE . Alexander was born in of Paisley, Scotland. 
a writer
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-261"
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F
iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John-264"Miss married John BUCHANAN . John was born in of Glasgow, Lanark, Scotland. 
John elder, merchant
xe "BUCHANAN, William 2nd of  Blarivocky-252"
394.
William BUCHANAN 2nd of Blarivocky  (Walter BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in of County Derry, Ireland. 
William the third brother having obtained the interest of Blairvocky sold the same to John Buchanan 
younger of Spittel.
William the last of Blairvocky resided mostly in Ireland He had four sons Alexander William Walter and 
Henry Alexander the eldest resides in Glendermon within two miles of Derry being in very good repute 
and circumstances William Walter and Henry reside near Omagh in the county of Tyrone and kingdom of 
Ireland.
The fourth cadet of Spittel's family was ROBERT BUCHANAN late deacon of the bakers of Glasgow being 
one of the sons of the second marriage of Edward Buchanan second of that name of Spittel and 
Buchanan of Ross's daughter His son Robert Buchanan writer in Glasgow married Buchanan of 
Drumhead's daughter He had also daughters married Mr Neil Snodgrass P.40
William had the following children:
xe ", Alexander Buchanan-254"
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i.
Alexander Buchanan  was born in of Glendermon, Derry, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, William-255"
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ii.
William BUCHANAN  was born in of Omagh, Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-256"
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iii.
Walter BUCHANAN  was born in of Omagh, Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Henry Alexander-257"
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iv.
Henry Alexander BUCHANAN  was born in of Omagh, Tyrone, Ireland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, James-244"
397.
James BUCHANAN  (Robert BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
James had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-247"

444
M
i.
Andrew BUCHANAN  was born in Auchingyle, Buchanan Parish, Stirling, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-246"
399.
Alexander BUCHANAN  (Robert BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-248"

445
M
i.
John BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-249"

446
M
ii.
Andrew BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William-229"
400.
William BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Donald-233"

447
M
i.
Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Duncan-230"
401.
Duncan BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
448
M
i.
John BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Robert-231"
402.
Robert BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) died in 1645. 
Robert had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Miss-236"

449
F
i.
Miss BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "MCGOWN, James-237"Miss married James MCGOWN . James was born in of Catter, Scotland. 
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Walter-232"
403.
Walter BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon) was born in Cashill, Buchanan Parish, Stirling, Scotland. 
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, John-238"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William-239"

451
M
ii.
William BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM .
xe "BUCHANAN, William 8th of  Drumikill and 1st of Craigievairn-324"
408.
William BUCHANAN 8th of Drumikill and 1st of Craigievairn  (Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To Walter, succeeded his son William, who was married to Cuningham of Boquhan's daughter. He had 
with her three sons, John, William and Walter. The two last left no issue. This William sold the estate of 
Drumikill, to his cousin, Captain William Buchanan, second son to William Buchanan, first of Ross, and 
afterward purchased from my lord Napier, the lands of Craigievairn, by which he and his successors were 
afterwards designed.
xe "CUNINGHAM, Miss of Boquhan-326"
William married Miss CUNINGHAM of Boquhan . 
They had the following children:
+
452
M
i.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Craigievairn .
xe "BUCHANAN, William-328"

453
F
ii.
William BUCHANAN .
died without issue
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-329"

454
M
iii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
died without issue
xe "BUCHANAN, Dugald of Gartincaber-325"
409.
Dugald BUCHANAN of Gartincaber  (Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath 
xe "BUCHANAN, Dugald of Gartincaber-325"MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
The last cadet of that family was DUGAL Buchanan, second son to Walter, seventh laird of Drumikill, and 
brother to William, last of that race of Drumikill, and first of Craigievairn. This Dugal acquired Lower 
Gartincaber in Buchanan parish : he was twice married, having of the first marriage John Buchanan, 
writer in Edinburgh, of the second marriage Thomas Buchanan, perri- wig-maker in Glasgow.
Dugald had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John-428"

455
M
i.
John BUCHANAN  died in of Edinburgh, Scotland. 
John Buchanan, writer in Edinburgh
xe ", UNKNOWN-429"
Dugald married (2) UNKNOWN . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-430"

456
M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN .
Thomas Buchanan, perri- wig-maker in Glasgow.
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert 6th of  Arnpryor-598"
415.
Robert BUCHANAN 6th of Arnpryor  (John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John, the eldest, sold his tack of Mochastel, and acquired afterwards the lands of Arnpryor, Straithyre, 
and a part of the lands of Buchanan. He had one son, Mr. Robert, who had also one son, Francis 
Buchanan, present Arnpryor.
Robert had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Francis 7th of  Arnpryor-599"

457
M
i.
Francis BUCHANAN 7th of Arnpryor .
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-603"
419.
Robert BUCHANAN  (Arthur BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James-606"

458
M
i.
James BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Torry-612"
422.
John BUCHANAN of Torry  (Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, 
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Torry-612"Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
+
459
M
i.
Robert BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Andrew-614"
424.
Andrew BUCHANAN  (Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, James-615"

460
M
i.
James BUCHANAN .
Twenty-fourth Generation

xe "BUCHANAN, Edward 8th of  Spittel-213"
432.
Edward BUCHANAN 8th of Spittel  (James BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
xe "MITCHEL, Christian-218"
Edward married Christian MITCHEL  daughter of Thomas MITCHEL rev.. Christian was born in of Kilmaronock, Scotland. 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John 9th of  Spittel-220"
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M
i.
John BUCHANAN 9th of Spittel .
xe "MUIRHEAD, Margaret of Rashiehill-224"John married Margaret MUIRHEAD of Rashiehill . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Thomas-221"

462
M
ii.
Thomas BUCHANAN  was born in of Glasgow, Lanark, Scotland. 
a medical doctor
xe "NAPEIR, Miss of Ballachairn-226"Thomas married Miss NAPEIR of Ballachairn . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-222"
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F
iii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-223"

464
F
iv.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, John-234"
448.
John BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM  (Duncan BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, Donald BUCHANAN OR MACWILLIAM, William BUCHANAN, George BUCHANAN, Edward BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
He had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan-235"

465
M
i.
Duncan BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Craigievairn-327"
452.
John BUCHANAN 2nd of Craigievairn  (William BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, William BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Robert BUCHANAN, Thomas BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
To William, first designed Craigievairn, succeeded his son John, who married Cuningham of Trinbeg's 
daughter, and had by her one son, William, his successor; and one daughter, married to lieutenant 
James Hamilton, brother to Hamilton of Bardowie.
xe "CUNINGHAM, Miss of Trinbeg-330"John married Miss CUNINGHAM of Trinbeg . 
They had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, William 3rd of  Craigievairn-331"

466
M
i.
William BUCHANAN 3rd of Craigievairn .
William, present Cragievairn, married Hamilton of Bardowie's daughter, and hath by 
her a numerous issue.
The old family, of Drumikill of which William Buchanan, now of Craigievairn, is 
representer, by any information I can obtain, for armorial bearing carries the bearing 
of Buchanan ; and for distinction, a battle-ax in the lion's dexter paw, pointing towards 
the chief proper, with helmet in crest, suiting his quality. The motto, Prosecute or 
Perish.
The present Buchanan of Drumikill bears Buchanan ; and for distinction, in the lion's 
dexter paw, a man's heart proper; his crest, a dexter hand holding a sword. Motto, 
God with my right.
xe "HAMILTON, Miss of Bardowie-334"William married Miss HAMILTON of Bardowie . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Miss-332"

467
F
ii.
Miss BUCHANAN .
xe "HAMILTON, James lieutenant-333"Miss married James HAMILTON lieutenant . 
xe "BUCHANAN, Robert-616"
459.
Robert BUCHANAN  (John BUCHANAN, Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Archibald BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Alexander BUCHANAN, Patrick BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, Walter BUCHANAN, Andrew BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, John BUCHANAN, Sir Walter BUCHANAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Sir Maurice BUCHANAN OR MACAUSLAN, Gilbert BUCHANAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard MCCAUSLAN, Walter MCCAUSLAN, Anselan MCCAUSLAN, John MCCAUSLAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon).
John of Torry's second son, Robert, had five sons that came to age, the eldest whereof, is John of 
Greathil, in St. Ninian paroch. His other sons were Archibald, Charles, Alexander, and Duncan. There are 
also of the family of Mochastel, some of the Buchanans residing in Straithyre, with others in the parishes 
of Calender and Kilmadock.
Auchmar, p.71
Robert had the following children:
xe "BUCHANAN, John of Greathil-617"

468
M
i.
John BUCHANAN of Greathil .
xe "BUCHANAN, Archibald-618"

469
M
ii.
Archibald BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Walter-619"

470
M
iii.
Walter BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Charles-620"

471
M
iv.
Charles BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Alexander-621"

472
M
v.
Alexander BUCHANAN .
xe "BUCHANAN, Duncan-622"

473
M
vi.
Duncan BUCHANAN .
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BUCHANAN, Archibald-609, 132
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BUCHANAN, Duncan of the  Duchless-475, 71

BUCHANAN, Duncan of Wester  Ballat-385, 85

BUCHANAN, Duncan-235, 157
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BUCHANAN, Janet of Spittel-307, 96

BUCHANAN, Janet-10, 140, 146

BUCHANAN, Janet-147, 105
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BUCHANAN, Jean of Ross-422, 114

BUCHANAN, Jean-149, 105

BUCHANAN, Jean-16, 121

BUCHANAN, John 10th of  Lenny-548, 88

BUCHANAN, John 12th Laird  of Buchanan, Laird of Lenny-85, 31, 39

BUCHANAN, John 14th of  Lenny-563, 146

BUCHANAN, John 15th of  Lenny-566, 146

BUCHANAN, John 18th Laird  of Buchanan-34, 76

BUCHANAN, John 1st of  Gartincaber-395, 69

BUCHANAN, John 2 of  Spittel-186, 78

BUCHANAN, John 22nd Laird  of Buchanan-1, 134

BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Buchlyvie and Cashley-280, 107

BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Craigievairn-327, 157

BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Lenny-533, 26

BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  of Drumfad-376, 97

BUCHANAN, John 2nd of  Ross-396, 99

BUCHANAN, John 3rd of  Arnpryor-273, 79

BUCHANAN, John 3rd of  Drumfad-377, 111

BUCHANAN, John 4th of  Arnpryor-266, 95

BUCHANAN, John 4th of  Lenny-536, 33

BUCHANAN, John 5th Laird  of Auchmar-144, 121

BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Arnpryor-596, 146

BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Easter Ballat-478, 115

BUCHANAN, John 5th of  Mochastel-574, 102

BUCHANAN, John 7th of  Carbeth-449, 115

BUCHANAN, John 7th of  Lenny-537, 52

BUCHANAN, John 8th of  Carbeth-452, 128

BUCHANAN, John 9th of  Carbeth-464, 145

BUCHANAN, John 9th of  Spittel-220, 157

BUCHANAN, John captain-201, 141

BUCHANAN, John captain-214, 150

BUCHANAN, John in Easter  Ballat-432, 50

BUCHANAN, John of Arnpryor,  Auchmar, and Gartartan-67, 55

BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-641, 46

BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-643, 63

BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-648, 74

BUCHANAN, John of Auchneiven-651, 75

BUCHANAN, John of Ballachondachy  and 5th of Lenny-87, 37

BUCHANAN, John of Ballachruin-341, 68

BUCHANAN, John of Blairluisk-183, 93

BUCHANAN, John of Blairluisk-437, 98

BUCHANAN, John of Camochoil-384, 85

BUCHANAN, John of Cattermiln-378, 111

BUCHANAN, John of Drumdash,  Camochoill and Wester Ballat-300, 57

BUCHANAN, John of Gartincaber-516, 113

BUCHANAN, John of Greathil-617, 158

BUCHANAN, John of of  Drumdash-382, 59

BUCHANAN, John of Sandside-627, 131

BUCHANAN, John of Stainifleet-632, 23

BUCHANAN, John of Stainiflet-637, 40

BUCHANAN, John of Teucherhill-654, 75

BUCHANAN, John of Torry-607, 131

BUCHANAN, John of Torry-612, 155

BUCHANAN, John of Wester  Ballat-390, 98

BUCHANAN, John of Wester  Cameron-304, 67

BUCHANAN, John or Thomas 1st of  Drumfad-349, 84

BUCHANAN, John or Walter 3rd of  Lenny-535, 29

BUCHANAN, John-115, 71

BUCHANAN, John-132, 92

BUCHANAN, John-156, 122

BUCHANAN, John-179, 122

BUCHANAN, John-248, 152

BUCHANAN, John-264, 151

BUCHANAN, John-278, 95

BUCHANAN, John-284, 143

BUCHANAN, John-287, 143

BUCHANAN, John-288, 143

BUCHANAN, John-291, 107

BUCHANAN, John-428, 154

BUCHANAN, John-477, 88

BUCHANAN, John-483, 116

BUCHANAN, John-492, 112

BUCHANAN, John-493, 112

BUCHANAN, John-499, 100

BUCHANAN, John-501, 114

BUCHANAN, John-507, 76

BUCHANAN, John-525, 52

BUCHANAN, John-527, 52

BUCHANAN, John-590, 133

BUCHANAN, John-600, 147

BUCHANAN, John-93, 22

BUCHANAN, Margaret-124, 78

BUCHANAN, Margaret-50, 65

BUCHANAN, Mary-145, 105

BUCHANAN, Matthew-503, 114

BUCHANAN, Maurice Captain-175, 123

BUCHANAN, Maurice Rev.-134, 105

BUCHANAN, Maurice-667, 48

BUCHANAN, Maurice-79, 36

BUCHANAN, Miss of Bankel-361, 110

BUCHANAN, Miss of Blairhenachan-353, 97

BUCHANAN, Miss of Buchanan-342, 83

BUCHANAN, Miss of Cashlie-211, 150

BUCHANAN, Miss of Drumhead-259, 151

BUCHANAN, Miss of Drumikill-321, 127

BUCHANAN, Miss of Ross-202, 141

BUCHANAN, Miss of Ross-451, 115

BUCHANAN, Miss-125, 78

BUCHANAN, Miss-138, 92

BUCHANAN, Miss-139, 92

BUCHANAN, Miss-158, 121

BUCHANAN, Miss-159, 121

BUCHANAN, Miss-160, 121

BUCHANAN, Miss-161, 121

BUCHANAN, Miss-187, 65

BUCHANAN, Miss-206, 141

BUCHANAN, Miss-222, 157

BUCHANAN, Miss-223, 157

BUCHANAN, Miss-24, 104

BUCHANAN, Miss-260, 151

BUCHANAN, Miss-261, 151

BUCHANAN, Miss-332, 158

BUCHANAN, Miss-343, 83

BUCHANAN, Miss-344, 83

BUCHANAN, Miss-359, 110

BUCHANAN, Miss-360, 110

BUCHANAN, Miss-364, 97

BUCHANAN, Miss-365, 97

BUCHANAN, Miss-386, 85

BUCHANAN, Miss-388, 85

BUCHANAN, Miss-394, 86, 108

BUCHANAN, Miss-399, 87

BUCHANAN, Miss-400, 87

BUCHANAN, Miss-401, 87

BUCHANAN, Miss-407, 100

BUCHANAN, Miss-408, 100

BUCHANAN, Miss-413, 100

BUCHANAN, Miss-420, 114

BUCHANAN, Miss-425, 145

BUCHANAN, Miss-442, 60

BUCHANAN, Miss-445, 88

BUCHANAN, Miss-454, 115

BUCHANAN, Miss-455, 115

BUCHANAN, Miss-459, 128

BUCHANAN, Miss-460, 128

BUCHANAN, Miss-466, 129

BUCHANAN, Miss-488, 70

BUCHANAN, Miss-520, 86

BUCHANAN, Miss-559, 129

BUCHANAN, Miss-561, 117

BUCHANAN, Miss-59, 54

BUCHANAN, Miss-60, 54

BUCHANAN, Miss-629, 131

BUCHANAN, Miss-653, 75

BUCHANAN, Miss-68, 48

BUCHANAN, Miss-69, 48

BUCHANAN, Moses of Glyns-453, 115

BUCHANAN, Moses of Glyns-465, 129

BUCHANAN, Moses-290, 143

BUCHANAN, Moses-470, 146

BUCHANAN, Mr.-406, 100

BUCHANAN, Mr.-662, 124

BUCHANAN, Mr-577, 118

BUCHANAN, Mungo 1st of  Tullichewn-348, 83

BUCHANAN, Mungo 4th of  Tullichewn-371, 127

BUCHANAN, Mungo-375, 128

BUCHANAN, Neil-588, 148

BUCHANAN, of Auchmar-403, 87

BUCHANAN, of Auchmar-467, 129

BUCHANAN, of Balfunning-367, 97

BUCHANAN, of Cameron-150, 105

BUCHANAN, of Carbeth-404, 87

BUCHANAN, Patrick 14th Laird  of Buchanan-72, 41

BUCHANAN, Patrick 16th Laird  of Buchanan-54, 54

BUCHANAN, Patrick 2nd Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-121, 77, 91

BUCHANAN, Patrick 3rd of  Mochastel-572, 74

BUCHANAN, Patrick 4th Laird  of Auchmar and Straithyre-131, 104

BUCHANAN, Patrick 8th of  Lenny-544, 62

BUCHANAN, Patrick of Carbeth-109, 51

BUCHANAN, Patrick of Stainiflet-634, 30

BUCHANAN, Patrick of Wester  Ballat-389, 98

BUCHANAN, Patrick the Courrui-655, 78

BUCHANAN, Patrick-178, 122

BUCHANAN, Patrick-337, 58

BUCHANAN, Patrick-484, 116

BUCHANAN, Patrick-512, 99

BUCHANAN, Patrick-659, 79

BUCHANAN, Patrick-77, 42

BUCHANAN, Robert 11th of  Lenny-550, 101

BUCHANAN, Robert 12th of  Lenny-553, 116

BUCHANAN, Robert 13th of  Lenny-555, 129

BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Blairhanachan-347, 68

BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Drumikill and Gartincaber-294, 57

BUCHANAN, Robert 2nd of  Tullichewn-368, 97

BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Blairhanachan-350, 83

BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Drumikill-297, 67

BUCHANAN, Robert 3rd of  Tullichewn-369, 110

BUCHANAN, Robert 4th of  Spittel-194, 106

BUCHANAN, Robert 5th of  Tullichewn-372, 127

BUCHANAN, Robert 6th of  Arnpryor-598, 155

BUCHANAN, Robert 6th of  Mochastel-593, 117

BUCHANAN, Robert of Drumikill-305, 81

BUCHANAN, Robert of Lenny-558, 129

BUCHANAN, Robert the Coich-63, 65

BUCHANAN, Robert-135, 92

BUCHANAN, Robert-204, 150

BUCHANAN, Robert-242, 142

BUCHANAN, Robert-245, 142

BUCHANAN, Robert-258, 151

BUCHANAN, Robert-352, 83

BUCHANAN, Robert-363, 110

BUCHANAN, Robert-441, 60

BUCHANAN, Robert-519, 113

BUCHANAN, Robert-528, 45

BUCHANAN, Robert-603, 155

BUCHANAN, Robert-608, 132

BUCHANAN, Robert-611, 132

BUCHANAN, Robert-616, 158

BUCHANAN, Samuel-181, 123

BUCHANAN, Sir Alexander-86, 32

BUCHANAN, Sir George 19th Laird  of Buchanan-26, 90

BUCHANAN, Sir George 21st Laird  of Buchanan-2, 120

BUCHANAN, Sir John 20th Laird  of Buchanan-20, 104

BUCHANAN, Sir John of Lenny-556, 129

BUCHANAN, Sir John of Scotscraig-623, 102

BUCHANAN, Sir Walter 11th Laird  of Buchanan-89, 28

BUCHANAN, Sir Walter 13th Laird  of Buchanan-78, 35

BUCHANAN, Susanna-30, 90

BUCHANAN, Thomas 1st of  Carbeth and Gartincaber-80, 42

BUCHANAN, Thomas 2nd of  Carbeth-431, 44

BUCHANAN, Thomas 2nd of  Ibert-340, 82

BUCHANAN, Thomas 3rd of  Carbeth-433, 59

BUCHANAN, Thomas 4th of  Carbeth-435, 70

BUCHANAN, Thomas 5th of  Carbeth-444, 87

BUCHANAN, Thomas 5th of  Drumikill-308, 107

BUCHANAN, Thomas 6th of  Carbeth-447, 100

BUCHANAN, Thomas in Creitchael-510, 99

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Boquhan-462, 129

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Drumikil-111, 62

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Drumikill-302, 80

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Gartincaber  and Drumikill-74, 49

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Ibert,  Lord Privy Seal-127, 91

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Moss-298, 57

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Moss-335, 57

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Shirrahal-625, 130

BUCHANAN, Thomas of Stainiflet-635, 34

BUCHANAN, Thomas-117, 71

BUCHANAN, Thomas-221, 157

BUCHANAN, Thomas-319, 126

BUCHANAN, Thomas-391, 98

BUCHANAN, Thomas-430, 155

BUCHANAN, Thomas-496, 112

BUCHANAN, Thomas-498, 87

BUCHANAN, Thomas-513, 99

BUCHANAN, Thomas-517, 113

BUCHANAN, Thomas-584, 148

BUCHANAN, Thomas-646, 53

BUCHANAN, Thomas-658, 94

BUCHANAN, Walter 1 of  Spittel-58, 65

BUCHANAN, Walter 15th Laird  of Buchanan-64, 47

BUCHANAN, Walter 2nd of  Easter Ballat-473, 70

BUCHANAN, Walter 4th of  Drumikill-306, 96

BUCHANAN, Walter 5th of  Spittal-208, 123

BUCHANAN, Walter 7th of  Drumikill-318, 143

BUCHANAN, Walter 7th of  Mochastel-595, 131

BUCHANAN, Walter 9th of  Lenny-546, 74

BUCHANAN, Walter of Auchneiven-638, 45

BUCHANAN, Walter of Ballerdeorn-523, 52

BUCHANAN, Walter of Blairvocky-210, 141

BUCHANAN, Walter of Camochoil  and of Wester Ballat-383, 69

BUCHANAN, Walter of Caornach-602, 147

BUCHANAN, Walter of Carbeth-112, 61

BUCHANAN, Walter of Conochra-315, 127

BUCHANAN, Walter of Drumikill-188, 65

BUCHANAN, Walter of Glenny-575, 102

BUCHANAN, Walter of Milntown  of Buchlyvie-267, 80

BUCHANAN, Walter of Mochastel-538, 52

BUCHANAN, Walter of Teucherhill-649, 75

BUCHANAN, Walter-217, 150

BUCHANAN, Walter-241, 143

BUCHANAN, Walter-250, 142

BUCHANAN, Walter-256, 152

BUCHANAN, Walter-329, 154

BUCHANAN, Walter-438, 60

BUCHANAN, Walter-450, 115

BUCHANAN, Walter-479, 101

BUCHANAN, Walter-482, 116

BUCHANAN, Walter-486, 69

BUCHANAN, Walter-619, 159

BUCHANAN, Walter-630, 33

BUCHANAN, Walter-642, 53

BUCHANAN, Walter-644, 53

BUCHANAN, William 10th of  Drumikill-412, 113

BUCHANAN, William 1st of  Easter Ballat-472, 60

BUCHANAN, William 2nd of  Blarivocky-252, 151

BUCHANAN, William 3rd of  Craigievairn-331, 158

BUCHANAN, William 3rd of  Easter Ballat-474, 88

BUCHANAN, William 4th of  Easter Ballat-476, 101

BUCHANAN, William 6th Laird  of Auchmar-162, 121

BUCHANAN, William 6th of  Drumikill-314, 125

BUCHANAN, William 8th of  Drumikill and 1st of Craigievairn-324, 153

BUCHANAN, William captain, 9th  of Drumikill-397, 87

BUCHANAN, William captain-275, 80

BUCHANAN, William Major-136, 92

BUCHANAN, William major-182, 93

BUCHANAN, William of Ardoch-514, 99

BUCHANAN, William of Arrachybeg-227, 124

BUCHANAN, William of Auchmar  and Straithyre-49, 77

BUCHANAN, William of Baturrich  and 1st of Blairhanachan-345, 58

BUCHANAN, William of Baturrich  and Drumhead-299, 57

BUCHANAN, William of Blairluisk-490, 112

BUCHANAN, William of Blairnabord-524, 45

BUCHANAN, William of Carbeth-469, 145

BUCHANAN, William of Easter  Ballat-481, 116

BUCHANAN, William of Hiltoun  and Auchintorly-374, 128

BUCHANAN, William of Ross-311, 86, 108

BUCHANAN, William of Russland-628, 131

BUCHANAN, William of Stuckrodger-370, 111

BUCHANAN, William-123, 93

BUCHANAN, William-177, 106

BUCHANAN, William-255, 152

BUCHANAN, William-268, 95

BUCHANAN, William-293, 107

BUCHANAN, William-328, 154

BUCHANAN, William-379, 128

BUCHANAN, William-380, 128

BUCHANAN, William-417, 113

BUCHANAN, William-439, 60

BUCHANAN, William-494, 112

BUCHANAN, William-502, 114

BUCHANAN, William-592, 133

CALLENDER, John of Westertoun-461, 128

CAMPBEL, Archibald of Dunstafnage-560, 129

CAMPBEL, Donald-562, 117

CAMPBEL, Miss of Lawers-557, 129

CAMPBEL, Miss of Lawers-570, 146

CAMPBELL, Margaret of Argyll-55, 54

CAMPBELL, Mr. of Rahein-25, 104

CAMPBELL, Mr.-33, 90

CHISHOLM, Helen-39, 76

CLELAND, Miss of Wardhead-458, 128

COLCHOUN, Alexander-31, 90

COLCHOUN, Miss-448, 101

COLCHOUN, of Camstrodan-140, 92

CRAWFORD, Miss of Kilbirnie-411, 100

CRAWFURD, Elizabeth-647, 63

CUNINGHAM, Elizabeth-189, 78

CUNINGHAM, Geils of-295, 57

CUNINGHAM, Isabel of Glencairn-184, 65

CUNINGHAM, Miss of Boquhan-326, 154

CUNINGHAM, Miss of Drumquhassips-405, 99

CUNINGHAM, Miss of Trinbeg-330, 158

CUNINGHAM, of Trinbeg-402, 87

CUNNINGHAM, if Trinbeg-207, 141

CUNNINGHAME, Janet-46, 64

CUNNINGHAME, Mr. of Robertland-51, 65

DENNIESTOUN, Miss of Auchindinnan-393, 68

DOUGLAS, Miss of Mains-436, 60

DOUGLAS, Mr. of Maines-53, 65

EDMONSTONE, Elizabeth of Duntreath-636, 34

EDMONSTONE, Margaret-43, 64

EDMONSTONE, Miss of Balleun-640, 46

EDMUNDSTOUN, Miss of Balleun-199, 141

FORRESTER, James of Polder-456, 115

GALBRAITH, Christian-192, 94

GALBRAITH, Miss of Balgair-209, 123

GALBRAITH, Miss of Killearn,  Bamoir and Auchinreoch-73, 41

GALBRAITH, of Armfinlay-153, 105

GALBRAITH, of Balgair-446, 88

GOVEAN, John in Drymen-426, 145

GOVEAN, William of Drumquhassil-427, 145

GRAHAM, Anna of Duchray-157, 121

GRAHAM, Isabelle-65, 47

GRAHAM, Mary-27, 90

GRAHAM, Miss of Inchbrachie-551, 102

GRAHAM, Miss of Killearn-650, 74

GRAHAM, Miss of Killearn-652, 75

GRAHAM, Miss-113, 61

GRAHAM, Robert of Glenny-163, 121

GRAY, Sir Andrew-82, 37

HALDAN, Miss of Glenegeis-547, 74

HAMILTON, Anna-171, 122

HAMILTON, Elizabeth of Inchmachan-120, 77

HAMILTON, James lieutenant-333, 158

HAMILTON, Miss of Bardowie-334, 158

HAMILTON, Miss of Kinglassy-323, 145

HAY, Margaret-301, 67

HERIOT, Agnes-118, 71

HERRIOT, Agnes of Trabrown-336, 58

KINCAID, Miss of Auchinreoch-471, 145

KINCAID, of Auchinreoch-322, 127

KINROSS, Miss of Kippenross-310, 96

LAWSON, Miss of Boghal-196, 106

LECKY, Chief of that  Ilk-19, 121

LENNOX, Miss of Woodhead-568, 146

LENNY, Miss-532, 23

LEVINGSTONE, Elizabeth-35, 76

LEVINGSTOUN, Dorothy-41, 56

LOCKHART, Miss of Barr-542, 45

LOGAN, Miss of Balvey-312, 107

LOGY, Miss of that  ilk-303, 81

MACAULAY, Miss of Arncaple-416, 113

MACAUSLAND,-489, 70

MACGREGOR, Gregor-443, 60

MACTHOMAS, Donald-664, 95

MCAULAY, Miss of Blairhenachan  now Drumhead-346, 59

MCCAUSLAN, Anselan 3rd Laird  of Buchanan-102, 10

MCCAUSLAN, Anselan 7th Laird  of Buchanan-96, 14

MCCAUSLAN, Girald or Bernard 5th Laird  of Buchanan-100, 12

MCCAUSLAN, John 2nd Laird  of Buchanan-103, 8

MCCAUSLAN, Macbeath 6th Laird  of Buchanan-99, 13

MCCAUSLAN, Walter 4th Laird  of Buchanan-101, 11

MCCAUSLAND, Colman-98, 16

MCCAUSLAND, Methlan-97, 15

MCFARLAN, John Laird of  McFarlan-32, 90

MCGOWN, James-237, 153

MCPHARLAN, Andrew laird of  M'Pharlan-409, 100

MCPHARLANE, George-167, 121

MCPHARLANE, Walter-152, 105

MCWATTIE, John-631, 33

MENTEITH, Margaret of Rusky-108, 26

MITCHEL, Christian-218, 157

M'PHARLAN, Miss of M'Pharlan-565, 146

MUIRHEAD, Margaret of Rashiehill-224, 157

MUSHET, Miss of Burnbank-543, 52

MUSHET, Miss of Burnbank-552, 102

NAIRN, of Baturich-154, 105

NAPEIR, Miss of Ballachairn-226, 157

NAPIER, of Ballikinrain-366, 97

OF ARDKINGLASS, The Laird-71, 48

OF AUCHINBRECK, The Laird-61, 54

OF CALDER, The Laird-62, 54

OF CASHLY, Miss and Brachern-279, 96

OF DENNIESTOUN, Miss-105, 9

OF LAMOND, The Laird-70, 48

OF LENNY, Miss-94, 22

O'KYAN OR O'CAHAN, Anselan Buey (the Fair) or Absalon-104, 1

PENNEL, Anna-176, 92

PETTIGROE, Captain-141, 93

PRESTON, Elizabeth-3, 120

PRINGLE, Jean-5, 140

ROLLO, Sir John of Bannockburn-17, 120

SEMPLE, Miss of Fulwood-317, 126

SEMPLE, Miss of Fulwood-545, 62

SNODGRASS, Neil-262, 151

STEVEN, Margaret of Easter  Cattar and Finnicktenant-463, 129

STEWART, Andrew-165, 121

STEWART, Isobel-83, 35

STEWART, James 4th of  Ardvorlich-9, 139

STEWART, James of Baldorrans-76, 42

STEWART, Janet-129, 92

STEWART, Mr. of Rossyth-18, 121

STEWART, Robert of Cailliemore-166, 121

STIRLING, Miss of Ardoch-554, 117

STIRLING, Miss of Glorat-313, 108

STIRLING, Miss of Kippendavie-468, 145

STIRLING, Mr. of Glorat-52, 65

TAYLOR, Robert of Mansfield-410, 100

WALLACE, Alexander-263, 151
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